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FY 2007 BUDGET (C.C. No. 06-31, 06-49, 06-91, 06-92, 06-93, and 06-95)

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for Monday, April 24th , 2006. For the record, we have in attendance
this morning the Vice-Chair of the Committee, Member Hokama, as well as Members
Carroll, Anderson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares, Kane. Members, this morning
we will be bringing forward your Chair's proposal but before we do that we do have at
this point ten people signed up to testify so we'd like to take care of the public testimony
first before we engage into the discussion.
Members of the public, first, if you have a cell phone or a pager we ask that you tum it to
the off or to the silent mode. We can avoid any unnecessary disruptions to the meeting.
Those of you signed up to testify we'll invite you to the podium. We'll give you a total
of four minutes. At three minutes we'll let you know of that time and then you have an
additional minute to conclude your remarks. At four minutes we'll let you know of that
time, and if you could please, if you're in mid-sentence, please finish your sentence and
your thought, and then please make yourself available for questions from the Members
who may have questions for you. First, also is most important that you give us your
name for the record, and if you represent an organization, we'd like to know that as well.
With that being said, our first person signed up to testify is Mr. Richard Ellis. Mr. Ellis is
here, followed by Colin Hanlon .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR.

Distinguished Council Members, Staff, Ladies, and Gentlemen, good morning.
I'm Richard Ellis. Last Thursday when my time was up we had just reviewed timeshares
versus hotels and other residential properties. And as I left that day a thought occurred to
me that possibly some of the Council Members had never been into a timeshare, and this
morning first thing off, I would like to invite you if you would like to see a timeshare, to
come to my timeshare down in Kihei at the Maui Sunset. This offer is good until
6:00 p.m. on May the I st and it will be at your choosing, your time, and I will make
arrangements that I will be there and you can view a timeshare.
The table we looked at the other day compared very favorably timeshares with other
residential properties and there was nothing there that compared with hotels. There has
been a tremendous task of trying to associate timeshares with hotels and it just doesn't
happen. So based on the information that I have reviewed with you, I would like to get
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rid of the "if' that was mentioned in some of the articles and say ... substitute for that
the word "why". And my questions are why are timeshares not taxed at the 3.50 rate?
Why are timeshare owners taxed at $14 when you the Council Members and other
residential property owners are taxed at the 3.50 and that's before the $200,000 reduction
in your assessed value? You want timeshare owners to pay a fair share. Fair is without
personal prejudice and I think if you review the articles that were published in the paper,
you will find that there were some personal prejudice in what was printed. We want to
pay a fair share. We ask the Maui County Council to give timeshare owners equality of
real property tax. Timeshare owners have been overtaxed for many years. It's time for a
change. Thank you very much.
And if I may invite you to bow your heads. Heavenly Father, we thank you for this
opportunity to come before this Council. We pray that the words that I have spoken
verbally and in printing will be accepted by this Council as they were intended to be from
my heart. We pray that you will give them guidance and that all people paying property
taxes on real property will be treated equally. And I remind the Council this morning,
Father, that the Charter speaks of all people are equal in worth and dignity. Thank you
very much, Father. Thank you for your guidance. In Jesus name, Amen.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Ellis, for your testimony. Members, do you have any questions
for Mr. Ellis? Hearing none. Thank you very much, sir, for your testimony and for the
invitation. Colin Hanlon, followed by Alan Pascua.
MR. HANLON: Good morning, Council Members, Committee Chair Kane. My name is Colin
Hanlon. I am the Executive Director with the Boys and Girls Club of Maui and I'm here
today to testify in favor of support for the West Maui Renovation Project. It came to my
awareness last week that we were looking at areas in the proposed Budget to cut and I'm
just coming in front of you today just to ... probably I reminded you enough this year
about it, but I'm gonna remind you once again of the priority that was set back in 2000
for the youth of West Maui to have a space that is safe, that is appropriate for program
inside, and appropriate for the amount of youths that we're trying to serve out in West
Maui. Again, what we're trying to do is pretty much double the square footage of the
West Maui facility and in so doing we
that we could triple the amount of kids that we
serve in the West Maui area. So I'll keep my testimony short and accept any questions.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hanlon. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you.
Thank you for your testimony.
MR. HANLON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Alan Pascua, to be followed by Jack Williams.
MR. PASCUA: Good morning, Chairman Kane and Honorable Council Members. My name is
Alan Pascua and I'm a fire fighter in the County of Maui Department of Fire and Public
Safety. I come before you this morning to speak on behalf of my 270 brother fire fighters
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and to present a general overview of how we hope the Maui Fire Department will
develop and progress. I also hope to create a shared vision of what will be necessary to
facilitate our mission to preserve life and property while incorporating every measure of
safety and support to keep my brother fire fighters alive on the front line and also to
assure them a healthy and satisfying career.
Over the past two decades, Maui County has become one of the fastest growing
jurisdictions in our State, if not the fastest, and our infrastructure has been critically
challenged to keep up with the development and our growing resident and visitor
population. However, despite these growing pains, Maui County continues to maintain
our no ka oi status amongst places to live and visit. I'm sure we can all agree that the
quality of life Maui no ka oi so richly offers is largely dependent on our public safety
infrastructure.
The Maui Fire Department represents only one component. We know this. It will be
typically Fire, Police, or EMS who are always first to respond, first to arrive, and first to
be most critically impacted and imperiled at the front ... forefront of any emergency or
disaster situation. You know, there's no doubt that MFD has come a long way since I
first dedicated myself as a fire fighter in '75. We had six fire companies Countywide and
six fire stations, a three-person administration, no support services of any kind. Fire
response services were provided by volunteers in Hana and Lanai. We had no clue what
technical fire rescue training consisted of. But meanwhile, our population did continue to
grow and so did the demands on MFD for quality service delivery.
When Hana and Lanai stations became staffed with full-time MFD fire fighters and
resources, the Administration at that time recognized the need for sufficient 24-hour
management personnel and added three 24-hour battalion chief expansion positions and
at that time there were eight stations and eight companies. The Fire Prevention Bureau
grew to two people and a training program finally was established. A rescue squad with
boat operations was developed and soon to follow as an added rescue squad discipline
was HazMat Technician training. Station 1 and 3 became two-companies fire stations.
Through the late 70's all the way through the 90's it became a blur of growth and
progress, not only within the County, but within our department. In that time span with
the support of this Executive Body, Stations 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 were built, staffed, and
equipped. The South Side since then has developed into a resort community that now
rivals the West Side. Station 14 had to be built, Wailea Fire Station, and was staffed as
another two-company fire station-MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. PASCUA: --with the capability to expand to three companies.
Simultaneously, and through the efforts of some very motivated and dedicated fire
fighters, MFD also saw the development of formal support programs. We can get into a
lot of those programs later. Here in 2006, MFD again stands poised to make another
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attempt at gaining ground on Maui' s unbelievable growth rate, and have made some bold,
and yet at the same time, modest budget appropriation proposals. To provide the quality
emergency response services that are booming community demands, we have proposed
funding for the new Kaunakakai Fire Station, proposed property acquisition for the Haiku
Fire Station. MFD currently has 14 fire stations and 17 fire rescue companies as we
speak, and as a consequence, we also have proposed an additional three 24-hour battalion
chief expansion positions.
MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MR. PASCUA: You will also recall that the one and only rescue squad now stationed at Kahului
Fire Station has some overwhelming responsibilities, and therefore, we also requested
and proposed an expansion 15 positions to staff a dedicated HazMat Response Team.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chief You need to wrap up your comments, please.
MR. PASCUA: Okay. In closing, Honorable Chair and Members on the Council, my brother
fire fighters and I fully understand the task that lay ahead for all of you in your final
Budget deliberations and we are well aware of the priorities that must be considered for
our entire public safety infrastructure. I sincerely hope that we can maintain the shared
vision of providing sufficient resources for our fire fighters to deliver quality, emergency
response services safely and efficiently to the entire community now and in the future.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Chief. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you for
your testimony. Jack Williams, to be followed by Derrick Arruda.
MR. WILLIAMS: Hello, Council. My name is Jack Williams. I'm a Captain with the Rescue
Team, Maui County Fire and Public Safety. I'm here to testify for the serious need of a
Hazardous Material Team. At present time, the hazardous material incidents fall under
our Rescue Squad. But because of the many disciplines, our team has to train, certify,
and respond to, it is impossible for us to efficiently cover all the necessary functions a
dedicated team could do for HazMat response. Currently, we have one Rescue Squad on
duty each day. That's one team to cover all of Maui County, which as you know,
involves Kahoolawe, Lanai, Molokai, Maui, and all the ocean and channels in between.
We respond to every island and do scuba search and rescue, boat, jet ski, surfboard, and
shoreline search and rescue, helicopter search and rescue, we rappel from helicopters and
mountain cliffs, rescue and recover people from helicopter and airplane crashes, do swift
water rescue, respond to all vehicle extrications on Maui, respond to medical assists.
Besides the responsibility of responding with the engine companies for brush fires and
structure fires, where we ventilate, do forcible sets ... forcible entry, and search and
rescue for people trapped within a building, we respond to everything from a cat in the
tree and a stubbed toe to recovering a body from a shark attack or a plane crash on the
side of the mountain.
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The reason I'm telling you some of the things we respond to is because to do all the
things we do efficiently, and most important safely, we train as much as we can between
all the incidents we respond to and the maintenance and service of our equipment. It's a
lot to keep up on. It's a lot to train for. But we do it so none of us will get hurt or die
trying to save a life. Now you add to this, HazMat and all its responsibilities which at
incident involves an entry team, a back up team, safety officer, medical assistance,
decontamination, chemical identification, use of a cameo computer system, air monitors,
chemical monitors, maintenance and calibration of the monitors, containment,
evacuation, all under an Incident Command System. We need a tree ... we need a team
that can specialize in this so no one gets hurt or contaminated-MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. WILLIAMS: --and can respond quickly and efficiently. Right now we've been doing itour Rescue Team. But to tell you the truth we've been lucky. Besides when Rescue is
locked in in a HazMat, who's going to save the person who may be in a life threatening
situation. How long will he have to wait? How long can he keep afloat? We face
HazMat conditions every day. Besides the spills and the leaks, they have to monitor
what's burning in a home, the air quality, or what's burning in a brush fire that was left
abandoned. Besides with terrorism and weapons of mass destruction, it can only get
worse. We've been lucky, but when something does happen, it will be a relief to know a
dedicated team of HazMat techs will be corning to sort things out and safely manage the
incident.
MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MR. WILLIAMS: We need this team for our personal safety as well as public safety. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank: you, Mr. Williams. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank
you for your testimony this morning. Derrick Arruda, followed by Jamie Becraft.
MR. ARRUDA: Good morning, Councilman Kane ... Chair Kane, excuse me, and Council
Members. My name is Derrick Arruda. I am one of three captains assigned to Rescue
10. I'm here to ask your support this morning in two specific areas of the Fire
Department budget. First off being a dedicated Hazardous Materials Response Team.
Some of this will be reiterated from Captain Williams. The Maui Fire Department has
one rescue company covering the four islands of the County. Some of the disciplines
assigned to this company include, but aren't limited to, fire, ground search and rescue,
ocean search and rescue, which includes boat operations and scuba operations, mountain
search and rescue, which includes high and low angle rope rescue, helicopter operations,
confined space rescue, trench rescue, swift water rescue, industrial and vehicle
extrication, and somewhere along the way here we throw in hazardous materials
emergency response. All of these different disciplines are covered by industry as well as
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OSHA standards. As you can imagine, this takes a tremendous amount of training and
preplanning to stay proficient.
In the mid-80's, communities across the country that had large fuel storage, water and
sewage treatment facilities, industrial agricultural chemical usage, decided dedicated
HazMat teams within their fire departments were necessary for the safety of the
community as well as their fire fighters. The County of Maui and the Fire Department
Administrators at the time chose to hand this discipline to the rescue company. Although
we do our best trying to fit in the training and preplanning that is necessary, a dedicated
team is long overdue. HazMat is extremely technical and complex and requires full-time
dedication and devotion to be proficient. The rescue captains have been asking our
Administrators for years to put this on the table and I believe we have been giving the
community a false sense of security by not providing a dedicated team, which I mean by
team, five members on three watches - a total of 15 members. In simple terms, if you or
your spouse required a liver or kidney transplant, you wouldn't take 'em to your family
practitioner to have the surgery done because you need a specialist.
Secondly, I really believe that a split battalion is necessary for the Fire Department.
When we talk about this HazMat team, now we're talking about 18 companies in the Fire
Department. We need an additional BC. We need two BCs on duty 2417. This is long
overdue. As a temporary BC, I know firsthand how chaotic it gets when multiple
emergencies are taking place at the same time and often at opposite ends of the County.
You may find yourself at two in the morning at a structure fire in Pukalani and a major
brush fire breaking out in Lahaina, Molokai, or Lanai. It is the BC's job to manage these
incidents even though you can only be at one place at a time. MFD uses the Incident
Command System at all major alarms to manage the incident. The command position
and operations positions are vital and should be manned by a battalion chief whenever
possible. Presently, a captain will take command until a BC arrives on scene.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. ARRUDA: Once the BC takes command, the captain will then take the operations position
throughout the remainder of the incident. This captain is no longer working with his or
her crew any longer. This practice compromises the safety, focus, and leadership of his
crew. Two BCs on duty 2417 could work together and manage large incidents without
compromising the safety and efficiency of the Fire and Rescue companies. They could
also divide themselves to manage multiple alarms when necessary. The safety of our fire
fighters in this community must be seriously addressed and I ask all of you Members to
please try to put yourselves in our position when contemplating your decision. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Arruda. Members, any questions for our testifier? Hearing
none. Thank you very much.
MR. ARRUDA: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Jamie Becraft, followed by Jeff Kihune.
MR. BECRAFT: Good morning. My name is Jamie Becraft. I'm representing the Boys and
Girls Club. I appreciate your time. I'm going to make this short. I know that we're
looking at making some cuts and that's why I wanted to come back and reiterate what we
had already said earlier. I just really want to make an emphasis on the safety issues that
do exist in Lahaina, that since I've been on the Board of the Boys and Girls Club, it's
been one of my major concerns. If you've had a chance to visit Lahaina, you're going to
notice that these ... that building was designed for something completely different than
what it's being used for. It was a storage facility. And our children right now are at risk
everyday. We don't have enough staff. We can't afford to put the staffing that it would
take to be a secured facility and that's the major problem with it. Of course, it needs to
be bigger. Ifwe're gonna add on, we need to expand our ability to serve the children.
But the primary concern that I have is that the bathrooms are located outside. You have
your homeless community there. You have the park use there. There's no way we can
secure up that building, and we want our children to use the restrooms out there, they're
in a bad position. We have no way of controlling the in and out of everybody. We don't
have one entrance because it's a building that once, like I said, was used for storage so
people are able to come in and out. We've had instances where a drunk, homeless man
just walked straight in with his beer, bust his beer bottle on the floor, wants to, you know,
because he drops it, he wants to play with the children. And these are things that are very
difficult for us to deal with. So it's, it's really difficult for me. It's like having a little
goldfish and there's a cat. I always feel like somebody's about to get to our children. So
I just really wanted to make it a clear point with everybody. If we're looking to make
cuts, I don't believe that for our expansion in Lahaina it's the area to do it. It has priority
to make those children safe and that's my major concern over there.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Becraft. Members, any questions for our testifier? Hearing
none. Thank you for your testimony this morning. Jeff Kihune, followed by Roger
Agdeppa.
MR. KIHUNE: Good morning, Committee Chair Kane, Council Chair Hokama, and Council
Members. I am Jeffrey Kihune. I represent the Hawaii Fire Fighters Association. I'm
the Chairman there. I'm also doing both sides. Actually, I'm the HazMat Captain for the
department at this time. I was trying to elaborate on previous captains that had spoke
earlier about the overwhelming responsibilities of the ... of the rescue. I won't go into
details because I know it's gonna, you know, reiterate what everybody said earlier, but I
just wanted to elaborate that the overwhelming responsibilities that the rescue guys do
does definitely reduce safety in performing their duties. I've been HazMat Captain for
going on almost three years and the amount of ... to get to where I am as a Specialist, the
amount of training and time as far as experience, took me probably about I'd say about
ten classes. I've already gone to the national level. I'd just like to reiterate that ... that a
lot of these guys on the rescue don't even have time to do that ... to go that far. And
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that's where the HazMat Team really needs to be stepped up in that way. The reason
being is because on the national level it's being truly supported on the Federal level
through grants. And I know you guys worried this ODP funds and in the request that we
had put in for the expansion positions there is no request for any major equipment
because ODP will fund almost $1 million of the equipment that's corning and it's already
corning regardless if we have a team or not.
Now to fully support that equipment that's corning that's where the request comes in for
15 personnel and it was already explained to you. But just, just on that Federal level, it's
mandated by a lot of Federal regulations that 15 personnel is a required personnel. The
way that we operate putting people at risk, the two in, two out thing, is a major issue. To
actually go in and respond to an HazMat incident and actually do emergency . . .
emergency rescue, we can't even make an entry if you don't have at least four ... four
personnel and the fifth personnel as I had stated in the request was the fifth personnel is
normally and that's nationwide, the captain that's assigned to the HazMat division, I
mean HazMat Team Response, will be taken away from his crew nine out often times or
even more. Because of his specialist training he'll actually become the Incident
Commander of the incidence which doesn't allow him to be with his crew. That happens
across the nationwide from learning about that. I just wanted to touch bases on some
duties that actually will go with this HazMat that maybe wasn't touched on basically.
Responding to all HazMat incidents rehabilitation is a big thing in our department. We
just adopted a policy last year that's been tasked to the 40-hour bureau. Rehabilitation
would be afforded on this HazMat Team as far as responding to all large brush fires, all
two-alarm fires. Tremendous responsibility and we need to step up our areas in rehab
and our personnel.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. KIHUNE: Supplemental manpower for Engine Companies, Ladder Companies, and even
the Rescue Companies so it's kind of like we, you know, a secondary type of training for
both, provide rapid intervention, confined space like was mentioned earlier. And on the
planning and design side is very ... like to hit to this because we work ... I work with
the LEPC on working on planning and development for our Local Emergency Planning
Commission that is afforded to the guys, especially going out and do actual preplanning
on EHS Facilities that we have. We have . . . currently, we have eight facilities.
Extremely Hazardous Substance is what the EHS stands for. And you know, with the
amount of training that you heard that these guys do it's they're not been able to get out
there and preplan what they need to preplan. We work at the Homeland Security on the
weapons of mass destruction and TSA on doing a lot of tabletop exercise which is
required once every quarter.
MS. REVELS: Four minutes.
MR. KIHUNE: Getting these guys all together and to afford them that ability to present it on a
team level and getting it dedicated, I would appreciate that.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Kihune. Members, any questions for our testifier?
Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So Captain, tell us this morning, if this is so important, why didn't
the Chiefs make sure it got in the Budget? Or isn't it not in the Mayor's proposal?
MR. KIHUNE: I concur with you on that. I really can't explain it for the Chief but it was ...
we did negotiate this at the ... that was reviewed, the Chief s budget that was reviewed
by the commission. We did come up with some, you know, some give and take. I
presented the 15 personnel and he went from there and presented his budget to the
Mayor, and apparently, you got the Budget that there was no HazMat, period. So from
15 it went to zero. Wish I could explain it a little bit more in-depth but that's the basis of
it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Interesting. You know, if this is going to happen, it's gonna be on a
Council initiative.
MR. KIHUNE: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Captain.
MR. KIHUNE: Appreciate it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Hearing none. Thank you for your testimony this
mornmg.
MR. KIHUNE: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Next to testify is Roger Agdeppa, followed by Alma Aiwohi.
MR. AGDEPP A: Good morning, Ladies and Gentlemen. My name is Roger Agdeppa.
here
on behalf of the Maui Fire Department and
testifying for a dedicated HazMat Team.
Thanks to the department some of my credentials are ... I've been in for 13 years, two
years on Rescue as a Fire Fighter II; two years in the HazMat Bureau working for Jeff
Kihune as his driver, and when he's not ... when he's at training or on vacation, I'm the
Acting Captain for HazMat; two years as a HazMat instructor; five years as a HazMat
Techinician; four years on the Hawaii Urban Search and Rescue Team that helped out
with the Kauai emergency; and recently I just completed the Confined Space Rescue
Technician class.
I'm just going to reiterate what some of the guys said up there for a HazMat Team. Some
of the responsibilities that they have ... that we will have is as a HazMat Team we'll be
responding to all emergency calls regarding HazMat materials incidents on highways,
commercial establishments and properties, agriculture facilities, institutions, residences,
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and other occupancies that house or store hazardous materials. In addition to that we'll
be identifying . . . identifying, isolating hazardous materials, assist in evacuation of
unprotected personnel from the hazardous areas. We'll coordinate and assist with the
removal oftoxic materials, assist with establishing hazard control zones, decontamination
facilities for contaminated and exposed persons can be decontaminated. We'll participate
in fighting fires, rendering emergency medical treatment, monitoring for air quality
during salvage and overhaul work after fires, hazardous material incidents and other
related incidents. We'd also assist in hazardous material storage inspections with Fire
Prevention Bureau of Tier 2 facilities and industrial, institutional, and commercial
facilities. We'd participate in classroom training, field drills and exercises, and training
sessions in fire fighting hazardous materials, first aid, decontamination .. .(change tape,
start 1B). . . monitors and materials in mitigation of hazardous materials incidents,
maintain hazardous materials apparatus equipment and apparatus facilities and grounds.
And on the supervision of our HazMat Captains, we may train fire fighters in HazMat
mitigation techniques, decontamination procedures, and participate in and perform other
duties applicable to fire company and station operations. In addition to that we have our
weapons of mass destructions discipline which magnifies hazardous materials incidents at
least by ten times. We would research, evaluate, and order specialized personal
protective equipment and mitigation equipment.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. AGDEPP A: Right now we instruct the following departments, Maui Fire Department
recruits and personnel, MPD, Maui Police Department recruits, Department of Water
Supply, Department of Wastewater Supply, American Medical Response, and Maui
Electric Company. In closing my testimony this morning on behalf of our ever changing
profession, including our WMD events, new chemicals and building materials, et cetera,
we ask for your support of our dedicated HazMat Team. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Agdeppa. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony.
MR. AGDEPP A: Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Next to testify is Alma Aiwohi, followed by Jim Smith.
MR. AIWOHI: Aloha, Council Members and Committee Chair Kane. My name is Alma
Aiwohi and I am representing the Hawaii Fire Fighters Association, the Maui Division,
and my intent today is to let you know that as a labor representative that we have had
many discussions and meetings with our Chiefs, our Administration, and let you know
that we do support the Chief s budget as was submitted. And we have had many
discussions and as was mentioned by Councilman Hokama, it has the . . . the HazMat
positions as everyone is speaking out today has been taken off ofthe Mayor's Budget that
was sent down. But we do . . . it was in the budget as we knew it last to be in our
meetings with the Chiefs. And that is why we are here today because we appreciate the
- 11 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 24, 2006

fact that you're affording us this opportunity to speak today and to hear our voices and
also we understand that it will be a Council initiative that if it does get put back in and we
appreciate that also. But again, my intent is to allow you the opportunity to know that we
as the labor personnel have met with our Chiefs and we do support the budget that was
submitted by our Chiefs. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Aiwohi. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
very much. Jim Smith.
MR. SMITH: Chairperson Kane, Members of the Maui County Budget Committee. We are in a
perilous time and the peril comes from leaders who refuse to accept the consequence of
decision-making. They make a career out of avoiding the consequences of not making a
decision or making a decision. This Budget is symptomatic of one of those kind of
career-minded people. You have been given misinformation, you have been given no
information, and the information you have been given has been incomplete and you are
expected to make a reasoned decision upon a Budget presented to you in a structure.
Now that structure is the Mayor, receives the consequence for what he puts in the Budget.
Now he didn't put in something in the Budget, he should receive a consequence. You
shouldn't be the Mayor and that creates disorder and that makes it difficult to have
confidence in the integrity of our political system.
This Budget submits to you a wish list. There doesn't seem to be any reasoned decisionmaking. Send me what you want, I'll send it on. That shirks the responsibility, but more
importantly, there is no consequence for that kind of application of power. Now if you
look, for example, at the $7 million bond issue for purchase of land, okay, you are told in
a commentary in the Maui News, okay, that the Mayor committed to using all
government powers required to restore sufficient water. Did the Mayor come to you and
seek from you approval of this settlement? No. You are threatened by this letter in an
indirect way by saying that they gave up significant legal rights for $7 million in a bond.
Why in a bond? We have a fund for environmental purchases, natural resources - why
debt? He comes to you with a Budget that reduces revenue and at the same time
increases debt when we have a debt service payment of $30 million a year. It feels good
to him. It feels good in Washington when the President cuts taxes, okay, and then
increases spending. This is what's happening here. He's cutting taxes and he's
increasing spending because it feels good. But it doesn't feel good in the long term. It
destroys our integrity as a system. We can't do that! The property rate is not the
problem.
MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MR. SMITH: Assessment mechanism is the problem. That's all. You make the rich richer
because they have the most expensive property and they get a lesser rate. That's what
they do! These people who feel good about what they're doing. I ask you not to fund $7
million in general obligation bonds for a gesture that you aren't even a part of that affirms
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an illegal exercise of power. Give 'em $10 in the Reserve Fund for Environment if you
want a gesture, but please protect the integrity of this process. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Smith. Members, any questions for Mr. Smith? Hearing none.
Thank you for your testimony this morning. Is there anybody else here in the chamber
that has not testified that would like to testify, now is your opportunity. Members, seeing
nobody approach the podium, without objections we're going to close testimony for
today's meeting.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. We'll close it up .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Members, at this time I'll ask staff to go ahead and pass out I guess a packet of
material which would include your Chair's opening remarks for this morning as we start
our deliberative process in discussing the way we're gonna go and the initial proposal
along with the actual proposal as line items in comparison to your Mayor's proposed
Budget. You will also see a packet, Members, of the Committee Members' Budget
proposals as was received by last week Friday approximately by the Members and it has
been broken down as to what the certain request were. The Chair will note that your
Chair of the Committee provided for you a balanced Budget with adjustments but it
comes out balanced. And then finally in your packet, you should have a Real Property
Tax Revenue Analysis, Mayor's proposed RPT rates, and your Chair's proposal. So,
Members, that's what's located in your packet and at this time I'd like to take the
opportunity to provide you with some opening remarks to your Chair's Budget proposal.
The Chair of your Budget and Finance Committee would first like to, Members, thank
you for your diligent work in reviewing the Mayor's proposed Budget for Fiscal Year
2007.
Based on the review we have conducted thus far it is apparent that the Budget and
Finance Committee faces major challenges and difficult choices in the deliberations that
will begin today. With housing and transportation costs at historical highs throughout
Maui County, working families are facing great financial stress. Both the Mayor and the
Council must be cognizant of the economic realities the County's residents are living
with everyday and County government must not unduly increase the financial burdens on
working families. At the same time, Maui County's economy and communities continue
to grow rapidly and County government needs to address major infrastructural needs.
Thus, the basis challenge is to strike an appropriate balance by minimizing the tax burden
on working families while also fulfilling the core responsibilities of County government.
In addition to reviewing the Mayor's $510 million budget proposal for Fiscal Year 2007,
the Committee is faced with the pressure of evaluating 15.7 million in the late budget
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amendments for Fiscal Year 2006. Specifically, the 10 million for the Kamole Weir
Water Treatment Facility, 4.5 million for the take-home-vehicle program for the
Department of Police, and the $1.2 million for equipment for the Department of Fire and
Public Safety. These late budget amendments submitted by the Administration created
potential complications for the Committee's review of the Mayor's proposed $510
million Fiscal Year 2007 Budget. But with the concurrence of the affected departments
and the Budget Director, the Committee has included these requests in its review of the
Fiscal Year '07 Budget. This did, however, result in what might be termed as an inflated
budget. In effect, the Committee is charged with reviewing what is now a record $525.7
million budget proposal.
During the course of its review of the Mayor's proposed Fiscal Year '07 Budget
beginning on March 22nd , this Committee has appropriately exhibited deference to the
managers who know their agencies best while so aptly scrutinizing each budgetary
request. Your Chair is confident that this balance will continue as the Committee makes
decisions on the Mayor's proposal ... proposed Budget this week.
In order to provide for a starting point for the Committee's deliberation, your Chair's
proposal is attached. This proposal's main objective ... objectives are to provide tax
relief for working families and to exhibit a commitment to fulfilling core County
responsibilities.

First, on tax relief for the working families. The Mayor's proposal and your Chair's
proposal both include forms of tax relief. There are significant, philosophical, and
practical differences between the two proposals in how tax relief is to be provided. The
Mayor's proposal for an across-the-board diminution, excuse me, diminution, excuse me,
in property tax rates could be fairly characterized as regressive. Owners of multi-milliondollar properties would receive windfalls while some other homeowners would receive
minimal, if any, benefit. The Mayor's tax proposal could be seen as a blunt instrument
because it does not appear to provide targeted tax relief to middle-income families.
Your Chair's proposal attempts to provide a more progressive form of tax relief for Maui
County's working families. For property taxes, the concept is to both cut tax rates from
Fiscal Year '06 and raise homeowner's exemption which together would help mitigate
the continuing rise in property assessments faced by many homeowners. Your Chair's
proposal includes a 50 percent increase in homeowner's exemption from 200,000 to
300,000. This is the essential component of your Chair's proposed for tax ... proposal
for tax relief. Compared to the Mayor's proposal, your Chair's approach would provide
approximately $2.6 million in additional property tax relief to homeowners and most of
this relief would be targeted towards middle-income families.
Your Chair's proposal funded this additional tax relief in part by shifting some cash
projects to bond projects. In evaluating capital improvement projects, the use of cash
funding has been prioritized for projects that are likely to be completed relatively quickly
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with bonding provided for larger, longer tenn projects. This represents prudent fiscal
policy.
In addition, your Chair's proposal includes an 11 percent cut in the gas tax down to 16

cents per gallon.
As far as the commitment to fulfill core County responsibilities throughout this year's
Budget Session, the Committee has heard from dozens of testifiers and even County
officials about the failure to provide sufficient infrastructural ... infrastructure within the
County's growing communities. Therefore, your Chair's proposal supports major
investments in water supply, wastewater, transportation, and recreation
the main
responsibility ... responsibilities of the County under law. The County needs to get a
better handle on these basic duties to ensure that legal requirements are being fulfilled
which will also ensure that the County's bond rating remains high, the local economy
remain strong, and most important, that residents see a real improvement in their quality
of life.
For public safety, your Chair's proposal includes support for new fire stations in Haiku
and Kaunakakai, new wireless communications systems for Police and other first
responders, and new personnel and equipment including $621,000 for a Hazardous
Material Team for the Department of Fire and Public Safety.
To enhance the County's water resources, your Chair's proposal supports the County's
acquisition of Na Wai Eha watershed area from Wailuku Water Company, fonnerly
known as Wailuku Agribusiness, in coordination with the Office of Hawaiian Affairs
(OHA), and Earthjustice. It is unfortunate that time and money may have been lost
because of the Administration's failure to provide infonnation and make the Council a
full partner in this project. But in collaboration with OHA, Earthjustice, and other
organizations, the County has an opportunity to playa role in a historic effort to protect
Central Maui water resources with great environmental, cultural, and economic benefits
for generations to corne.
Furthennore, your Chair's proposal provides support for an innovative project to enhance
the County's ability to develop new water sources via a groundwater exploration drilling
program. The Council's Water Resources Committee received a fascinating presentation
on this project earlier this year from Professor Donald Thomas of the University of
Hawaii. Professor Thomas has authored a paper entitled "New Insights into Hawaii's
Groundwater Hydrology", which appears to hold great promise and to be worthy of an
initial investment of $200,000.
Your Chair's proposal also supports major projects to Improve water, wastewater,
transportation, and recreation for our community.
Various other adjustments to the Mayor's proposed Budget, including requests from
Committee members, are included in the attachment.
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Your Chair's proposal is intended to address the main budgetary concerns for the
County's constituents for Fiscal Year '07
tax relief for working families and a
commitment to provide core County services. Again, this is just a starting point,
Members, and your Chair, of course, welcomes comments and revisions as the
Committee now moves forward with its deliberations. Thank you for your consideration
and your continued diligence.
Members, the Chair's request at this time is to solicit your remarks on providing you time
to go through the Chair's proposal and look through your packet. Are there any
comments before the Chair makes a recommendation and how to proceed from this point
forward? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I just want to say that it's been a
long, drawn out process in creating a proposal although we provided some inputs to you
at least that opportunity was provided us. I look forward in reviewing your proposal and
I look forward in our decision-making in the next week to come out with a budget that we
all can live with. So thank you very much, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. This may not be the time. You just
want comments on what you just said. You don't want to go into any detail?
CHAIR KANE: The intent, Ms. Anderson, is to provide you folks an opportunity to kind of soak
in what the proposal is and so my recommendation ... and I'll give that after giving all
the Members, but basically it's to give you folks time to absorb, see where we're at, and
then we can come back and start going through the bump and grind of the process.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, then just let me ask my question based on your-CHAIR KANE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --opening comments were and it might shortcut some of
the limited time we have if you have an immediate answer. I appreciate your efforts to
reduce the financial stress on our working families. But you know, a good portion of our
working families are not homeowners and their ... their take-home pay, a good portion
of it, is spent on paying for rent, and as we all know, the rental rates have escalated in this
County to what I think is a shameful and unfair burden on our working resident
population basically because of supply and demand. So I'm just wondering if you
addressed that, Mr. Chair, in the proposed rates that you've given us and just would ask
that you speak to that issue and how you may have addressed that.
CHAIR KANE: Sure, no, and the Chair appreciates your question. Members, if you'll note on
the first page of the detailed document, your Chair has proposed additional increases
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from the Mayor's initial increases. Specific to your question for improved residential, as
well as in apartment, which is I guess areas where you would find people who have
rentals in those areas, you'll note that from the Mayor's proposal on Line 8 where he
went from $5.86 per thousand down to 5.20, we included an additional reduction in that
area of 20 cents which would give you a dollar amount of an additional $1.282 million of
relief on that area. Also, in the apartment area, you'll see that it also went down to the $5
from the original or current rate of 5.86. Mayor's proposal was 5.20. We took it down
an additional 20 cents to realize a savings in that area of almost $1 million - 926,000. So
there has been some effort to provide some additional relief in those areas, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any other questions or comments? Mr. Hokama, good morning.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you for giving us this proposal that you have
worked very hard with your staff over the weekend and I appreciate the hours you and
your people have put on. I am like you. I have, you know, I continue to support your
efforts to provide real property tax relief, Mr. Chairman. I am supportive of your
proposal. Can you tell me how much decrease? I mean what are we down to from? You
know, the Mayor has proposed tax reductions,-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --but his overall real property tax increase is still 23 percent over this
year. Okay,-CHAIR KANE: I can respond.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --if you look at revenues - just at real property revenues. The Mayor
has proposed about a 23 percent increase over all categories as I understand what was
presented to us. How much have you been able to further give relief, Mr. Chairman, or
proposing relief, please?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for the question, Mr. Hokama. The Chair took into consideration
your comments, frankly, from last week and the 15 percent as a sustainable amount from
your perspective and the Chair took that to heart in discussing with staff our efforts to
provide additional relief. We were able to achieve in your Chair's proposal for this
morning an additional 4 percent so we were able to get halfway there and that would go
from 23 percent of the overall revenue take from property tax assessment down to 19
percent. As a dollar amount, and forgive me, I believe that the total difference comes out
to approximately - am I correct, staff, in saying $6.839 million as was the additional
reduction? If you note on the one handout, Real Property Tax Revenue Analysis, you
will note that the very bottom right hand comer figure would represent the additional
relief in your Chair's proposal and then it's broken down as far as on that final line
lettered "M" as where the relief is coming from. Now you'l1 note in homeowner,
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although we decided to have the rate a little higher than the Mayor's overall proposal, we
still reduced the rate from $3.50 to 2.50 and then applied the homeowner's exemption
which provided almost $6 million in relief for a net of approximately $2.6 million of
additional relief just in homeowner class. And we're able to achieve relief overall in the
seven out of the ten categories that were adjusted by the Mayor. So we followed the
Mayor's lead, if you will. There wasn't any real contention there. We felt that he was
trying to get that relief and he made his effort in his proposal. We just added to that and
tried to do a little bit more and make some adjustments throughout the budget.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. And I would say that I can
appreciate you looking at the apartment category and I think your proposal to further
reduce the rate . . . again, we are aware of the amount of renters that need to have
reasonable rent to continue to be part of our County's workforce, Mr. Chairman. So I can
support you in the direction you are going and I appreciate again the work that you and
your Committee has put forward this past weekend. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, and I'm sure the staff appreciates your comments. Thank you. Any
additional areas, Members, before the Chair makes a recommendation on how we
proceed? Hearing none. Members, without objections, the Chair is going to ask that we
take our recess for now and I will ask if two hours is enough time for you folks to eat and
absorb or we can go a little longer and come back at between 1:30, 2:00, 2:30. Is there a
preference? Mr. Molina, you have comment, please.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair, well, first of all, thank you for your work and
craftsmanship on this budget as well, Mr. Chairman. I would like if maybe 2Y2 hours at
least for me. Maybe if we could come back at 2:00 to give us more time to absorb this.
CHAIR KANE: Members, 2:00 is a number. Ms. Johnson, go ahead. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. That's fine with me. I just wanted to find out when
we're going through this if we have any questions because I noticed like there were a
couple things that aren't clear to me. Win staffbe available to clarify?
CHAIR KANE: Yes. We'll make sure that staff is available for you to answer some of the
general questions that we ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, because ...
CHAIR KANE: 'Cause we'll end up taking on a lot of questions during session because you'll
probably share questions with other Members.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and the only reason I just wanted to find out what was
in this year's budget and also some of the funds moving around what that meant because
with CIP my memory fails me sometimes from what we already have in that actually
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could be used from now until the end of the year. So as long as they're available that's
great.
CHAIR KANE: Staff will make themselves available to us.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Sure. Members, there has been a request for 2:00 is that, ... oh, 2:00. Okay,
Members, we'll look at 2:00 when we reconvene the Budget and Finance Committee for
today's meeting. Okay, Members, Committee stands in recess until 2:00 p.m .
. . . (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

11:32 a.m.

RECONVENE:

2:06 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay, Members, we are reconvened from our recess. Thank you
very much. For your information, Members, we have a revised as of 1:57 p.m., I believe,
the Committee Members Budget Proposals FY '07 Budget. Chair apologizes on behalf
of the Committee and the staff for not having those numbers to you initially but what you
have now is the corrected numbers that we did receive as of last week. So Chair
apologizes. I believe staff, ifl'm not mistaken, there was one smaller item that was ... -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Missed.
CHAIR KANE: --that was missed that got put back that we're gonna make note of and adding
in, is that correct? Okay. The Halemua I mean, excuse me, Hale Maui. Hale Maui,
Members. The Chair again apologizes. We didn't note that there were five requests for
the Hale Maui proposal to be added in and the Chair and staff were remiss in not catching
that. So we apologize in that something that based on the comments by your Chair last
week that if there's a majority of Members that reflect something that it would be put in.
So we'll make sure that gets put into the appropriate place. So I wanted to make that
know . . . note up front for an of you. Okay, Members, any questions or comments
before we begin? Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Since we were just talking about the revised Member
Proposal I think that as we were preparing our submittal for the 4:30 deadline on Friday
and I think we all experienced that it was very rushed and there were a number of
responses that we had not yet received from the various departments. We just tried to do
the best that we could given the circumstances and that it had been my intention to bring
up as we went through here what other things I might ask the Committee to consider. So
I didn't send in any further corrections. Probably would have taken the staff another
three hours to put them in ... no, it would have been a more lengthy process but I would
hope that you, Chairman, and the other Members are open to other proposals as we're
going through the budget itself.
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CHAIR KANE: The Chair has no objections with considering that-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --and understanding the timeframe that we put you folks under. Some of you, I
know, weren't able to get forward things that perhaps you wanted to and so that's why I
kind of gave the caveat that try get the bigger things in and then the little things we'll
have the time or we'll make the time to get through and debate and make the final
decision here as a recommendation. So thank you, Ms. Tavares. The intent was to
provide additional opportunity.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much and I just wanted similar to
Hale Maui just a couple of lines below that, Ke Ipu Kekui. Would staff be able to check,
maybe not right now, but as the discussion continues whether or not there were four
Members who had supported or provided support for this particular item?
CHAIR KANE: I think on the revised we're showing that there are four Members for the full
amount of 50,000 and one Member ... (change tape, start 2A) . .. for the 25,000 amount.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: So ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. I see it.
CHAIR KANE: So it will be a part of a discussion so obviously, you know, that's something
where, forgive me,
sorry, this is something
come forth for additional
discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional questions? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chairman, just as an FYI, this latest revised proposal I
mean we're gonna have more, right? Because I think my staffwas still working on some
revisions. There were some numbers that weren't put into this one so I don't know if my
staff got back in time with your staff. So we will have another revised one?
CHAIR KANE: Actually, no. This is simply to provide the Members with what we received as
of last week Friday late. I believe one of the Members provided us something and we
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were remiss in getting some of those incorporated in. So we're doing the revision out of
respect for what we laid out as far as the deadline. Any revisions now, Members, it's
gonna take place on the floor here and it won't be put on to some memo that's going to
be distributed. That will end up on our main working sheet which is the line item and
that's where we'll have our discussion and our, you know, our revisions. So for your
sake, Mr. Molina, it's not necessary for your staff to go prepare additional revisions for
the staffto go give for this. That's ... we're done with that already.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any additional questions or comments, Members? Hearing none.
Before we start, Members, I wanted to just state as your Chair I will do my best to try and
keep everybody on track without confining you folks, but again, I will remind you that
we do have a clock that's ticking. The Chair is mindful of your various needs outside of
this although I know we're committed to this. Some of us have better tolerances than
others so please recognize that your Chair has to take all of that into account in trying to
keeping us moving forward. The Chair is going to recommend that as we've done in the
past and I hope that we can continue is to that we go take the first pass now. We'll go
right through the whole document. We'll go through ... if there's any objections or
concerns regarding the numbers that are being proposed, we can make note of those
objections and then we'll get back to that. We want to try and go through and see where
we have no objections on the floor to those items so that way we can have those numbers
considered as more solid working numbers as we go through. So, Members, if you don't
mind and without objection, if we can go ahead and start from Page 1 and work our way
through this document and then we can start working towards identifying the items that
we need to sit down and really have the ... the discussions on that we can identify ...
isolate those and then put those in for a discussion at a little later point. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We're following this document?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct. So we will follow Exhibit 1 as of 4124/06, 9:04 a.m., which
starts offwith Estimated Revenues and that's gonna be our major working sheet and then
all of your attached reference points. Any additional questions or comments, Members?
Okay. Here we go, Members.
Starting off under Real Property Taxes, we have the Mayor's amount, the Circuit Breaker
which was proposed by Mayor, and then we have the revisions. The first revision under
Line 6 is the amount that's being deleted because we have a certified amount which
ended up being a little more than 350,000 less so that's what that number reflects. From
Line 8 through Line 15, or excuse me, through Line 14, addresses your classification
areas that have adjustments, and then Line 15 represents your Homeowner Exemption
which provides you with reductions as well. You'll note that under Line 14, the increase,
the reason why you don't have a parentheses ... everything in parentheses is deductions,
everything without parentheses are adds. The 3,301,490 number on Line 14 represents
because the rate that your Chair is proposing is higher than the Mayor's proposed rate but
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both of them obviously are lower than the 350 rate that we're starting off with. Any
questions in this area, Members, on the rates? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I think what we've done in the past is we've kind of not
focused too much on this area until we figure out the other side of the expenses and then
we've come back to this. Is that what your intent is or do you want to discuss these rates
up front?
CHAIR KANE: The intent was to, well, in the past if my memory serves, we try to do our best
to set revenues first, and then go back and then once we went through on the expenditure
side, if there were adjustments that exceeded what we wanted to do as a policy on the
revenues, then we came back and decided what we're gonna do with revenues. So,
Members, if you can correct me, I think that was how we've done it in the past. But
we've at least taken the first glance at revenues, tried to set the policy where we're gonna
be on deciding if these numbers are something that you feel comfortable with or you
want to see adjustments to, we can discuss that now. And then go through expenditure
side and if there's adjustments, we try to figure out our expenditure side until we pretty
much exhaust our options. And then if we're over, we come back to revenues and make
adjustments. If we're under, we come back and make adjustments, et cetera. So that's
the best way I can answer you, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. No, and I was just trying to recall because I know
we've done it different ways at different times. But I thought that one of the things we
did was we just focused on real property tax and we dealt with some of the rates I guess
later on but it doesn't matter. Anyway, my questions would be on some of the rates
where there is decreases like improved residential in apartment, commercial, industrial,
ag I could understand, but I would like to kind of know the rationale for I guess going
down on some of those, particularly with commercial and industrial, with the business
climate being what it is right now. And I just would like to understand the rationale for
coming down on those.
KANE: Okay. Thank you. The rationale was with the discussion of a 23 percent
increase in revenues across-the-board
the Mayor's proposal and with ... and
sorry, I know you weren't here earlier this morning because that question was a general
question. The intent was to try and achieve a lesser overall increase in the revenue and so
what we've achieved with what you're looking at for the Chair's proposal is a 19 percent
overall increase versus a 23 percent. So we were able to get about halfway to what
Member Hokama said was made as an observation of trying to get towards a lesser
increase in overall revenue.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: And I think the term was or the amount was 15 percent. We used that as a goal
to try and achieve and we got halfway there. And so again, this is the starting point and
we've looked at where the Mayor felt that reductions were needed and we focused in on
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those areas and provided additional relief to accomplish the additional 4 percent in
reductions.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I think I guess my thinking would be that
because some of these areas, not all of them, but some of the areas in terms of I guess the
values to me I think that if they're reflective of what the assessment is, then that's, you
know, then that's appropriate. I know I have heard some individuals like on Front Street
are really upset with commercial rates because it's astronomical. So I have no problem
moving forward with this but I think Councilmember Anderson may have some questions
too. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: If you note, just to respond to your final comment, Member Anderson, to help
you get a little more clarity as to why we did what we did. I think in the commercial rate
area with respects to your comment on the Front Street, specifically the Ichiki property
scenario was brought forward, and so this was at least an attempt to provide additional
relief to small business as well as commercial property owners who are, you know, the
full spectrum of business owners-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --by providing them additional relief. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes. Thank you, Chair. You know, as this will be our
working document between now and the end of this discussion or this Budget Session, I
would appreciate if you could insert under Real Property you've only got those things
that are being recommended for an increase or a decrease which leaves out two categories
that are static and that is timeshare and hotel resort. And I would request that you put
those in so that we have that in this line up for discussion should any of us choose to
make some adjustments in those two categories.
CHAIR KANE: The intent is that you will be receiving revised ... every day revised copies and
so as part of the discussion, Member Anderson, as an example one of the areas where
there was no adjustment there's a consideration of an adjustment and we go through that
discussion, then it would be included. But it doesn't exclude you from being able to
bring it forward as a discussion, as an example for a hotel or timeshare or conservation I
think was the third one that didn't. If there's any adjustment recommendation in this
area, then by all means if it comes, when it comes forward, and the Members agree to
have an adjustment, then we can plug it in. The reason we're doing this is because it's
simply to show the difference between the original proposal and your Chair's proposal
which obviously will get changed as we go along. So we understand that. It's only
meant to show the changes and at this time those categories aren't reflecting a change.
But once we do change, if it does, then we'll throw it in there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I understand that, Mr. Chair.
appropriate to discuss any ... any further changes?
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CHAIR KANE: I think because we're trying to set the policy on revenues now is a good time
since we're in this area of classifications. It would be appropriate to bring it forward. So
now is your chance.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair ...
CHAIR KANE: By the way, Members, and I'm sorry for interrupting, that's why we have this
sheet, if you recall. It has all the breakdowns. So again, just for your information,
Ms. Anderson. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I have that, Mr. Chairman. Thank you. And the
reason I ask because, you know, I respect the process that you've set forward, Mr. Chair,
but I think that we need to consider specifically hotel in our discussions for setting
property rates because, you know, other than Kauai, and poor them they're still
recovering from, you know, Iniki actually, we have the lowest property rate for hotels in
the State. Yet, we enjoy the highest room rates, we enjoy the highest occupancy rates,
and you know, in this economic boom that the County is enjoying, the hotels are, you
know, they're reaping landmark profits, and I think that we can help share this burden by
distributing the responsibility for property taxes to those who can most afford it. Our
working families cannot afford an increase. Many small businesses cannot afford an
increase. But the hotel industry certainly can afford an increase.
So I mean, you know, you're proposing a 10 cent deduction matching what the Mayor
has proposed from $8.30 last year to $8.20. And I'm sorry I didn't have a chance to go
back and look further to see what the, you know, the historic rate has been and where we
have changed it in the past, but City and County of Honolulu, their hotel and resort real
property tax rate is set at $11.37. We're set at $8.30 and giving them a 10 percent ... 10
cent reduction this year would make it $8.20. So I'm all for bringing that rate back up. I
don't think that they need a 10 cent reduction. That amounts to almost $900,000 relief
for the hotels. I don't see a need. That $900,000 should be reduced somewhere else, not
from the hotels, and so you know, I'm not ready to make a proposal as far as what I think
the increase should be. But you know, I'm leaning more towards $9.00 than reducing it
to $8.20. County of Hawaii, their real property tax rate for hotels is $9.85, and City and
County of Honolulu, $11.37.
So I think our hotels are getting a real break. And you know, come on, they need to, you
know, step up when times are good. They're enjoying, like I said, landmark profits right
now. So they should be willing to put more into our General Fund so that their visitors,
you know, can enjoy better public services that everybody in Maui County is paying
towards. And you know, I also have something to say about timeshare but my main
concern at this point is that we look at something a little bit more realistic and fair in
regards to the hotel rate. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional comment in this area? Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. My comment is that the, you know, the rates ... real
property tax rates are just one part of the equation when you're looking at revenues. The
other part is the appraisal and I think the reason that we're looking at rates all across-theboard here is because the appraisals have been so staggering in Maui County, which I
think is different than any other County and I believe that from this hotel category that
their increase between '06 and '07 is like 34 percent or 35 percent. So we have to look at
the actual dollars that are coming in and what that percent increase is in addition to
looking at the real property tax rates. So I just wanted to, you know, throw that into the
mix, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: One of the things that would be helpful so that, you know,
'cause just looking at the numbers and applying the percentages is not going to be helpful
because I would like to see if we have the figures for what new properties came on line
that contributed to this or was none of the increase due to new properties coming on line
'cause like Kaanapali Ocean Resorts, some of their properties opened their doors that
were not previously calculated in last year's mix. So if that's, you know, not the case I
would just ... I don't know if staff can find that out, but that's what would be helpful.
CHAIR KANE: No, and I agree, and I think the body agrees. The more information we have to
decide the better, but you know, we'll do our best-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --to try and locate information for you ... for any of the Members for that
matter and the questions that are posed. And if we can get it great, then we can use it to
help us but if we can't, then please understand that we can't and so we're gonna be put in
a position where we have to decide anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and also if staff can't get it, if they could
know, and then I will just try and get it on my own and then provide it to the body.

me

CHAIR KANE: That will be great. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Any other comments in this area? I know
Ms. Anderson is bringing up primarily one of the two classifications for discussion in
making an adjustment to the proposal that's before you. Any additional comments in this
area, Members? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, Chairman, I would just share my thoughts on it regarding the
various property tax categories. I think for, for us, Mr. Chairman, it would be prudent to
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look at, especially with the hotel category, you know, we also gave a specific large grant
to our Visitors Bureau and they have been ... those that have questioned whether or not
we should give that grant. Well, if you look at how much the TAT brings in because of
our investment, and then of course we need to balance it off with the property tax that
they also pay, it is not as simplistic as, as we may want it to be. You know, we have a
sophisticated economy. We have a sophisticated taxation program and how it relates to
grants and other parts of the County's Budget.
So I would just share with my colleagues that the rate by itself for this County is
important to our County but for me what the other counties rates are in the same category
has no meaning. They're in a different situation. They've made different choices on
where they wanted their county to go and it doesn't apply to us, Mr. Chairman. And that
is why in my opinion, we're still the most fiscally sound government entity in the State of
Hawaii because of the choices we've made. And so the rates reflect where we are and
what we've made choices on in the past. Kauai made different choices. City and Council
... City and County has made different choices. Big Island has made different choices.
So for me, my experience, the rate by itself is meaningless. It's a part of a formula and
we need to look at the formula if we want to bring fair adjustments, Mr. Chairman.
But I am with you, during my tenure as the Budget Chairman, I believe it's more
important to set the revenue first of what we feel this County can afford to pay in the next
fiscal year. Because I don't think anybody budgets the other way around even in their
own homes, Mr. Chair. You don't budget your expenses first and then say, well, I guess
then I need to change ... I'm gonna change my job to cover my expenses, I'm gonna go
do this. Most people look at what they get coming in first and then making choices
where they want their monies to go and I think we're following what I believe
homeowners, families that deal with their restricted funds, do it the same way that you
are planning to have this Committee do. And I support that direction and tone that you
are setting, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any additional comments? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
Chair, back when we
Finance here talking
about real property tax, they handed out a chart to us that showed the values and the
percent increases compared with the '06 certified revenues and I point out in that hotel
category, for example, it had the second largest increase at 34.07 percent increase. So it
went from 52 million in '06 to 70 million in '07 so I think that if Members can either pull
this out or we can have this ... I can copy it again because I know we had tons of paper
for the Members to look at as we're looking at these real property tax in all categories
what has been the impact. Timeshare and I don't know what that's based on, it was a 49
percent increase over last year. And Industrial, for example, was a 5 percent increase;
and Conservation Land was a 1.5 percent increase; Unimproved Residential, you know,
23 percent increase. So I think this chart is very helpful in us ... for us to help us make
those decisions if we could, you know, bring this forward if we're going to talk
specifically about these different categories and the rates ... rates and appraisals.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Any further questions or comments in this area
regarding adjustments to any of the classifications that's being proposed? Hearing none.
Members, we're gonna move on into as a separate item not part of the classifications, but
the Homeowner Exemption which the proposal is to increase by 100,000 from 200,000 to
300,000 and this is the dollar amount that's bracket ... parentheses $5.941 million in
reduction of revenue. Any questions or comments or adjustments in this area?
Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. I believe for the current year either the
Budget Office, Mr. Ginoza, or Finance Department was able to give us I believe under
homeowners ... the PITTs, number of PITTs in each category by percentage and there
was one category interestingly enough, Mr. Chairman, I think it was over a thousand
parcels or what we call PITTs that had negative valuation, if I believe, net affect after
homeowners exemption was applied.
So my question is with your proposal,
Mr. Chairman, does that ... are we anticipating enlarging that, that subcategory and
then how it balances off to the rest? I don't know if the staff has been able to make some
calculations and projections but I would just like to ask that question, please.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taguchi, if you can provide some comment and I have a very brief
comment to that, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, increasing the homeowner exemption to 300,000 will affect
properties that are $300,000 and below by pushing them to what is called the maximum
... the minimum real property tax which currently exists at $60. As long as their total
valuation is less than a little over $300,000, they would be subject to the minimum tax.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: When did we set the minimum tax at that rate, Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: It was set a very long time ago, and unfortunately, we've missed a posting to
make an adjustment on that item, but you know, that's something that this body can look
at because it's a pretty long time that it's been adjusted. It was set back ... 90's?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: You know, so that's something that we ... timing-wise we're not able to
achieve. But we did look and just to add to the additional remarks because we're both on
building as well as land value, the building value gets the exemption, not the land value
so combined anything that's 300,000 or less with this homeowner exemption proposal of
300,000 would be subject to the minimum tax of $60. So anything over and above that,
then the land value assessment would kick it up to whatever the value ends up being over
and above the $60. So I'll leave it at that.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And Chairman, if ... may I just have as a follow-up, please. And I
would just state before I ask you my next question, Mr. Chairman, that I am of like mind
in that I believe in trying to give the exemption to the lower end of the spectrum which
we have tried ... my estimate is for the last eight years. Mr. Chairman, have you also
considered whether or not with the exemption portion of your proposal, whether or not a
cap on valuation should be also that maybe properties over one million, $1.25 million
will not qualify for home exemptions?
CHAIR KANE: If the reference is to what Mr. Bruce Erfer, I believe, provided for us as part of
his remarks to us. We did take a look at it, and I believe and I may ask for assistance
from Mr. Taguchi, it's incorporating that ... the application of it has some challenges
that we had some discussion about that I think would put us in a ... would not put us in a
position of a deliberative body and instead being more throwing something in not
understanding how it would make some impact. So we felt that, unfortunately, it would
not be prudent for us to put that in until we have a better understanding of its impact, and
if we did do that, the discussion should take place outside of this next four, five days.
And so that's why we decided in the end not because we were trying to get it
implemented but it just ... we didn't know how it would impact the high guy. If you cut
the high guy back down, we wouldn't know based on the documentation that we've
already received as a Committee what that impact would be and without knowing that
impact, if we put it there without understanding that, then our numbers would not be
accurate. And so we felt that it was not in our best interest to do it until we have a better
grasp of the impact on the people who would be capped. So sorry if it's a little longer but
the question, you know, it was a challenging one for the Committee and the staff.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, Chairman, I just appreciate that you and your staff did take a
look at it and see ifthere was possible application for this budget proposal.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson, excuse me, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. On the Circuit Breaker have we considered any kind of
adjustment on that one or would that not be appropriate in this forum?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: I believe the Administration sent to Committee a bill to reduce the Circuit
Breaker Tax Credit to I believe 2Yz percent of adjusted gross income. However, any
adjustment including the Mayor's proposed adjustment to Circuit Breaker Tax Credit
would be for Fiscal Year 2008. The problem is that the qualification for the Circuit
Breaker has occurred as of December 31 st of the ... of 2005 so it's very difficult to go
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back and try to retroactively adjust the Circuit Breaker rate. So even as the Mayor has
proposed it will be ... it will provide relief in 2008, not 2007.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right, and I was just trying to make a determination if it
would have any I guess bearing or if it would apply at all and from what you're saying, it
has no applicability within this Budget cycle.
CHAIR KANE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. That's all I wanted to ... (change tape, start 2B) . ..
know. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: The Chair intends to because of that bill that we've received we've also looked
at additional information to actually look at whether 2Yz or even less based on other
information that we've received. So we'll make sure that that's something that's brought
into the Budget and Finance Committee for further discussion, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further discussion on the Homeowner Exemption part, Members? Any
request for adjustment at this time? Up, down, or remain the same? Okay. Seeing none.
We'll ... I'm sorry, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, and I guess we can come back to this but I'm still
concerned about those I guess the people that fall into that category that Ms. Anderson
was talking about earlier, the people that are not homeowners but that they own property.
So would that be Improved Residential?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct. So in our opening remarks and I'll just reiterate very briefly
that we took note of Ms. Anderson's original question of the renter and how ... what
impacts did we have in our proposal. If you'll note on Line Number 8 and Line Number
9, we followed the Mayor's proposal of the original from $5.86, the Mayor proposed
5.20. We made an additional adjustment down to $5 even, which would represent if you
go across on Line 8 and 9, approximately $2.2 million of additional relief.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and the tragedy is we have no way of knowing
whether they'll pass along our generosity-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --to the poor renters. So ...
CHAIR KANE: Until we have a mechanism in place, yeah, but at least we're trying to take ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and I understand that. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for addressing that. My
one concern in regards to that particular item is that how do we ... how do we determine
that the renter is a low-cost housing or Section 8 renter? In other words, is there a show
of proofthat the homeowner is renting to a person that is seeking affordable housing?
CHAIR KANE: In the context of the adjustments that have been made in this proposal with
respects to the Mayor's proposal, no, we don't have the ability to look at that ... that
breakdown. And I don't know if staff would have any additional information, but again,
in the context of what we have in front of us, no, it's pretty much an across-the-board for
the whole classification that provides that ...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I think what I'm looking for is show of proof that you're
renting to a person with low income then we give you the credit.
CHAIR KANE: And that would be more towards applying it in the policy that is derived from
this body?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: That's not something that we would be able to do.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Right now?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, right now or in this deliberation.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: This basically sets a tone for the relief and then we would have to go beyond
this to go ahead and make additional adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, you know, I want to dispel a misconception out
there that it's only low-income people that are having a hard time making the rent.
You're looking at a Council Member who's paying almost 50 percent for rent of her take
home pay and that is way beyond the national standard and so I think, you know, it gets
down to supply and demand. What used to be, you know, a decent affordable cottage for
$800 a month is now $1,200 a month. And for people on fixed income, you know, that
extra $400 is corning out of food, it's corning out of, you know, essential living expenses.
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So, you know, those of you who are lucky enough to own your own homes may not have
the same perspective as people who have to rent. So, you know, I'm just here to say that
it is not low-income people that are having a hard time making the rent. Low-income
people are having a hard time making their first and last to get a rental and the rest of us
unless you're, you know, way above the median income and renting out of choice, you're
still having a hard time making the rent. So, and especially for those single mothers who
have one income. Don't forget them because 50 percent of the families out there are
divorced, and you know, one illness, one accident, you know, one layoff could put you,
you know, short of making your month's expenses.
So I just want to reiterate that because, yeah, we want to help people at the low income
but we want to help our every day working citizens who can't find decent rentals that are
affordable, number one, and you know, I don't want to get into all this because I'm gonna
get all heated up and bring up all kinds of things. But, you know, I have found as a renter
that over the years as the supply diminishes and the demand increases, those people who,
especially people who own property for investment purposes only and rent them out, they
become less and less inclined to put any kind of maintenance or investment into their
property.
So I have found for my own self and for people that I know, the choices out there, not
only are they more costly, and you know, slimmer pickings, but they're also not very
good quality because people aren't keeping them up. There's no reason to because
there's no competition. So I just want to put that out there as a long time renter who has
many friends who also rent. I think that we need to understand that it is a problem for
everybody that rents in Maui County unless of course you have, you know, an income of
$100,000 or more. But that's not very many people so I just want to remind people we
need to take care of all our renters. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further question or comment in this area,
Members? Seeing none. Moving down, Members, to your Charges for Current Services,
you have that dollar amount there of 79 million and change. Any revisions or comments
in this area?
The next area is Transient Accommodations Tax. Your Chair moved forward a proposal
with no adjustment to the Mayor's proposal in this area and just to provide a very brief
comment. Looking at the numbers since the proposal was made shows that there's
potential for this number to be adjusted, but again, the Chair left it the way it is and
provide you folks the opportunity to provide additional comment on what you'd like to
do in this area. I'll leave it at that. Any comments or questions in this area at this point
in time for the Transient Accommodations Tax on Line 22 of $20,150,000? Any request
for adjustment at this time? Okay. Seeing none.
Members, moving on to Public Service Company Tax of $5.2 million. License, Permits,
and Others, Line 30. Okay. No changes in those areas and no request for adjustments.
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Members, your attention now directed to Fuel and Franchise Taxes. Your Chair has
made a recommendation to reduce the Fuel Tax Rate from 18 cents to 16 cents and in this
area that would realize a reduction of revenue of $1,342,222 down to $17,837,778.
Comments in this area? And I see several hands go up so I'll start from this side of the
room and we'll move back this way in this case. Any comments on this, Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. This amounts to a two cents
per gallon reduction?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And I just want to know with the ... with all the streets and
roads that we're being requested to repair and resurface, you know, how ... what's the
thinking behind reducing the taxes or how are we going to otherwise try to catch up with
some of that improvement needed throughout our County?
CHAIR KANE: The challenge came down to, Member Tavares, on this particular item of what
your Chair felt was a lot of people in the community just expressing their frustration with
gas prices overall and us being the highest. And I've heard what Member Hokama said
earlier about irrelevancy to the other counties and where they're at with their tax ... gas
taxes. Big Island having an eight cent, 8.3 or something cent tax; Kauai's at 13; Oahu is
at 16.5; and we're at 18 cents a gallon. We took into account the constant questions that I
don't know if your offices have been getting but we've been getting 'em regarding why is
Maui so much higher in price and the best answer that we're able to give 'em is that
wholesalers feel that Maui has the demand, and therefore, they are able to ask that price a higher price than the other places. So I put it on the table, Ms. Tavares, as a request for
consideration, and again, it's open for discussion. So that's the best I can do to you ... to
your question.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I mean based on, you know, my own gas usage which
is about a fill up of 10 or 11 gallons per week, that would save me 22 cents a week and I
would rather use my 22 cents to see some other improvements in our roads. And also I
think if we want to help the driving public, we should focus more on our public bus
transit. And I think later on when we get to Department of Transportation there's a, you
know, proposal to increase like the Up country and HaikulPaia routes now instead of
waiting for two more years to implement those, and those may help our residents more by
providing an alternative means of transportation. I mean our gasoline just went up what
30 cents in one week? I mean this is and I understand everybody's frustration. I share
that frustration, but you know, the problem isn't with our taxes on the gas like you were
saying. It's because we have a high demand and the market will stand that cost. So, you
know, we're sort of at the mercy of what's happening with the wholesaling and retailing
of gasoline. I mean I find it hard to believe that it costs more to deliver gas to the Big
Island than it does to Maui. So, you know, that's a little bit out of our hands or a lot out
of our hands but at the same time I still see lots of requests for road improvements and
speed tables and speed humps. I don't know where that money's going to come from if
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we start reducing our gas tax. So I'm just concerned about that part, Mr. Chair. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: No. Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Mr. Pontanilla, comments in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I do share same comments like the
Member from Upcountry. The only other thing that I would like to add is that as far as
the estimated reduction, I know 18 cents is placed upon each gallon that we buy and
looking at today's driver because of the increase in prices for gasoline, are we running the
same consumption estimates as last year or previous years?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taguchi?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, in Administration's initial calculation of the Fuel Tax Revenues I
believe the Budget Director took that into consideration as to whether or not there would
be a reduced reduction in volume due to the high price of gas. Perhaps the Director can
speak to his estimate.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Director?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza, are you prepared to respond or would you like the question
restated? And good afternoon, it's nice to have you with us, Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Can I review my revenue worksheets?
CHAIR KANE: Would you like to have a few minutes just to respond to Mr. Pontanilla's
question that he has for you?
MR. GINOZA: Yes, please.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Pontanilla, we'll defer and come back on that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Additional comments?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No. My basic concern is that, you know, we got roads to
fix and the safety humps that we put in, speed tables as well. It's one of my concerns as
your Public Works Committee Chair. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think your proposal will raise a
lot of interesting discussion and there's been some good points made both at least at this
point from my colleagues with some concerns regarding it. I can support some type of
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relief at this point because, again, I'm going to try and bring this from the perspective of
a family person, okay. You have many of our local families or families from wherever
else. You have little kids and sometimes you gotta bring 'em in a bigger vehicle. You
know, you don't want to put your little infant in a small car. You know, as a parent you
thinking safety so you might want to go buy a bigger vehicle and it's not because people
want to buy a bigger vehicle because, you know, you want more power. You have to
think safety. So, as a parent, you buy these bigger vehicles because you thinking of
safety and especially if you have a larger family and so that's why you have to travel and
be safe. So a one cent, two cent reduction can make a difference in that family gas bill.
If this is about being concerned for our families who need to travel around, I think it has
merit and add to the fact that this County has the highest fuel taxes of all, and it does raise
for me suspicion as to how come. Like Member Tavares said, how come Hilo they can
cheaper gas tax and why not Maui, you know. I've heard from couple of constituents.
They said they have called some of the local oil officials and they said one reason was
because Maui has the highest fuel tax thus justifying higher prices. I don't know. But if
we reduced ... maybe consider a reduction which would not make us the highest taxed
County, then it would be hard for these oil companies to justify these higher prices,
Mr. Chairman.
And this is maybe, maybe a philosophical approach or a symbolic approach, if you will,
to provide some relief. It is relief nonetheless. Our citizens have been taking it on the
chin for the last couple of years with property taxes and as well as the gas taxes. So I'm
open to this type of consideration. It's about ... for those who do not have all of the
resources like some have. I look at it as a proposal to provide the have nots with a little
bit more have, if you know what I'm saying, Mr. Chairman. You have many people who
have small businesses that are dependent upon delivering goods and services and when
you tack on that extra cent or two to gas, they're going to hit the consumers with that.
So I think it's a broad-based approach in terms of providing relief for business as well as
the family. And yes, there may be concerns with regards to funding our needed road
projects and that's a good justification. But you know, when I hear from the person on
the street, they say, okay, you guys have added more tax to our fuel but what have you
done? We're not seeing the roads getting repaired as fast as we'd like to or the bus
service. We have only limited bus service right now. Look at Upcountry, no more right
now, Mr. Chairman. So, you know, I guess we have to balance this proposal out but at
this point, Mr. Chair, I'm open to this. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Mateo, any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And yes, I guess Member
Tavares brings up ... brings up real good, you know, like question. How do we take care
our roads? The question is not a new one. The question has been ongoing and that
question will continue to be ongoing for the next few years to come. At this particular
point in time, Chairman, for the sake of discussion I am able to support the Chairman's
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proposal. I think that when we take a look at who will be the recipients of relief, I think
John Q. Public rightfully so at this particular point in time is deserving of consideration
whether it be one cent or two cents off the gas tax. One point three million dollars in
savings at this particular point is questionable in terms of the impact that it will have on
various highway projects. A lot of our highway projects haven't even started. A lot of
the CIP's are still delayed. So if you're looking at just providing relief at this particular
point in time, then the Chairman's proposal is one that I can support. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Mr. Hokama, comments in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, obviously, you know, the Members have different points of
view, Mr. Chairman. You know, for our community we are paying 4.35,4.40 a gallon so
two cents make a difference? Possibly. But let me share with the Members this is the
reality on Lanai. Last year . . . this current budget year you had supported Lanai with
extra highway funds for resurfacing because we wanted to do ... look at Hima Avenue
which is the middle one, Members, between Fraser and Lanai. You supported Lanai
Avenue. You supported Fraser. Well, with the cost from as we've been hearing from the
various departments, both funding for those two projects cannot even take care Fraser
Avenue on Lanai. So do I want to see less revenues going into the Highway Fund for
resurfacing? No, but if that's the majority of the Members wishes, so be it. You know,
I'm part of a Legislative Branch that deals with heuristic decision-making.
But I just want to remind the Members also now, we can help save our resident ... motor
vehicle or vehicle driver by two cents a gallon but if the roads are just as bad and they
gotta go to the shop more often than not, how do you balance off against multiple
hundred dollar repair bills? So gas is one thing, Mr. Chair. Obviously, just like the other
parts of real property, this is a lot more complex than we may want it. Sometimes it's
easier just to be simplistic and say this equals this and if you do this, this is what happens.
Well, again, would be great if was that simple, Mr. Chairman. But for Lanai, people
want to see resurfacing accelerated and it takes money, and I'm sure other parts of our
County would like to see roads resurfaced that they haven't seen for some over 20 years.
And then again, we hear about the roads, whether we own it or not, that needs at least
some type of decision and if we make one choice, we're going to have to ante up
hundreds of thousands of dollars more to engineer and surface that road to a reasonable
standard. So, you know, I'm open. If this goes into, you know, gets movement,
Mr. Chairman, I'd be happy to see how we still gonna fund them those important
resurfacing projects. But something gotta give and I would rather have it come from the
fund that was created to take care of the specific portions of the budget. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and you know, I have mixed feelings because unless
we could do something substantial and meaningful, most of my constituents the last time
we had this debate they said, you know what, fix the roads fix the roads. They would
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rather ... when they did the calculation of what their savings would be out of their own
personal budget they said, you know what, that doesn't ... it doesn't cut it for me. The
savings has to be significant enough to impact the family's budget. So because we have
not enacted the traffic impact fees as yet, I know that at some point in time we may be
able to make an adjustment. But I just say leave it the way it is for the time being and fix
the roads because people are tired. Just as Mr. Hokama said, they're tired of getting their
teeth rattled out of their head. I get the complaints all the time. Lower road, I mean, you
cannot image how happy people were when we paved the lower road portion from Napili
Hau out. I mean people are happy. So, you know what, let's just try and deal with the
other stuff later on and if we can make an adjustment when we do enact traffic impact
fees Couritywide and get something to help supplement our roadway projects, you know,
I say just it's not meaningful enough and leave it the way it is. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Ms. Anderson, any comments in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, when you look at pennies saved, it doesn't
amount to a whole lot to individual . . . individually to people. But when you add all
those pennies up and you come up with $1.3 million, that's when the pennies become
valuable. So, you know, at this point I am in support of the proposal. I'd like to see
where we go because I think this is something that we could come back and revisit, but
for this point I'm fine with it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Carroll, your comments?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I doubt if anybody has a higher gas bill
than me on this Council. ... (laughter) . .. It's very doubtful. And I would pay about $2
more a week. My people, too, all the ones that I have talked to, as a matter of fact just as
late as yesterday, Sunday, are really concerned more about ... of course, nobody wants
to pay the gas bill. But as far as the County goes, I had a call yesterday and I met one
person yesterday about the road, the back side going toward Kaupo, and the real concern
seems to be very strong toward bringing the roads up to standard and repairing the roads
that are below standard.
just leave it like that. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Members,
just make a note based on the
discussion and then we'll move forward without any ... any proposal at this point but
for-MR. GINOZA: Mr....
CHAIR KANE: --your note, oh, I'm sorry. You're ready to respond, Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: Yes, before you move off this subject.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, Mr. Ginoza.
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MR. GINOZA: I just wanted to review in 2000 ... I just want to review the amount of revenue
that was collected and the direction that this tax is going. In 2004, the actual revenue was
like 12,900,000; in 2005, it dropped down to 11,900,000; and 2006, the halfway point is
less than the 2005, June 30th , I mean I'm sorry, six months collection. But we did do
some allocation in terms of, you know, looking at what is the history ofthe halfway point
and that's how we came up to the 12,080,000 as an estimate for 2006. And kind of
looking at the trend of, you know, this tax I think we expressed our concern that it seems
like the volume of gas is getting less and it could be attributed to the higher gas prices as
more people get, you know, more economy out of their travels. That a consideration that
has to be taken if you're gonna adjust the tax ... the tax rate, is that the amount or the
volume of gallons may go down as well so you may have kind of a doubling effect of
reducing the tax as well as reducing the volume. So in ... I think in our presentation we
did express a concern of, you know, looking at the volume of gas because the tax is based
on gallonage [sic] and not dollar sales.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for your comments, Mr. Ginoza, and I think that helps better for all
of us. The final note, Members, before we move on is your Chair's proposal did include
on Page 24, Line 1140, an increase in Countywide road repaving by $980,000. So there
was that consideration of increased paving and so that was plugged there. But again,
Chair understands the discussion and so we can move on, and if unless you folks are
ready to make a decision now on this based on the comments, it seems as though a
majority of the Members at this point are willing to keep it at the 18 cent figure instead of
adjusting it to 16 cents. And again, the Chair has no problem with initiating that
discussion to have a vote on it to ... I mean as far as we agree that we're setting a price
on this, Members. Are you folks prepared to do that? We can do that now and that's
fine. And that way, we have a revenue set number before we go into appropriations.
Comments, Mr. Carroll? Any additional comment? You're ready to make the
adjustment now and that way we can move on?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I am ready to make the adjustment now. I think it would be
appropriate.
CHAIR KANE: Members, we'll make the adjustment? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Just for clarification, so we're gonna
take a vote on this whether to keep it that ... the current rate of 18 cents versus reducing
it to 16?
CHAIR KANE: In a nutshell, the Chair is prepared to pose that question because we'd like to
set a revenue amount before we get into appropriations. Okay. And right now, the Chair
will count ... based on just the discussion alone, there's four people that would support
the reduction and there's five people that, you know, posed issues that, that would
support keeping it at 18 cents. And so, you know, it's gonna be a split. It's not a
consensus but the Chair understands that the proposal has less than a majority to have the
proposal stay intact. So I'm just putting it on the floor for the Members.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chairman, might I add as a suggestion if we could just go
through the rest of revenues and come back to this, and if need be, take a vote on it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any additional question or comment, Members? Okay. Thank you.
We'll go ahead and move on. Thanks for the discussion.
Under Special Assessments, Members, there's no adjustments.
comments here?

Any questions or

Moving on to the item as you will note in the Chair's opening remarks. This is one of the
three items that we had ... we felt should have been considered and so the Chair did in
his proposal add the State Revolving Loan Fund for Kamole Weir Water Treatment
Facility Clear Water Replacement and that proposal was for $10 million. So we did add
that back in for consideration.
Any questions or comments here, Members?
Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a general question, please, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can the Committee take as an understanding that all of the
remaining Fiscal Year '06 budget amendments .. .(change tape, start 3A) . .. funds will
be filed then and that we'll carry those things into this ... into your new proposal? Is
that how ... is that a good understanding on our part?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for the question. Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, the budget amendments that came in in the latter part ofthe Fiscal
Year '06 currently exists in the Budget and Finance Committee. Considering the Budget
and Finance Committee's current schedule, it will be highly unlikely that it could pass
out and go to
Council time for passage. The only opportunity before that to happen
would be for a discharge to Council floor for passage by the end of 6/30/06. So I guess
for practical reasons, the budget ... proposed budget amendment from the Mayor would
not be considered in the Budget and Finance Committee.
CHAIR KANE: We can discharge in other words.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand but for budgeting purposes, we are including those
numbers in this, your budget proposal, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: That is correct for the Fiscal Year '07.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Such as the Police Department, such as the Fire Department, such as
Water Department.
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CHAIR KANE: And Police.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
CHAIR KANE: The three, yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: So we could if they are favorably considered here in the Fiscal Year '07
Budget, which was part of your Chair's proposal to bring forward, if they have favorable
consideration here, then we will exercise whatever our options are from the Committee
standpoint to dispose of whether it's by filing through discharge to handle that . . . to
handle the docket for Budget and Finance Committee. And we'll of course talk to you
about it as our Council Chair and what would the best way to handle that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Chairman. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, to the $10 million add into this area?
Members, under Interfund Transfers there was a ...

Hearing none.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry. Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just one quick question for Mr. Ginoza.
CHAIR KANE: Please.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Did the Water Department calculate their debt service with the $10
million or already as part of their loan obligation, Mr. Ginoza? And I bring it up because
part of revenues is gonna be revenues from water rates and the increases that they have
proposed to this Committee for this coming budget. And the debt service of this 10
million which is a loan like bond ... bonds is borrowed money, has that been calculated?
MR. GINOZA: I have to confirm this but I believe the SRF loans the payment starts after
disbursements, I mean I'm sorry, the repayment of the loan debt service begins I believe
a year after disbursements start, but I need to confirm that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Ginoza. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any further questions in this area, Members? We're
moving on to line item for Interfund Transfers. There has been a revision of 146,996 and
this is as a result as some adjustments further into the Budget, Members, so this is just a
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number that reflects those adjustments in the appropriations side.
comments here? We can get back to that, Members.

Any questions or

Page 2, Bond/Lapsed Bond, we have two adjustments in your Chair's proposal. First,
the transfer of Baldwin Park Bikeway from Highway Fund to cash, excuse me, Highway
Fund cash to bond of 800,000, and a transfer on Line 52 of the Morgue Purchase and
Renovations from General Fund cash to bond, which gives us an additional $4.8 million
added to the Mayor's proposal for a number of 34,355,000. Any questions or discussion
here?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Discussion, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Regarding Line 52, Mr. Chairman, the Morgue
Purchase, I believe in my discussions with Dr. Shitamoto, who with his company helps
provide the actual medical service for our coroner which is the Chief of Police, and I
believe it's Dr. Manoukian, as the County's Medical Examiner, has shared with me they
definitely need within a five-year time span a need for a new facility. While I know the
Mayor's proposal is to purchase property in Wailuku in one of the industrial areas, I still
believe we have time to look at our own property that the County owns to see whether or
not a facility can be built within the timeframe that these professionals are saying that we
possibly could utilize and reduce the actual cash commitment to take care our morgue
requirements. And I just share that, Mr. Chairman, because I don't think we've
exhausted the options from property that currently the County has around the Wailuku
Police Station as well as Maui Memorial Hospital. And I would hope that we can at least
get a comment or response from the Administration on whether or not that option has
been considered and if it was rejected, on what grounds that would look at purchasing
private property and a private building for these needs, Mr. Chairman. So I just ask those
questions because I think it's important before we make a major financial commitment.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Were these the only projects that
were switched from cash to bond-CHAIR KANE: At this ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --in your proposal?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, ma'am. For this proposal we looked at ... we identified several larger
item type of projects to be considered from the cash to bond and it was determined based
on the numbers that we have that this is the proposal that we have although there's others
that we can consider. Kula Tennis Courts, Fire Station-Molokai, you know, there's a few
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out there that we were looking at and we just looked at this as one of those and the
Chair's flexible. If this is a direction we go, that's what we're proposing this specific
project, you know, we're not married to this particular one.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So we could ... as we discuss the CIP revisit this particular
portion?
CHAIR KANE: Absolutely. Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: May I ask ... actually, I would like to ask Mr. Hokama since
he's been following our bond program pretty closely. This as it stands now would bring
the bond to 34.3 million. Is this within our bond rating good range or are we getting
close to what I used to think was around 30 to 35 million in bond each year was sort of a
... a ceiling?
CHAIR KANE: Ceiling.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Any comments from Mr. Hokama? Sorry to put you on the
spot but I know you follow it really closely.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Are you prepared to respond, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I want to give a abbreviated comment, Chairman. Thank you, and
thank you for that question. You know, historically, Members, if you can believe it or
not, the County of Maui at one time borrowed no money to do CIP. Amazing enough,
but true, or we borrowed so minimally that the rating was always very high because of
the cash to debt ratio. The Chairman's proposal from what I've been able to review is
still within sound fiscal parameters of our bond rating, Members. Again, you know, part
of the questions we always ask is what is the repayment schedule because there is a
concern that you don't want to go over a certain percent of your cash revenues to pay
debt. And for me, anything once you pass 7 percent of your total cash for debt, unless
it's a major large requirement such as a new wastewater treatment plant, a new facility
for Police or Fire or some kind of emergency, you know, it just goes to show that we just
need to do real good fiscal planning as well as land use planning, Mr. Chairman. I think
the direction we're going, Members, is still fiscally sound. The County of Maui
definitely can afford it and we are very much, I mean unbelievably, way below the actual
legal ceiling of indebtedness. I think we can go into the billion dollars of indebtedness
with the type of assets that we have, Mr. Chairman. But that is not where we want to be
either and pay that kind of debt service. So I would say, Members, that we still have
some flexibility but I think what we're trying to do is still show a fair representation of
what it cost to have this County provide the services, facilities, and equipment that this
community and this County needs, Mr. Chairman. So I'll just leave it at that.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Thank you very much for reviewing that with us
because I know that's something that we need to ever be mindful of because our bond
rating is very, very important and a positive bond rating is critical to the success of our
County actually. And so I appreciate those comments from Mr. Hokama. Didn't mean to
put him on the spot on that but I know he's near and dear to his heart. I had another
question regarding the Baldwin Park Bikeway from Highway Fund cash to bond. And
you know, my understanding is that from the Highway Fund that's all that can be, you
know, bikeways can come from the Bikeway Fund so why would we put this in the mix
since Bikeway Funds can't be used for anything else.
CHAIR KANE: Can you help me with this one, staff?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
bikeways?

Or was it cash Highways that was supplementing the

CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, I believe the discussion ... I believe there's a proposed bikeway
project from the Bikeway Fund within the proposed ... Mayor's proposed Budget. I
believe when we ... when we looked at this particular project it had some I think nonCounty monies that was being leveraged but I would have to go back and check the CIP
schedule again.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You meant non-County money or non-Highway money?
MR. TAGUCHI: I would have to check again.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.

you could check for us, please, Mr. Chair?

have staff and

we'll get right back to that--

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --or at the appropriate time we'll have that continued discussion on the Baldwin
Parkway. This is not to be confused with Baldwin Avenue, Members. This is the
Baldwin Park Bikeway which is the one on the makai side. Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR KANE: From Baldwin Beach Park over to the Paia Park. Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
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CHAIR KANE: Anymore questions in this area, Members? And again, we'll get back in this
area.
Moving on to Carryover and Savings, this is where we made the additional increase,
Members. The ... what we did over on Line 43 we continue to do. The increase for the
carryover certified in '06 but not appropriated for the fire equipment, the $1.2 million.
And then the final item was the increased carryover certified in Fiscal Year '06 but not
appropriated for the Police vehicles of four point . . . this is the take-horne-vehicle
program, Members, $4.5417 million. Other than that, Members, under Wastewater,
Highway, Solid Waste, Golf Fund, Liquor, Bikeway, Water Supply Funds, there were no
adjustments to those numbers from the Mayor's proposal which give us a total as you see
on Line 66 for net estimated revenue, for a total estimated revenue on Line 68 of
479,381,550. Any questions or comments in this area of revenues, Members?
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know that this is a tiny little amount but the grant for Hale
o Lanakila which was in the Department of Transportation General Fund, it wasn't
Special Funds or anything
CHAIR KANE: The $20,000?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That was 20,000, yes.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I don't know if you want to reflect it 'cause later on I'm
gonna ... I did put it in my proposal which, you know, I guess one other person put in,
but you know, I would like to try and turn that over so if it adds in the 20,000 I'd like to
at least put that back.
CHAIR KANE: No, thank you for that, and so we'll query Mr. Ginoza to see if your intentions
on that one ... I believe you responded but I don't know if you can recall that 20,000 for
I think the intent was to pick up a van but we had some IRS ... getting nonprofit status,
et cetera, and if you folks considered that in your ... part of carryover.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The question was posed and they responded that it was not-CHAIR KANE: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --considered as part of the carryover and that's what
Department of Transportation answered.
CHAIR KANE: Great.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. I was just trying to see if he remembered that.
Okay, so we'll take a look at that Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional comments? Mr. Hokama, and followed by Ms. Tavares, sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman, just one quick one. I believe Public Works
made a comment about Keawe Street or, or, or I definitely know it was a West Maui
project, Mr. Chairman, and I believe the number was $1.5 million.
CHAIR KANE: $1.5 million, yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I was just wondering if you and your staff made that adjustment also
or is that something that we need to consider, please.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Mr. Taguchi, and we did make that adjustment, but Mr. Taguchi will
direct us to where that adjustment was made. Mr. Taguchi, are you prepared to respond?
MR. TAGUCHI: The adjustment is on Page 23, Line 1111.
CHAIR KANE: And the question would become, Mr. Hokama, is there an adjustment on the
revenue side?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Under Highway Funds, sir. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza, please, if you have comment.
MR. GINOZA: I believe the 1.5 million will go through Appendix as a Grant Revenue and it
would not affect Highway Fund per se. So the CIP project will be funded by that Grant
Revenue.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay_ Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Tavares, followed by Ms. Johnson. Oh, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'll yield to her.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead. Go ahead, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and this is one my staff is trying to find out of because
there was . . . there was a contribution made but there was also a budget amendment
because there was a contribution made by Intrawest. And I just don't know there was a
series of events and so I _ .. before I, you know, go off or understand what is going on
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because that money was specifically earmarked for West Maui I don't want it to go back
in the General Fund. If we use it for another West Maui project, you know what I'm
saying, that in other words there was some kind of an adjustment but I can't remember
what it was and I guess Mr. Ginoza knows.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: My understanding in discussing with Finance is that that 1.5 million was
specifically for the Keawe Street Project, and therefore, really it cannot be used for any
other purpose other than the Keawe Street Project. That's my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and that's ... that's why I, you know, I'll just ... I'll
do a little bit more research and find out because we had a conversation and I just want to
make sure because I know that there was money put in for this and it may have been that
the actual money from the County's funds were taken out of that and replaced with a
private contribution but I just want to find out.
MR. GINOZA: Can I make another comment? We did ask Public Works in the past, you know,
why those funds weren't used for the project so far but we understand that the funds are
limited or restricted for construction purposes only. So until construction starts, they
cannot use that ... those funds. So they were using County funds I believe before or, or
bond funds, I forget, but they weren't using those donated funds because they're not in
the construction phase yet.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And also, Mr. Ginoza, this is CIP, right? Keawe Street is a
CIP so, you know, if you're looking in the General Roadway Resurfacing, I'm not sure
the appropriateness of it I guess being there if it was a CIP project.
MR. GINOZA: I ... maybe I'm missing the question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, I guess if you look at where it appears in the Roadway
Resurfacing ... District Road Resurfacing, oh,
sorry, it is CIP.
sorry.
thinking it was just our General ...
MR. GINOZA: Oh, no.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Tavares, followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, that question was answered. I was gonna follow-up and
then Ms. Johnson took care of that follow-up. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. On Line 18, Charges for Current
Services, we had a conversation with the Golf Course Superintendent, Ron Kubo, and
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he's estimating that his revenue will be increasing by $300,000. Currently, it's one
million so he's projecting 1.3.
CHAIR KANE: And your ... so you're asking-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --if recognize that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: The revisions would be add 300,000.
CHAIR KANE: So, Mr. Ginoza, any comments in that area, please?
MR. GINOZA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Our estimate was based on, you know, the
collections that the records we had at the half year mark was about 460,000 and at that
time we asked Mr. Kubo for his estimate for the balance of the year and he responded by
saying 600,000. So we did use approximately a million as the estimate.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
Budget being submitted to the Council.

Our conversation was last week prior to the

MR. GINOZA: Yeah. So I don't know what basis that was based under.
CHAIR KANE: So, Mr. Pontanilla, you're asking us to add an additional $300,000-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: $300,000, yes.
CHAIR KANE: --to the Mayor's proposed dollar amount?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
KANE: Okay. Members, we have an adjustment request for charges for current
services and this is on the discussion that we had with Mr. Kubo and the Parks
Department last week. I believe it was Thursday, Members, if
not mistaken, or
Wednesday evening or Thursday. No. Wednesday evening, yes. Any discussion in this
area before we ... the Chair makes a recommendation? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair, oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry. And I don't mean to beat Hokama to Tavares, forgive me.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no. I'm happy to ...
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, go ahead .... (laughter) . ..
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: We're quick to the draw here.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. It comes back to that discussion that we had with the
Golf Course Superintendent that Mr. Pontanilla was referring to and in conjunction with
the question asked about the supplemental transfer from the General Fund to the Golf
Fund. And I think the question was asked, what if you didn't get this? And he says,
well, they would have revenues ... they think they have the revenues to cover whatever
the request was. So I don't see any golf course rate increase proposed this year but if he
thinks that he can get their revenues up, then I would ... I would concur with increasing
at least by 300,000 the revenues. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Pontanilla, additional comment?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. One, one more comment regarding the golf
course. As we go through our budget deliberation as far as the tightening up of the
residency requirement to ensure that the residents of Maui County are the ones that will
be charged for residents play rather than people from elsewhere, although they hold a
Hawaii driver's license but their address is still elsewhere out-of-state.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Hokama, I know you yielded the floor for Ms. Tavares. Any
comments in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No. I believe Ms. Tavares took care of my question, Chairman.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional comment from any of the Members in this area? The request is
to add $300,000 for Charges for Current Services and that number is related to the Golf
Revenue. Mr. Hokama, comment?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So this, this is like a trust fund, a special fund, Chairman. How are
we going to ... is there a recommendation how to balance on expenditure side?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. So that was our ... I was gonna ask, Members, that if we do or if you
have no objections to the add of the 300,000 is to allow staff to work with Mr. Ginoza to
make that adjustment prior to us providing you with a revised schedule once we go
through the first pass and make any adjustments.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, staff, if you can take note, please. Any comment, staff, on that one?
Any questions that you need to help get clarity in this request, the 300,000 increase in
Charges for Current Services on Line 19?
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MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, if the Members decide to increase the Golf Course Fund Revenue
by 300,000, the expenditure in the Golf Course Fund I guess could be decided at a later
date. Or if the Members want to reduce the Interfund Transfer to the Golf Course Fund,
then what would happen would be that there would be no additional expenditure in the
Golf Course Fund but you would just reduce the Interfund Transfer.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, and Members, if you recall, the Interfund Transfer is approximately
540,000 so we would reduce that by 300,000 to 240,000. So those are our options but we
can add now since we're talking about revenue and then we'll make the determination on
the other side as we get there. Members, any objections to adding the 300,000 to the
revenue here?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Seeing no objections, Members, we'll go ahead and add that number to
the working number on Line Number, in this case, Number 19. Members, we got ...
we're at the end of the Revenues so we can go back. Are there any requested
adjustments? Is now the time that you folks want to make an adjustment or consideration
on the gas or you want to get back to that later on? Either way and the Chair is open to
what the body's will is in this case. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think that so that we know what direction we're going, we
know what the parameters are, I think it's better to just do it now and go with that and
then if we had to revisit it later, if we find out that our expenses are below then or above,
whichever way it goes, then we can make an adjustment. But right now I just prefer to
just deal with that-CHAIR KANE: Okay. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --and have Members make a decision. Any ... Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chair,-CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson.

sorry.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, Ms. Tavares. Go ahead, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Regarding the Fuel Tax Rate, so is it safe to assume that for
every penny it's $672,000 less revenue?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is that safe? Okay.
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CHAIR KANE: Six hundred and seventy-one thousand and change, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, good guess I had. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Six seventy-one, one, one, one or something like that anyway. Okay, Members,
I hear some requests and so at this time, Members, the Chair's recommendation based on
the discussion, Members, if you don't mind, is to readjust the number back to 18 cents.
Okay. We're going to adjust the number as a working number ... as a working number
we'll put it ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: I was going the other way.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry. Ms. Tavares, go ahead. Go ahead. Make a recommendation if
you have one.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chair, I was gonna go the other way. Actually,
I'm leaving it ... leaving it at this number for now because I think we can look at some
other things too. And I might as well say now what I'm concerned about and we just
went over it, it's the Carryover/Savings from Highway Fund at 3.6 million, and so I want
to have some time to think about that in conjunction with the reduction in the Fuel Tax
Rate.
CHAIR KANE: No, I appreciate your comments and I didn't include in my previous comment
to you on your first question on why we did that. There were a few other reasons and the
one main one is that jobs aren't getting done.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Yeah. It's not getting done and so why take the money now to wait for
years to get it done when the people could use relief now and then when they're ready to
get the jobs done, then we make the adjustments to get the job done. But again, that was
based primarily for the proposal and I had some requests to deal with it now. I have one
request to wait. Either way, Members. Mr. Molina, question or comment?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. I'm open either way if you want to
deal with it now or a little later but I just want to make just a couple of additional
comments to what has already been said and you hit my first comment on the head. It's
like why continue to tax our people and not get the jobs done and that's the growing
frustrations I sense out there and from people have told me. They said they don't mind
paying this tax but they don't see the work getting done and they're entitled to have their
say. And so that's, you know, it may be philosophical but it's, you know, it's like the old
taxation without representation feel or mentality. So that is one justification in my mind
for consideration of the reduction of the gas tax. And each island, there's different types
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of driving needs. It's hard to compare say, for example, Lanai to Maui in terms of
driving needs because of mostly geography.
Now a point has been made about, you know, the cost and it may be minimal to some,
but again, you have to think of large families. It makes a difference. How about families
who are out with limited means? That extra one or two cents they can save just on fuel
which is basically an important element which determining . . . which determines our
quality of life, it can make a difference to that family income. This is a kitchen table
issue the way I see it, Mr. Chairman. How about senior citizens who still drive and are
on fixed income? It makes a difference to them. You talk to a lot of these seniors who
drive and they, you know, when that cost of gas goes up and up, after a while it, you
know, it starts to have an impact on what they can purchase or what they can pay for.
So, Mr. Chairman, whenever you're ready and taking into consideration, okay, you
mentioned there's 980,000 that could help offset this potential 1.3 million. We're
looking at what 360 ... 300 plus thousand dollars. Is that worth it to provide some tax
relief ... gas tax relief to our citizens? In my mind, Mr. Chairman, it is. And plus we
have to take into consideration the carryover that Member Tavares had just talked about.
So that's where I stand on this at this point, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, let's move forward. Okay, Members, we'll come back ...
we'll come back to this. You know what, we've been going since about a little after 2:00
so why don't we go ahead and take a break, Members. When we come back ... and
we'll come back at 4:00, Members. Is that too long? 4:00? ... (change tape, start 3B). ..
Members, the Chair understands we have a dinner break so we'll make those
arrangements when we get closer to the 4:30, 5:00 time. Okay, Members. We stand in
recess 'till 4:00 ... .(gavel) . ..
RECESS:

3:43 p.m.

RECONVENE:

4:08 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: '" (gavel) . .. Okay, Members, we are reconvened. Thank you for that recess.
Members, just as a matter of housekeeping, the Chair's intent is that we go to about
5:30ish, Members, and take 1Y2-hour break for dinner and come back at 7:00 and then we
work until the evening. Okay, Members, so that's the intent so we have another little
over an hour to get some work done. Okay, so Chair's going to kind of push it through.
We'll again, the idea is, Members, to walk through this, and ifthere's any real objections,
then we'd like to know 'em but we're not gonna ... we'll try not to get hung up on at this
juncture. We'll just try to make the initial adjustments, if any, known so we can get some
... revisions so that we can do a little bit more focused discussion on some of the areas
that need the discussion. Mr. Ginoza, I know you have a comment.
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chairman, in may, I'd like to clarify the SRF comment by Mr. Hokama.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Go ahead.
MR. GINOZA: I did confirm with Water Supply that the loan ... the debt service starts one year
after the later of the loan agreement date or the notice to proceed. So it would take us
into that, you know, that year of no interest or no debt service for that first year.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Hokama, any additional remarks or comments in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So does this mean in 2008 Budget they're going to ask for another
rate increase? I mean is that the bottom line? You're going to have one more rate
increase request to us?
MR. GINOZA: I have to reserve comment 'till next year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I ...
MR. GINOZA: I, I, I really can't say or answer that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, thank you, Mr. Ginoza. Again, Chairman, I just want the
departments to be up front with us because, you know, my understanding is part of the
rate increase is to help them build their fund to take care of some of their future needs
also. But if it's not, then they need to communicate that accurately so that we can
anticipate. And when people ask us you raised us for two consecutive years, now you
gonna come back for another rate increase, why, and what did you do with all the money
I gave you the last two years? Hopefully, we can give them a good enough answer unless
we send them all to Water Department for their response.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, and the Chair apologize, the reference point to this
discussion going on is Item Number 43 on your first page and it was just to provide
clarity to the question of the State Revolving Loan Fund for the Kamole Weir $10 million
figure. So the Chair apologizes for not giving you a reference point prior to engaging
that discussion. Okay, Members, any additional questions regarding Estimated Revenues
at this point? And the Chair will ... will hold off on any further discussion for today's
meeting on the Fuel and Franchise Tax. Members, we'll leave that flat for now ...
provide some time to absorb your thoughts and engage yourself in some additional
information gathering before we get back to that discussion.
Okay, Members, let's move on to Page 2, we're in Operating Budget now, our
expenditure side of the ledger. First office, Office of Council Services Program,
Members, the Mayor's proposal of 4,478,079 as provided by our Director of Council
Services to the Mayor's Office. We have provided that disbursement for salaries and
- 51 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

April 24, 2006

premium pay is not restricted by Section 5 and that also goes with the Office of the
Mayor, Members. The two adjustments that we have stated there, if you recall, the
Office of Council Services Director provided us with a memo that was attached to his
remarks when we met with him here, and in there there was the comments for the salary
adjustments of 12,303 and this I believe impacted ... Mr. Taguchi, if you can provide the
12,303 impacted Director as well as the Senior Analyst Supervisor?
MR. TAGUCHI: Correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, so it's confirmed that those ... that salary adjustment is in
line with the request for those adjustments. The second one, Members, the Chair's
proposal is reflecting movement of the request for the appraisal of the ... and we have
changed the title, Members, to Watershed and/or Intakes. Members, just to have some
broader ... at least some flexibility in what we're gonna ultimately decide as a body,
where we're gonna go with the request of the Watershed and/or Intake for the Wailukufor the Na Wai Eha request. So it's here. We moved it out of where it was originally
requested. We put it here but I'm aware that there was a request to have it put someplace
else as well and so we can have that discussion as we get through this area. Any
questions or comments in this area? I know, Member Tavares, I think you had another
suggestion and Chair took that into consideration. Any comments at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Regarding the first ... the first
adjustment for salaries,-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --I would take that out and just have it absorbed by the
existing operations budget of Council Services. That would be my recommendation.
You know, it's $12,303 and I believe that our Council Services budget, you know, we
always put cushions in there because we cannot change our own budget later, but we
usually have been conservative in our estimates for expenses throughout the year. So I
would ask for that consideration. Regarding the appraisal, I had suggested that it be in
Corporation Counsel and actually I'm not particular about where it is, whether it's
Council Services or in Corporation Counsel. I just think that we need to have oversight
over this somehow by other than the Water Department perhaps in this case and the title
that I had used was the Watershed Areas and Water Related Assets and not just the
intakes. So I don't know if we want . . . would like to consider broadening the
description of that or if it's a minor thing, we can do that when we do the RFP or do the
scoping of the service.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Any additional comments in this area? And
Members, just as a note, if we do take Member Tavares' comments regarding absorbing
the 12,303 for salary increase ... increase in salary adjustments, we will be looking at
two resolutions to make the adjustments to vote on anyway, yeah? For the approval ... it
would have to go through the approval ofthis body for that. So that's something that will
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be accompanied along the way as well. So Ms. Tavares brings forward something that
can be accomplished quite easily. So thank you. Any additional comments? Yes,
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I think quite a few of us probably got
input from some of the same people on what the ... what the, you know, approximate
cost would be for an appraisal. But it ... that also include ... included condemnation.
So I don't know if we want to put that in like, you know, if we're gonna put this out to
bid, we might want to include that in the funding so that should there be enough funds
within this 200,000 to do various appraisals and should the Council decide to proceed,
that there would also be monies within that appropriation to begin condemnation
proceedings. So I don't know if we want to add that in there just so that we're not
constricted to not be able to use it.
CHAIR KANE: As far as actual language, yeah, we're talking about?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So the funding part is ... we're okay with the funding part?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Funding is great.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. But then the placement of it I think we can ... we can settle
on ... as we go through we can settle on the placement whether it's where it is here in
OCS or over in Corp. Counsel as Member Tavares had said. And then to yours,
Ms. Anderson, we can I think ... I think we'll have opportunity to discuss with Corp.
Counsel as well as with Administration and our staff to figure out the proper language to
incorporate all of the parameters of the title.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Because I think, you know, ...
CHAIR KANE: Flexibility, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I think we really need to have that and I don't think
based on the conversations that we have had with various attorneys that, you know,
$200,000 is going to be totally absorbed in appraisal. It's my understanding that there's a
lot of work upfront before the appraisal is done, and the more work that's done up front
for the appraisal, the less work has to be done upfront to start condemnation proceedings
because that work has been done for the appraisal. So I would just think that it would be
prudent for us to add that language in, Mr. Chair, just so that we're not constricted from
using that money for that purpose.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then I had one other thing. If nobody else wants to
talk about this, Chair, I'll yield, but I had one other thing under Council Services.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, and I'll recognize you as soon as I just make this final note to staff.
You got the language to consider incorporating into the title of this area?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, we'll be working on that language to see what is appropriate.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And then we'll bring it back revised, Members, yeah, for discussion on
that as far as the actual language. Ms .... and just for our correction, and I'm sorry, I'll
recognize you Ms. Anderson, I said resolutions. It's actually for the salary adjustmentit's a resolution and a bill. So forgive me.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, no.
CHAIR KANE: I misstated on that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I understood.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Thank you. Ms. Anderson, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. In the revised list of proposals that
came out this afternoon I had neglected last Friday, in our rush to meet a deadline, to
include a proposal for outside contract to expedite our Water Use and Development Plan,
and I have passed something out regarding that to all the Members. You know, this is ...
this is a critical management tool for the Council. It, it ... actually its authority lies with
the Council. It provides us with the ability to oversee the development and use of our
water resources. It's been basically useless to us for the last 12 years because it's
incomplete. And through the Water Resource Committee meetings we have found that
it's gonna be a long, slow haul before we get this done proceeding the way we are right
now. And so I would ask for the Members consideration of adding $250,000 under
Council Services, so again, we have some control over the oversight ofthis contract.
I did speak with the current person who's doing the technical data for this Water Use and
Development Plan under contract to the department and I spoke with several other
people, too, about this. But the figure of 250,000 was deemed to be sufficient for us to,
you know, accelerate the effort towards getting this Water Use and Development Plan
done within the next year and a half. And that's for all districts of Maui, not just the
Lanai one that we're working on now, Upcountry and Central Maui that the department is
currently focused on, but also to complete East Maui and West Maui. And you know, my
concern about this is that if we go ... if we continue on the course that we're going right
now, by the time this Water Use and Development Plan is done, it will have little, if any,
use in decision-making for the Council because all decisions on, on water source
development will have already been made. And this is supposed to be a comprehensive
plan, Mr. Chair, so you know, you know, water is such a critical issue for us in the
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County. To not have this management tool for the Council to use and for the public to be
participating in is inexcusable in my estimation. This is a tool that's mandated by Federal
law, it's mandated by State law, and we should do whatever we can to accelerate the
efforts on behalf of the department and get this plan done. So I would ask for Members'
consideration in putting this in Council Services budget. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. And Ms. Anderson, one question that the Chair
would ask is, is there an existing area, trying to recall from the discussion with the
Department of Water, where they had applied additional funds for their ongoing efforts to
do the Water Use and Development Plan? Would this serve as replacing that effort with
we contracting somebody out? So again, it's just the funds now. I'm trying to figure out
the funding. Is this gonna be an addition, but are we gonna take it from them and put it in
ours to go get it contracted out?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know, in all honesty, Mr. Chair, I don't recall
that there was anything in the department's budget for this purpose. So I don't know.
CHAIR KANE: We'll check and Ijust-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If someone could check.
CHAIR KANE: --was asking to see if you knew if there was or not as far as-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I can't recall.
CHAIR KANE: --a recollection of discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But basically, what this is . . . the purpose of this,
Members, is we do have someone who is compiling the technical . . . doing the technical
analysis. We did have a hydrologist to do the engineering and that hydrologist is no
longer with the project. So what these funds are for is to take the program management
of this project away from the department. There seems to be, you know, over tasked with
too much on their plate given the shortage they have manpower. And taking ... going
to the private sector, getting someone who can, you know, manage this project, oversee a
hydrologist, and, and work with the current contractor to develop all the technical data
that we need, and to actually, you know, put this project as a number one priority for
them so it can be a number one priority for the Council. And I'm sorry I can't tell you
what funding the department may have but all I know is that this amount of money would
help us reach that goal in, you know, a year and a half rather than five years or six years.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you for your comments, Ms. Anderson. I apologize. We're
just trying to locate if there was ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Find any?
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CHAIR KANE: Well, we're still looking so we'll ... we'll make sure we take note of that. And
is there any other comments or questions or clarification needs on the request by
Ms. Anderson to adjust the Office of Council Services budget by 250,000 for her specific
request? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: The $250,000 would be contracted out to do the Water
Use and Development Plans for the rest of the County. Is that my understanding?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, care to respond?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (cough) . .. Excuse me. It would be to finish the Water
Use and Development Plan for the whole County rather than ... right now we're on track
to finalize Lanai. Hasn't corne back to the Council but it's on Lanai right now being
reviewed. It's another, you know, at the slow pace we're taking right now with the
amount of resources we're putting towards this plan, it's gonna be another year and a half
before we even get Up country and Central Maui done. And probably five years before
all the various districts of the County are completed so that it can corne to us for our
finalization, our approval, our review, and so the 250 is to cut that five years down to a
year and a half for the plan in its totality.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. My understanding attending several of these
Central Maui meetings was that they were gonna try and finish the first of this year, but I
guess . . . before the General Plan Committee meets and there is a bog down. I agree
with Member Anderson. I don't know how we can speed it up but ... yeah, I don't know
how we can speed it up as far as trying to get this thing done other than having an outside
source do it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, and the Chair will note that in this area
of the Water Resources and Planning Division ofthe department, we have currently noted
six vacancies in a 12 EP count division. So, Ms. Anderson, just adding additional
information for the Members' consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair, and I would note that one of those
vacancies is for a hydrologist. And one of the things that's holding this project back and,
and actually a hydrologist ... it's an engineer that they really need. Engineer with some
hydrology skills because you need to have an engineer, you know, scope out the various
projects that need to be done so that you can get a good idea of what the cost factor is.
And it's my understanding that this project lost the hydrologist that they had on board ...
went to somebody else. So it's gonna slow this project down even more unless we get
some help from the private sector.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional questions or comments or clarification needs on
this particular item, Members? Ms. Anderson, without objections, we'll make a note of
this and then when we corne back on the second pass, we'll hopefully get some questions
answered. The Chair has passed on a note to Corporation Counsel just to review the
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parameters of separation regarding if we can do what we're asking to do from a again
jurisdictional authority perspective. So we'll be able to get that information back and
then we can come back to this but we appreciate you requesting the discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair, I got one more comment and tell me if I'm
straying. You know, it seems like that a lot of departments have a lot of vacancies and
this is one department that do have some vacancies. If it's important enough that we fill
these vacancies prior to adding more EP counts, then we should put some priorities as far
as getting those vacancies filled. My thinking is any vacancy or any addition to
employees to any department that they fill the vacancies first. That way at least we get a
true picture as far as how efficient the department is working. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. I think that's an overriding issue that relates to this specific issue
so, no, I think it's germane. Members, any additional questions, comments, clarifications
for Ms. Anderson's request? Are there any other considerations for adjustment to your
proposal for the Office of Council Services?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, you ...
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, you're gonna have staff when we return tomorrow, we'll
have all this in a new revised version?
CHAIR KANE: Yes. Every day we're looking at providing an updated or a revised working
draft of the exhibit, yes. So we're doing our best to compile the questions and
information and then we'll provide something to show some level of adjustment for
discussion.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Just one question, if I may, Mr. Chairman. This would be for
Corporation Counsel. Hearing the discussion under OCS Office and the consideration
that Ms. Anderson proposes, do you see any conflict with the actual administration of the
fund and whether or not Council is now doing Executive Branch responsibilities or there
is no concern as far as you can ... in your professional estimation?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, I'm sorry. That's the question that I posed to ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm sorry.
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CHAIR KANE: I posed that to her so I had her ... she's gonna take a look and so I'd prefer that
once she has the opportunity to look into it that she can get back to us on that. And so I
apologize if I wasn't clear that I already asked her that question.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And did you tie that in to whether or not because see I see the water
appraisal slightly different, Chairman, from my perspective and I was just wondering
whether or not she had a comment about the difference . . . if there is a difference to her
also or from their office, excuse me, not her.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Fujita, are you prepared to respond at this time or would you ... would you
ask for additional time to respond?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I'd like additional time.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, is that okay?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Give her an opportunity to do some research on that. Ms. Anderson, please.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, and I just want to make sure that, you know, in her
review of this that she reviews both of these requests that we're asking for so that we
know ... one may be okay and one may not and why.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And Corporation Counsel acknowledged that she'll look at both.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great!
KANE: Okay. Any additional request
this area, Office of Council Services,
Members? We have our request and I'll ask at this point before we move forward, are
there any objections, Members, to consider the absorption request by Ms. Tavares so that
we can delete this adjustment and have that adjustment as part of the overall program for
Office of Council Services? Any objections to that?

',11,,",,1',"

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, then we'll go ahead and move forward and we'll delete that
adjustment or the addition. Okay. Thank you very much.
Members, we'll move on to Office of the County Clerk. There are no additional requests.
So we're ... yes, I'm sorry, Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chairman, I had one and I guess I was the only
that put it in that's why it didn't appear. But I had put in the Office of the County Clerk
$10,000 for voter education and I believe that two years ago we had put something like
this in also. You know, the election years, we had put something in and I believe that the
Clerk alluded to it when we had him in here reviewing his budget so I would like to ask
consideration for that amount to be added to the Office ofthe County Clerk - 10,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, that question has been posed on your
consideration to add an additional $10,000 to the Office of County Clerk for voter
education purposes. So this would be over and above the 986,474. Questions,
comments, clarifications? Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we're adding 10,000 to Office of County Clerk and then we'll
note it for the specific reason.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
. . . (laughter) . ..

And I'll take it from the 12,000 we just absorbed .

CHAIR KANE: Almost, Ms. Tavares. Not quite. . . .(laughter). .. Okay, Members. Thank
you. Any other adjustments/requests for the Office of the County Clerk? Hearing none.
Let's move forward to Civil Defense Agency. There has been ... your Chair has made a
recommendation to make an adjustment on the Radio Technician from eight to six
months. And we did make various adjustments in this type of area based on the report
that we received from the Department of Personnel Services on how they deal with their
hiring and so we looked at that in our consideration of making adjustments. Any
objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Hearing no objections to this, we're moving forward. Department of the
Corporation Counsel, there has been a request done by your Chair for the increase in
salary adjustments. I believe that was posed to the Committee. Mr. Taguchi, can you
provide any additional comment in this area so the Members are clear on what this
request specifically is for?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, the increase for salary adjustments was the amount of the increase
for the Corporation Counsel Deputies based upon the communication from the
Corporation Counsel. The estimate of the increase was calculated by the Budget Director
and confirmed by the Corporation Counsel.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, any questions, comments, clarifications? Any
objections to the recommendation?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Hearing none. Members, we will be using the working number for the
department at 2,136,953.
We're moving on to Page 3, Members.
Department of Finance under
Administration/Risk Management Programs/Treasury, we have a flat or no revisions
from your Chair. Accounts Program, no revisions; Purchasing Program, no revisions;
Financial Services, Members, there has been one revision - the Annual Lease Costs.
Mr. Taguchi, if you can provide a comment in this area? Actually, no, I'm sorry. It's not
a revision of your Chair but it's a revision that was requested I believe ... Mr. Ginoza,
the Annual Lease Cost figure of 275. That's actually ... Mr. Taguchi, provide initial
comment in this area before we ask for comment from Mr. Ginoza since we made this
spreadsheet.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, this entry is in the proposed Budget by the Mayor.
CHAIR KANE: And it was listed this way under the Financial Services Program?
MR. TAGUCHI: I believe so.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. So, Members, this is the Mayor's proposal and
we did not make a revision in this area. Mr. Ginoza, at the . . . when you have that
information, you can interrupt us and provide additional comment to refresh our
memories on that particular item for the 275.
Members, I'll stop for now before we get into Countywide, but for the Department of
Finance and their request, your Chair has not made any revisions to their request for your
consideration. Are there any comments in this area or adjustments that you'd like to
propose? Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: This is for the Department of Finance?
CHAIR KANE: If you can use your microphone, please, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I'm sorry. This is for the Department of Finance? Yes.
We're starting from Line 97 on Page 3 and we have touched on the four programs, ...
(change tape, start 4A). .. AdministrationlRisk Management, Accounts, Purchasing, as
well as Financial Services so anywhere in there.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No. Mine is further back.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, comments in this area or question?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry. Did we get to Number 5 out of Countywide
Costs?
CHAIR KANE: No. We did not get to the Countywide Costs.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Not there yet.
CHAIR KANE: We're ... we've gone from Number 97 line item up to Line Number 117 is the
question right now where we're at.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: No. No problem. Members, any adjustments? Your Chair has not provided
any adjustments in this area. Mr. Ginoza, are you prepared to respond to just refreshing
our thoughts on this 275 adjustment?
MR. GINOZA: I believe that's the rental cost for the Service Center in Kahului.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: As a follow-up on that, could the Budget Director please find
out for us what amount of increase over last year's Budget is that because I believe that's
the lump ... lump sum.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: I will.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And then we'll have additional comment at a future time. Okay, Members,
without objection we'll move forward. These will be our working numbers.
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Going on to Line Item Number 119, Countywide Costs, the Fringe Benefits. Your Chair
has not provided any recommendation for revision.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: This probably is an area that would wait until the very end
because when we look at the various position request, we may ... and I have some, you
know, comments on some of the requests so that would affect the Fringe Benefits.
CHAIR KANE: Very good. So this is an item that we will corne back to.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any, Members ...
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: The Countywide Service Center Cost is the same as last year.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MR. GINOZA: I will confirm with Finance in terms of the lease terms.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Because I thought there was a percentage increase
every year. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. We'll go verify that information and have that ... have that
adjustment, if necessary. Okay, Members, we're moving out of Countywide. We're in
Fringe Benefits or Bond Issuance and Debt Service, Supplemental Transfer to Golf Fund.
This is the area, Members, where with Member Pontanilla's discussion that there would
be a $300,000 adjustment as one of our options to consider, and I think in light of our
efforts to minimize the Interfund Transfer, that is one of 'ern that we can look at
favorably without any objections. But, Mr. Pontanilla, additional comments in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yes. Thank you, Chair. During our discussion with the
Golf Superintendent, he indicated that there are several equipment that is needed to
support the golf course. And in this area here, although we had decreased some of the
Supplemental Transfer in order for us to purchase equipment, we need to add $115,000
for the equipment purchases.
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CHAIR KANE: Your recommendation to the body is to consider reducing the $300,000
reduction by 115,000 to make it a net figure of 185,000?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Let's see ... yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Members, are you following? We're ... okay, we're at Line Item 132, the
Supplemental Transfer to the Golf Fund of 540,000 where there was no revision
requested. The discussion revolves around Member Pontanilla's request for an increase
on the revenue side of $300,000 so to deal with the appropriation side we need to make
an adjustment. This is one area where that adjustment can occur of $300,000 to balance,
and Mr. Pontanilla, what we could do is we'll use the 300,000 now. And then when we
go through the budget and get to the discussion in the department and making that
equipment adjustment, we'll have that discussion and based on what we settle on we'll
come back and make an additional adjustment.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you follow where the Chair's going with that? Just to keep it
... yeah, we'll keep it organized, yeah? Okay. So, Members, without objections, is this
the area you would like to consider the $300,000 adjustment and we're open for
discussion at this point. Mr. Hokama, any additional comments in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I was just gonna ask Mr. Pontanilla since he was able to get
communications from the Golf Course Superintendent, this equipment is above what is in
the budget proposal by the Mayor?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yes, it is, and I think we had asked Mr. Kubo, in fact the
Chair had asked Mr. Kubo, in regards to the added equipment that he's requiring to
supplement whatever he has to maintain the golf course and we had added I think four
pieces of equipment totaling $115,000.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, just to give you additional information. We did request Mr. Kubo
to provide us with a list of that equipment that he talked about at that meeting and we're
checking now to see and it looks like we have not received the response as far as the
itemization of that equipment request.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Just an FYI.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. I believe, you know, if I recall correctly, I think one of the
request was for a verti-cutter aerator?
CHAIR KANE: That's correct. That's one ofthe pieces of equipment that was requested.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Okay. You know, for me, Chairman, lucky you use that
twice a year. And for me, we can work with the other existing golf courses like we have
in the past and we can work out equipment rental or shared equipment memorandums
because I know the other courses have been cooperative with the County's efforts and
maybe that's the way to go. Maybe that's the way to go because, again, you don't verticut and aerate quite regularly per year. You disrupt your rounds per month. You disrupt
your revenue flow, and just like today, you know, Maui Lani is doing ... going through
their annual rehab of the greens already cut so that's why, you know, their plays were
very down and places like Waikapu is way up. And so saying that if we do give it to him,
I hope it's adjusted in his rounds per year proj ection of revenues, Chairman, because it's
gonna go down. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: No, and thank you for those comments. And perhaps that would be where we
can . . . when we get to the department that we can have additional discussion on the
request, Mr. Pontanilla, that I know that you've provided for us.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. In fact, I can give you what was provided to us
back on April 17 as far as the Parks Department.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry. Mr. Pontanilla, the question at this point in time is if we can just
deal with the $300,000-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Fine.
CHAIR KANE: --and then when we get to the department, then we'll engage that discussion
then.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and
the meantime, we can hopefully get the response as well as and
then we can entertain the discussion that Mr. Hokama has started. Members, are there
any objections to us reducing the Supplemental Transfer to the Golf Fund by $300,000 as
long as we know we're adding it on the other side, yeah, the $300,000, okay, on
revenue side.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, staff, if you can please take note of the add on Revenue and the
reduction in the Transfer in this case. Any questions, staff, on this area?
MR. TAGUCHI: Just for clarification then. Just to confirm. We will be applying these
revenues to reduce the Interfund Transfers and there will be no expenditures out of the
Golf Course Fund. At a later date, if there is an expenditure out of the Golf Fund ...
Golf Fund, then we would come back to this and make the appropriate adjustments.
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CHAIR KANE: Members, do you understand where we're going with that? Okay. Yes, that is
correct. Okay, so that's the mechanism we're going to use. Okay, Members, we're at the
Supplemental Transfer to the Golf Fund. We've made the adjustment and that will
reflect on your revised copy that we'll receive at the next meeting.
Okay, we're moving on. We have Supplemental Transfer to the Solid Waste Fund,
Members. We have the 6,439,650 and your Chair has made the reduction as reflected. If
you notice on your first page under Revenue, we made that adjustment to the Interfund
Transfer. So that's where that adjustment is being made. Staff, do you have any
comment as to the specifics of the $146,996 adjustment? Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, the Interfund Transfer occurred primarily because within the
Solid Waste Fund it's getting a little ahead though. There was a reduction of $170,000
due to comments made by the depart ... or the division and I believe it was relating to
grants expenditures. And then the reason why it's not that full amount is because we
added a Clerk III I believe to one of the divisions. I believe it was the Refuse Collection.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, Members, that's the nature of the adjustment as we get to the
department and the division where there's the specific adjustments we'll make that note
and to justify this more in detail. So that's where we're at with that, Members. Other
than that is there any request for consideration on adjustment of the Supplemental
Transfer to the Solid Waste Fund at this time? Okay. Seeing none, Members, we're
moving forward.
Insurance Program and SelfInsurance, we have $6.94 million. There's no revision from
your Chair on the Mayor's proposed . . . Mayor's proposal. Questions? Comments?
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If ... is this the area that we also take claims and settlements
out of or is that in a separate area?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taguchi, any comments?
MR. TAGUCHI: I believe that is the area but I would defer to the Budget Director.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza, are you prepared to respond?
MR. GINOZA: I'm sorry. I was reading something.
COUNCILMEMBERJOHNSON: Ijust ...
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson, restate your question, please.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I just wanted to know if the Insurance and Self
Insurance is also the area where we have claims and settlements.
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MR. GINOZA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And because that was, Mr. Chair, one of my requests
of a possible place where ... if Members would ask for adjustments, that was one of the
areas that I had suggested so I'm not making any recommendations until we get to the
other points-CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --and then I'll, I'll ask.
CHAIR KANE: Bring us back to this-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --as in connection to those requests.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional questions/comments in this area? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chairman, maybe our Deputy Corporation
Counsel would know it. I thought that there was a amount of money in the Corporation
Counsel budget for claims and settlements. Is it the ... I know that major things come
out of this Self Insurance fund but I'm wondering about if they have-CHAIR KANE: If you talking about the pot of the smaller claims?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES : Yes. Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. Ms.
comments.

can you provide us with some ... a reference point and your

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Yes, Mr. Chair, there is a smaller amount in Corp. Counsel's
budget, claims, settlements . . . claims, settlements, and judgments in the amount of
$100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And that is located on 2-4 of your Details, Members, on the bottom of the ...
towards the bottom of the page.
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: As part of the Insurance in the Countywide, it also includes the FLSA kind of
Issues.
CHAIR KANE: FLSA. Ms. Johnson, okay?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Alright.
CHAIR KANE: Additional question, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Please, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Y es. You're recognized.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, I'm sorry, I wish I had my '05 numbers with me. What
is the current year's amount in this same area, please, Mr. Ginoza? Was it five ... five
something? I'm trying to recall.
MR. GINOZA: For Insurance Programs, it's 4.94.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So you're about $2 million more than you're requesting?
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
settlement.

And again, I think it's largely due to the anticipated FLSA type of

CHAIR KANE: For the public's ... I'm sorry, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Please, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: For the public's consideration, can you tell us what FLSA stands for, please?
MR. GINOZA: Fair Labor Standards Act.
CHAIR KANE: Fair Labor Standards Act.
Mr. Hokama, I'm sorry for interrupting.

Okay.

Thank you and I appreciate that.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no. I think that was an important thing to help explain,
Mr. Chairman. But I would ask ... the Administration asked, Council bought in, and we
decided to change our insurance minimums, and I think we raised it to $1 million.
CHAIR KANE: From a half million.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct, Chairman. So has that been taken into account with this
request and is this still sufficient? And the second thing I bring up that Mr. Moto and I
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have continually worked at the Legislature currently and is still in conference, is that the
Legislature is still dickering about road liability and the concern for County taxpayers is
that even if the County is just a very minor part of the settlement. Let's say our fault is
1 percent of the injury, unless the law is amended correctly, we could pay up to 100
percent of the total settlement amount. Okay. Instead of just paying our fair share we
might end up with the deep pockets and pay for the whole thing. So has that been part of
the consideration of what can impact this County's taxpayers? And is this part of the
calculated estimate?
MR. GINOZA: I ... I'll try to explain. Maybe we should have Finance explain this, but
basically, what that amount is is taking into account some of the retention that is required
on any settlement ... settlement claim. In other words, there's a retention amount as the
Council voted on. In the past it was a $500,000 retention and to the extent that the claims
exceeds 500,000, then the insurance policy kicks in and I believe it's like 10 or 15
million. And that's where the liability that you're speaking about would kick in in excess
of the 500,000. But in response to your question whether the retention of . . . the
additional retention has been built in within this amount, I believe the request from
Finance to increase the retention was to provide them with the flexibility in negotiating
the premium rates . . . premium . . . insurance premiums at the time of procuring the
policy. So I don't believe the $1 million retention has been determined as yet in terms of
our policy.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: When is Finance going to let you know so you know whether or not
you got enough money, Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: I think, you know, actually Finance did this estimation so I would have to kind
of defer to Finance Director.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Does ... Mr. Chairman, does Corporation Counsel have any
additional comment that maybe Mr. Moto has shared with her regarding this road liability
issue? It's been a concern of all the counties, Mr. Chairman, and the State AG's Office.
It's one of the few times I've seen aU four counties and the State AG all on the same
position, basically, and I just was wondering whether or not they have any additional
comment to share with us regarding the funding request.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Fujita, are you prepared to provide additional responselinformation?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I don't have any other information with regards to the
funding.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any additional questions or comments regarding the
Insurance Programs and Self Insurance Fund- $6.94 million? Okay. Seeing none.
Members, we're moving forward.
- 68 -

BUDGET AND FINA.NCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

April 24, 2006

The Transfer to the Open Space, Natural Resources, Cultural Resources, and Scenic
Views Preservation Fund has been reduced because of the reduction in the certified
revenues, Members. So that reflection of minus $3,529 is the 1 percent of the adjustment
for the less amount of certified revenues from the original proposal. So the new number
now is what's going into the fund is 1,996,775. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: What is the current total if staff knows it that's currently in
the fund?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. I think we prepared for that question so I think we have that answer.
Mr. Taguchi, are you prepared to respond?
MR. TAGUCHI: Slightly less than 4.3 million.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. So 4.2 and some change including with this ... with this being put in?
MR. TAGUCHI: Which would include it ... which would include the 2007 contribution.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Okay. So just under $4.3 million is the current balance of the fund.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And we'll make sure we get the actual figure if that's a topic of discussion in
any part of the budget request.
Members, okay, we're moving forward. This is just a Charter requirement. On Page 4,
General Costs, salary adjustments Mr. Taguchi, if you can just provide some basic
discussion here for the reasoning behind this. This is the $1 million.
MR. TAGUCHI: Yes, Chair Kane. I believe when the Finance Director discussed General
Costs the Budget and Finance Committee he indicated that there was a buffer included
General Costs for estimated about $1 million. This entry reduces that buffer so that
there is a $250,000 buffer in General Costs just for contingencies.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, and just so you understand your Chair's proposed revision is
in light of the high level of vacancies within the County Administration that would offset
that buffer since they're getting full funding from most, if not all, of those requests for
those existing positions. So since the Finance Director indicated that there was a buffer
of a $1 million, your Chair proposed to make a reduction in that buffer to offset that ...
offset the numbers that were provided. Any questions or comments in this area,
Members? Ms. Johnson, followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My only question would be because not all of the positions
would be filled. Assuming that ... let's say there would be a real, you know, some kind
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of an economic crisis and many of the positions that are not filled could be filled. What
would that do to this particular area or is that not a concern? Would you come back for a
budget amendment, Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: I believe initially the salary adjustment was for collective bargaining increases.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, oh, okay.
MR. GINOZA: So I think our contracts are good through Fiscal Year '07.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So this is just strictly related to the collective
bargaining amount that we had set aside?
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And it's not related to any kind of a buffer relating to
those positions actually being filled?
MR. GINOZA: Maybe buffer in the position being filled ...
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson, I can attempt to ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, if you could.
CHAIR KANE: The $1 million buffer was over and above the contract and the agreements on
the salary and wages. On top of that there was $1 million put. This adjustment just
reflects that we're gonna reduce that buffer in light of the amount of vacancies that are
getting full funding for the existing Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And that's what I was trying to determine because,
you know, obviously if you have to fund the full amount, you're assuming that
everything they have on the rolls is filled. And so I was just trying to get a better handle
on ... okay, if there's that many vacancies, yes, then we can afford to do it without
compromising the operations should we fill every vacancy that we have, which is
probably pretty unrealistic.
CHAIR KANE: The other mechanism which we're familiar with is obviously, well, not
obviously, the other mechanism that's available to Administration if something that you
described as an extreme situation occurred, they still would be able to come forward with
a certification of additional funds and then make the adjustment through a process of a
supplemental.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions in this area of General Costs?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chainnan?
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, Mr. Pontanilla. You asked to be recognized.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. In regards to the General Costs, just wanted
to add an item and tell me if it' s-CHAIR KANE: Please.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --appropriate or not.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I know we do lease some space at One Main Plaza and
as a County, in my judgment, it should be picked up as a General Cost in doing business
for the County. What I've done is that I have compiled all the various departments that
are now located in One Main Plaza and what I wanted to do was create a line item to take
care all of those leases in the Finance Department and that total comes out to $736,828.
As we go through the different departments, that portion as far as the lease agreement in
regards to One Main Plaza will be deleted. That's my proposal.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you hear the proposal centralizing the One Main Plaza rental
payments and removing' em out of the various departments which was the split made this
year. Mr. Ginoza, ifyou-MR. GINOZA: Yes, sir.
CHAIR KANE: --restate your goals ... your policy decision?
MR. GINOZA: Yes. That is correct. It's all within the departments at this point-CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: --in this Budget. I'd like to point out though that with the exception of, you
know, the Special Revenue and the Enterprise Funds, those should be charged to those
particular departments. Otherwise, you'll have a mismatching of the expenses with the
revenues.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. How does that play to your proposal, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I think in this proposal we do have probably one or two
departments with Enterprise Funds included and we can take a look at that.
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CHAIR KANE: So we'll defer on the request for consideration at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yes, please.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So we'll go ahead and we'll defer on the proposal. Mr. Pontanilla will
get back to us on a revised proposal. Yeah, Mr. Pontanilla? Revision?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Okay. Thank you. Any additional question in this area? Mr. Mateo,
followed by Ms. Tavares. Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, just to follow-up with Mr. Pontanilla's proposal,
could Mr. Pontanilla again restate that number?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: All of the department that do lease a space at One Main
Plaza totaled up to $736,828.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: And that would be located, Members, as additional resource for us.
Mr. Pontanilla did include that in his budget proposal considerations which is the revised
as of 1:57 p.m. So I think that number is there under Mr. Pontanilla's request.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: I believe that number is also
individual department charge.

. .. one of my responses together with

CHAIR KANE: Okay, Mr. Pontanilla. Thank you. Any additional questions in this area,
Members? We're in General Costs on Line 148, 149, and 150. Hearing none. Okay,
let's move forward, Members.
Under Overhead Reimbursements, your Chair has no reVISIon. In the Transfer to
Emergency Fund, Members, your Chair has shown an increase to the contribution to the
Emergency Fund. And Members, to be frank with you, this number because it's so odd
it's just a matter of after everything is said and done, this is what we ended up with and
so we plugged it here. And so this will provide us with again additional discussion for
the Emergency Fund appropriation, and as we've been notified that that fund ... we look
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at a percentage of our overall Budget is still a lot short and we're working towards
building up that fund. So that's that number - that's what it represents.
Moving on, the First-Time Home Buyers Fund, no adjustment, Members. Any questions
overall for the Department of Finance? Okay. Hearing none. Let's move forward,
Members.
Department of Fire and Public Safety, under the AdministrationlMaintenance Program on
Line 165, you have your Mayor's proposed budget dollar amount for this area. We have
provided two deletions. The first one is the deletion of the Commission Secretary and
establish the Clerk III. Members, if you recall, in the Department of Personnel Services
comments this was a classification that didn't exist so we made the adjustment to
something that does exist, the Clerk III, and made the adjustment on the salary. So that's
what that is. The second item is the ... delete the Operations Assistant Chief vehicle. If
you recall, there were request for two vehicles - one for 35,000; one for 45,000. Your
Chair is recommending deletion of one of those vehicles of $45,000. Thus, we have a net
appropriation of the 1,591,433. Members, any questions or comments for clarification?
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Was this also corresponding to I guess either the age of
the vehicle that was under use or was it a reduction in EP count?
CHAIR KANE: If you can give us a moment and we can get that information for you,
Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Any other questions or comments? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, with Line 167, please.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, sir.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, it's interesting, we heard this department's understanding
from Personnel Services why Clerk III would be better than a Clerk-Typist III, and yet
when we talk to Parks, their understanding is Clerk-Typist III is not a problem and that's
why they still want to maintain the request for a new Clerk-Typist III. So it's kind of
interesting depending which department you get for the same basic request two different
... well, we get conflicting. For me, you know, I want to know what is the reality of
recruitment? Because how can you tell one department you should go to the Clerk
because we're getting a hard time, when Parks with the same request is, you know, go for
that Clerk-Typist III. I was wondering ifmaybe you had additional information since our
meeting regarding those discussions and that a Clerk III is still .. .(change tape, start 4B)
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, and before I recognize Mr. Ginoza for his comments, I will again
restate that we took into consideration the comments from the Department of Personnel
Services and we noted that there was a difference in the type of response that they gave
as well. And so we took into consideration their comments in determining whether, you
know, how we would approach the initial proposal, and so I'll ... just so you know we
had a baseline of information from Department of Personnel Services to help us with that
determination. Mr. Ginoza, additional comments, please.
MR. GINOZA: Yes. I'd just like to remind the Members that when Parks testified, I believe
their specific reason was that, you know, Parks does a lot of those permits with those
manual typewriters so I think he commented that for their purpose, you know, the typing
part of that function is more crucial to them than maybe just the clerical function. So for
Mr. Hokama maybe that's a little distinction between the requests of the departments.
CHAIR KANE: You still have the floor, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, Chairman, and thank you for that comment. I would just
note though that the original request was for a Secretary - the original request. It wasn't
for a Clerk, was for one Secretary original request. So again I just ask that question,
Chairman, because I was thinking, you know, you have the ability to receive additional
information on our behalf and I thought maybe there was something presented that ...
how you crafted the proposal. But nonetheless, I am in full support of the adjustment, as
well as the deletion. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: May I? I believe the response from the
Department upon questioning by
the Council Members of the need for support clerk for the committee that I think they
conclusion that a Clerk
revisited the entire function of that position and carne to
would be better than the Secretary_
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry, I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chairman, also maybe we can verify with
Personnel at some point. But my understanding is that as the departments request this
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and it gets approved in the budget they have to write what is called a PD which is a
position description. Then once that position description gets to Personnel, they're the
ones who classify what it is. So it, you know, it really doesn't matter what's in the
budget as far as between Clerks or Clerk-Typists or whatever. It will boil down to and be
left mostly to the Personnel Department with ... and it's dependent upon what those
position descriptions contain as far as the duties and responsibilities of that particular
position. So maybe, you know, Ms. Krieg is probably listening so maybe she'll send a
e-mail to the Committee to verify that. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional questions or comments? And Ms. Johnson, we're
still finding out.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No problem.
CHAIR KANE: But as a initial reference point in your Details Page 6-6, the two vehicles were
expansion request, not replacement request. So we'll give you a final answer on that
momentarily for the deletion. Oh, Mr. Taguchi, thank you. If you can, please.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, when the department came into the Budget and Finance
Committee I believe their statement was that in regards to the $45,000 Operations
Assistant Chiefs vehicle that there was an existing vehicle so it wasn't really a true
expansion but that existing vehicle was gonna be passed down to someone else. The
concept I believe in deleting the $45,000 vehicle was that if the vehicle was in still
operating condition to pass down to someone, then they should just retain that vehicle
and not purchase a new one at this point.
CHAIR KANE: That's the reason for the recommendation, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I kind of understand that, but you know, I know how
Parks has inherited some passed down vehicles which are still in operation and perhaps
should not be.
CHAIR KANE: Any request for adjustments
Hearing none.

this area, Members, at this point

time?

Members, let's move on to the Training Program. Your Mayor's proposal is 760,311.
We have made adjustments in this area and this, the Chair will assume, will have some
level of discussion. So maybe this is the time to either come back to this at the end of the
Fire and Public Safety discussion and let's try and move ... let's defer that just for the
moment, Members, and move on to . . . Fire Prevention Program is flat. There is no
request for additions or revisions. And so, you know what, we're there. So let's just ...
let's just ... that's the end of Fire so I apologize, Members.
There is the Training Program, as well as FirelRescue and Operations Program. So the
Chair will provide you with just some brief comments as to the ... why the Chair's
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proposal is the way it is. For the Training Program, your Chair has recommended that
there's gonua be adjustment of equivalent personnel which would recognize a full crew
of a Hazardous Materials Response Operations Team. That would represent the next
three adds which first ... add three EP for the Fire Captains, which is one per shift. The
next one on Line 175 is add three EP for Fire Fighter III
HazMat which would
represent the drivers, and then finally, the nine EPs of three per shift for the Fire Fighter
HazMat ... Fire Fighter II. Along with that for operations and equipment, I'll ask staff
to just provide that because we have been informed that from the discussions with Fire
Department, as well as with additional testimony this morning, we have been told that
equipment for HazMat is on its way. That was paid for through Federal funds I believe.
So that equipment is gonua be available and would coincide with this proposal if it is ...
if it gets favorable consideration.
Briefly, Members, in the next operations area, the request, if you recall, was for the three
EP for Battalion Chief expansions and the deletions are as such and that also involved the
deletions related to those requests for the Band C account expenses. Also, the reduction
in premium pay, the note or the information we received from Fire Department is that
Engine 10 had . . . were overwhelmed with the responsibilities, and therefore, the
justification of their overtime, which is almost $500,000. So with the bringing on board
the Hazardous Materials Response Operations Team, your Chair is recommending that
$50,000 be reduced from that premium pay because they would be relieved of some of
the ... of the extra work that the Hazardous Materials Operations would take on. And
I'll stop there. Just ... Ijust wanted to state that for the tie in.
Also, Members, finally, if you recall, they're also requesting in the budget $100,000 to do
an update of the Strategic Plan and that was the reason that your Chair felt it was
reasonable for us to put forward a deferral or to pull back on the Battalion Chiefs as an
expansion at this time until that update of the Strategic Plan is completed. How does that
tie in to the HazMat Team? They are ready for that. They have equipment on its way
already so that is gonna be a component of the Fire Department. It's just a matter of us
determining whether or not this is the year to actually add on the EP count for the or the
manpower, if you will, to go along with the equipment that's on its way. I'll stop there,
Members. That's the general reasoning behind that and I'll open the floor. Ms. Tavares,
before I recognize you I'm gonua ... because I started with you first on the first kind of
questions so I'm gonua move down and I'll come back to you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh ...
CHAIR KANE: Oh, question, Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Question about what you said.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: What did you do with the equipment that was requested for
FY '06 that we discontinued ... I mean that we're not gonna do,-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --if you'll explain a little bit about that.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. Thank you. The Fire Rescue Boat is there. One of the Pumpers ... one
of the Pumpers is moved to bond and I believe ... staff, I'm not sure which one is which
but we deleted one after discussions with the department that they said they could defer
on getting one of those trucks and I believe it's the Lahaina truck is the one that we want
to continue to move forward with. And I might be off, but if you can provide comment,
Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Thank you, Chair Kane. The Fire Department indicated that the Rescue truck
in Kahului could be deferred I believe.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. TAGUCHI: The Pumper truck in Lahaina was moved to Countywide equipment under
bond. The ... I guess the Fire Rescue Boat exists here-CHAIR KANE: We kept it in cash.
MR. TAGUCHI: --in this line item.
CHAIR KANE: And for Ms. Johnson, your Pumper for Lahaina is part of the ... we brought it
from the '06 request into '07 and kept it in for consideration here. Ms. Tavares, that was
for clarity, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Uh-huh. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Question for ... Mr. Hokama, in this case on the Training Program,
Fire/Rescue Operations Program. Discussion?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. Chairman, are you viewing this 150,000 for
the Fire Rescue ~oat as equipment then? Or are you looking at it as a capital
improvement item? Have you made a determination?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Staff, I believe we looked at it as equipment, but if you can provide
additional comment, please.
MR. TAGUCHI: The Fire Rescue Boat we looked at it as an equipment.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, thank you for that. I just need to know what category
you were viewing that as. Chainnan, on the Fire/Rescue Operations, I support all of your
recommendations. Under Training Program, at this point in time, Mr. Chainnan, again,
I'm not quite sure of the amount of calls but I'm very happy to support at least at a
minimum one full crew to start off with. And I know that, you know, we've had
comments that they would like a full complement of all three shifts. But then again,
Chainnan, we only have one Rescue Company for the whole County also, and I think we
need to build it up. I think if there is a need, we can do what we've always done in other
components. We do the call back. I can tell you that I'm in support of your direction you
want to go with Hazardous Material. I think it's critical especially if the State is gonna
force the Superferry down our throats and not continue to not talk to us about what is the
County's responsibility to provide hazardous material reassurances, First Responders
responsibilities and requirements. It comes a point again with the increase at the airport.
That possible expansion of the use of the 215 acres at Puunene, as well as expansions of
our sewer system and whatnot that Hazardous Material Team I believe has ... the day
has come, Mr. Chainnan. And again, I have my druthers whether or not to go with the
full complement but I just share with the Members that I'm happy to support at least to
start off with the one full shift. Thank you, Chainnan.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Johnson, and we'll come back around, Members, yeah. Okay?
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And I just ... the only question I would have is to give
the department an opportunity to respond back to this and have they had or have you had
any communication with them about this proposal?
CHAIR KANE: Extensive.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And are they, from your understanding anyway,
supportive of moving in this direction?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: The short answer is yes they are supportive of ... of this direction.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And Member Johnson, please understand that your question is focused on the
department. Understand that it's not the same as the Mayor's proposal. So we did have
extensive discussions with the Department Chief, as well as the Assistant Chief, as well
as other members of the department. And so we . . . your Chair was comfortable in
putting forward this recommendation for your consideration with the backing of the
department.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just ... I was ... because they're the ones that have to do
the implementation and they have to live with the financial decisions that we make, I
want to make certain that it meets at least their minimal goals and objectives. And
refresh my memory, Mr. Chair, but I think the 100,000 is already included in this?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's what I thought.
CHAIR KANE: For the update-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The update.
CHAIR KANE: --ofthe Strategic Plan?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. That is in there and that's why it helped your Chair to make a decision on
the deferral of the request for the expansion of the Battalion Chiefs.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and it doesn't preclude the department corning back of
course after a period of time when that evaluation is done, if it's completed in a timely
manner, to corne back with some kind of a budget amendment through the Mayor?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct. It does not preclude them from corning forward later on.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson, any comments

this area?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Carroll, any comments

this area? Ms. Tavares. Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. We had a response in
April 20th , Fire and Public Safety Response Number 3, that addressed the whole HazMat
Team proposal, and I note that on one of their attachments they had put in a situationtype summary. And it says HazMat from 9/11101 to the present and the total number of
incidents that they recorded on this sheet was 1,106 and if you take an average over the
41'2 years that that is, it's 246 incidents per year which is fewer than one per day. But
what I would really like to see is a breakdown of what time of the day those incidents ...
incidences occurred and I believe that . . . I certainly support this team, the HazMat
Team. I think we need it especially in this day and age but I would like us to consider
doing the one shift as Mr. Hokama has talked about and then getting more information
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regarding the situations and what they respond to, what time of the day it's going on
because we are, you know, using a lot of resources for this particular team if we go the
full three shifts. I think that in our proposal that I didn't get a chance to put in there I
had figured for one shift it would be $209,058.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So if we would, you know, put that on the table for
consideration I could certainly support it wholeheartedly at this point in time for the one
shift. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Any additional comment? Mr. Pontanilla.
I'll be supporting your
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
Thank you, Chair.
recommendation. I think we heard loud and clear this morning the feelings of the Fire
Fighters as well as the . . . both Captains and Fire Fighters II and III. So it is very
important that we create this HazMat Team for Maui County. Again, it's not only for
Maui but also including Molokai and Lanai. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I, too, will be supporting the
Chair's recommendation. I think as Mr. Hokama has ... had mentioned during his few
words was I think the time has come and I think in order for us to abide by what we have
held the department to, their Strategic Plan, which was the means of them reaching the
Fire Department's goals in providing the service of safety for our County. I think it's
important to us to also support that Strategic Plan. The Number 1 ... the Number 4 goal
of that Strategic Plan was the implementation of the HazMat to a point of having it
operational, serviceable, and functioning within the County by 2006. We're here. It's
time has come. And I think for us to remember as we heard the words from the Fire
Department today, and you know, we've heard it through e-mail, we've heard it through
telephone calls, there is the need. The existing team is taxed. They are tired. They're
burnt out. I think that in order for us to continue to provide them, you know, part of the
tools of the job is also the positions. So we want to be functional. We want to be able to
provide the safety needs of our community. Then by all means let us support the
Strategic Plan that we helped pay for and we are holding the department accountable to
and by giving them the HazMat Team that we need throughout the County. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Members, I'll just take one final comment and then
we'll take our recess ... dinner recess. And we won't ... we'll come back to this for one
final comment because I'd like to provide Member Molina, who did have to step out, his
opportunity to comment. Based on this morning's testimony we may be able to, and we
will verify, we may be able to remove the $79,600 request. So we'll take a look at that.
See if we can get in contact with the department to just verify their comments and then
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we'll make that adjustment as well. Members, we'll leave this on the table and then we
will come back after dinner to pick up where we're leaving off And Members, I want to
say I appreciate the pace. I think we're moving at a good pace. So let's hope we can
keep it ... keep it moving. Members, it's 5:30. This Committee will stand in recess 'till
7:00 p.m. We're in recess ... .(gavel) . ..
RECESS:

5:31 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:11 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: '" (gavel) . .. Okay, Members, we are reconvened. This is the April 24tt, 2006
Budget and Finance Committee meeting. We are going through the proposal . . . your
Chair's proposed budget with the revisions and we ended up, Members, before the recess
in the Training Program on Line Item Number 171. And in this area we are having some
preliminary discussion on your Chair's proposal to add a total of 15 expansion positions,
three for Fire Fighter Captains HazMat; three for Fire Fighter III - HazMat; and nine
expanded ... expansion positions for Fire Fighter II - HazMat. Also, there's an increase
for operations and equipment for Hazardous Materials Response Operation of $79,600.
Members, we did go through a round of discussion. As a reference point I wanted to
provide Mr. Molina with where we are. Members did provide initial comment and I'd
like to provide you, Mr. Molina, with any comment that you might have in this area.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. At this time, I'm not quite prepared to
comment. I'm still mulling over your proposal at this point. But as the process continues
I'll give comment a little bit later. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Are there any final comments before the Chair ask to ... well, I'll put it
to you this way since ... oh, Member Anderson, I see your hand up so go ahead, please.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You want to finish your sentence, Chair?
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry. I was just gonna request that we do delete the $79,600 for the
equipment request, Members. Either way I think other than them coming back and
saying, you know, we absolutely gotta have it, I think this is something that may be an
absorption issue that can be absorbed. Plus there's testimony this morning. We did
verify that they did state that they didn't need additional equipment. So ... and they
weren't aware of this right here - this proposal. So anyway, that was finishing my
sentence, Ms. Anderson. I'll recognize you first, and then I'll recognize Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. During our dinner break, right after we
broke, I got a call in my office from a person in management with the Fire Department
who informed me that he I guess had heard the discussions. And he said that even though
they only respond to only 240-some HazMat situations a year, they also back numerous
other functions within the department. So he kind of reiterated that to make this really a
functioning addition, that they really need the full complement because, as I said, they're
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multi -functional. They don't just take care of HazMat. They back up other areas within
the department so ... and he rattled off some various other areas where they help and I
asked him to come testify tomorrow so all the Members could hear it. But I just wanted
to add that.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You know, Mr. Chair, on the equipment for the HazMat
Team I noted on their submittal that $3,500 is for desk, chair, file cabinet, and a
computer, and I don't know if those kinds of expenses would be covered under that
Federal grant or whatever. So perhaps you would consider leaving some of that in the
budget.
CHAIR KANE: Is staff prepared to make a breakdown for us to recommend some part of the
deletion and then keeping something in that would . . . would complement the EP
expansion request? Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, the information for the equipment came from the sheets that
Councilmember Tavares is referring to. In reading the beginning part of their response
they do make a reference that all we need is the staffing. However, the supporting
documents indicate equipment and furniture and things like that. The testimony in the
Chamber this morning by the Captain of the HazMat Team said that they have all the
equipment there. So to be ... the short answer is that I don't really know if the furniture
is included. I can take it out and leave that part of it in the current revision.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, any additional question on ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No. That's fine. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Then the Chair's request, Members, would be that we look at this for the sake
of the initial pass as a working number and that we will come back to make some final
recommendations and decisions in this area. But at this point, the Chair would ask,
unless there's any other questions to gather more information, that we would use this as a
working number. Members, any comments or questions to the request by your Chair?
Okay. Seeing none, Members, thank you. We'll go ahead and move forward. We have
the request from your Chair on the FirelRescue Operations Program regarding the
deletions of three EP for Battalion Chiefs and I know we've already solicited some
comments in this area. So the Chair's question for this area would be to whether or not
there are any requests for adjustments in this area or if the Members feel comfortable
with this being the working number as a first pass amount?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: First pass.
CHAIR KANE: First pass. We're okay, Members? Any objections to using this as a working
number at first pass?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. And just so Members are clear, we're all on the same page.
When I mean first pass, there's gonna be some items obviously that we will come back to
and have more discussion and probably ultimately a decision made to that's gonna be our
proposal. But that's not gonna be for tonight's discussion. First passes will go through
clarifications understanding what the numbers stand for, and if there's any adjustments
that we can agree upon through consensus, we'll go ahead and take that action as much as
possible. But if there's, you know, some Members feel one way, we'll try to leave that
alone and come back to those areas. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I appreciate that explanation. And you
know, just for clarification it's always good to know what the ground rules are. It was
my recollection that on Friday you told us that if there were three Members who
submitted a proposal that you would include it in your proposal to us.
CHAIR KANE: Five Members. If there's a majority of Members, and forgive me if I wasn't
clear, if there's a majority of Members that submitted a proposal ... if there were five
people that submitted the same proposal, that even if I didn't agree with it as your Chair,
I would still put it in even if I disagreed as one of nine Members and it would be part of
their proposal. So that was ... that was what the intention was.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. That's not what I heard-CHAIR KANE: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --but I appreciate your explanation.
CHAIR KANE: And that was just like the one we talked about earlier ... the Hale Maui, yeah,
and so I'm not saying I was against it or for it. I'm just saying that there were five
Members there already that wanted to put that forward so that's why we went ahead and
and
included that
Anymore questions, Members, in this area of Department of
Public Safety? Working numbers, Fire Prevention, we've already made the first pass
decision.
We're moving on to Page 5, Department of Housing and Human Concerns, Members.
Any questions or comments? There's been no revision by your Chair for Admin
Program, Housing Program, and Grants and Disbursements for Affordable Rental
Housing Program. Any questions in this area or adjustments being requested for
consensus consideration? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I would like to offer for
consideration under Housing Programs with their seven equivalent personnel. I had
wanted to add or request consideration of adding another EP that would be dedicated to
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dealing with the housing component that Council has initiated in tenus of someone
recognized to deal with the policy, the First-Time Home Buyers Fund, the Revolving
Fund, Contract Agreements, et cetera, because there is a missing component in that
department. Because at this particular point as we've heard from the department the only
individuals working on affordable housing needs right now is both the Director and the
Deputy. And the consideration would be for ... (change tape, start 5A). .. help alleviate
the department and be able to dedicate more of its time to the affordable housing
components that had been identified. And I initially had submitted a request. It did not
get the number of support needed to get on to the Chair's budget but at this particular
point I would just ask the Members for either their comments or either their support in the
consideration of such a position.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Mateo, is there a dollar amount that's attached to that request?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chainuan, there were two submissions ... two areas that was
submitted. One was for a Housing Specialist V position that was . . . I believe it was
53,700. However, there was another submission by another Member for a Clerk III
position based on eight months at 17,104. So at this particular point, you know, either
consideration would be beneficial to the department.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, and just for a final comment for staff. I know we have that
add Housing ... this, Members, and I'm looking at the revised budget proposals. On that
Page 2 under Department of Housing and Human Concerns, staff, I see the add Housing
Specialist V to Housing Program and the line across is blank, but next to Mateo right
after the line kind of got erased. So I don't know if that number was intended to be there
but never made it in there. And if ... Mr. Mateo, just additional question, were you able
to make that adjustment? Is that an eight-month position or fu1112 month?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: That was, yeah, that was a full ... a full 12-month request and I
see it on my copy as well as blank but that was for the full-time Housing Specialist
position.
CHAIR KANE: You're asking for the consideration of 12 months this area and we know
DPS is able to accommodate in hiring this person immediately by July 1st?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, I would not know that, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, okay, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Who was that figure, Chair, for Specialist V?
CHAIR KANE: The 50 ... Mr. Mateo, what's the amount that you are asking us for?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The 53,628 full-time ... that was the Housing Specialist V
position - 12 months.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That was 12 months?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Fifty three, six two eight.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Mateo, if the Chair can ask additional questions, if you don't mind, just to
help us. The dollar amount because you're asking for a 12-month consideration, did you
have . . . get indications from the Housing Department that this person is an existing
person that can move right into this spot and start on July 1 and that's why the 12-month
request?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No. No, actually, Chairman, ...
CHAIR KANE: And I'm sorry if I ... just trying to help the Committee gather the information.
Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. The discussion with the department was
merely the type of classify ... the classification that they thought would be needed to
meet the needs and I guess the step it would have started at and the 53,628 was what the
department gave me as the step for the Specialist V position. So in terms of availability
ofthe body ready to go into the position, I don't know that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Okay, any questions or comments in this area? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I would be in favor of providing six months because
we're not sure of when a person could begin in because there's some other things that
have to take place before the program is fully implemented.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for your comments.
Mr. Molina.

Any additional comments in this area?

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. I can support both the addition
of the Clerk and the Housing Specialist because of these two additional programs that the
Council initiated, the First-Time Home Buyers and the Rental Assistance Fund. I think it
almost become necessary to have somebody monitoring these programs on a full-time
basis so I can support both the request.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. You're supporting ... we're speaking just on ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, just specifically on the Housing Specialist?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, on the Specialist V Housing Program--
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay.
CHAIR KANE: --and the request is for 12. Are you supporting 6,8, 12 months? Do you have
an indication, Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I'm open to 12, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Hokama, followed by Ms. Tavares. Comments on this request?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I just want to have Mr. Mateo, please, expand the scope
of the expansion position, please.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I'd be happy to, Chairman. Currently, the department does not
have an individual other than the Director and the Deputy Director who has been working
on other issues relative to housing other than Section 8 which is a separate category that
I'm not addressing with this particular request. This particular request, as Members
know, we've been working on the Residential Work Force Housing Policy. That
particular policy has . . . gives the department a lot more responsibilities in terms of
verifications, in terms of following up, in terms of being able to provide the
communications between the department and the developers looking at providing
affordable housing. In addition to that there are various agreements that the department
craft, as case in point, as we saw with the Maui BeachiMaui Palms Development Project
of which we have no say into agreements. However, we still need to provide that followup component so we're sure that compliance is met. We also had First-Time Home
Buyers Fund that needs reporting, that needs follow-up, that needs ... that needs to see
that the loan is being disbursed according to compliance with the policy itself. We also
have the first time . . . the Rental Assistance Program, excuse me. That also requires
monitoring. We have a good number of developers with interest in their development
projects that now must be provided with information regarding the affordable housing
requirements and its needs. So to me the justification is one that the Members through
actions of providing policy, providing ordinance changes, and providing direction, just
outright serves that it justifies the position in itself, be it a specialist position or a clerk
position at its ... at its inception. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Mr. Hokama, additional questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No. I just wanted to, you know, I'm trying to see whether, you
know, my concern is the timing, yeah, Chairman. Because we have sent to the Planning
Commissions the ... Mr. Mateo's Committee's work, the housing policies update and the
adjustments in procedure and direction that the County wants to go. And knowing how
things get processed we may be looking at the '08 Budget for this consideration instead
of this budget. But at the same time, Chairman, I'm just wondering because we currently
have Specialist V, we currently have two Specialist IV, we have one ... two, Excluded
Management positions in there, and if I recall from the last Administration, they had us
either downgrade or delete those that was in Housing Programs and I believe it was in
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this division. So I'm just wondering whether or not timing-wise this is the right budget.
I understand where we want to go, Chairman. But to be, you know, open I'll wait and get
to see ... maybe it would be good to find out what all these other specialists are doing
'cause this is not Section 8 people either. This is, as I understand it, is this, Mr. Ginoza,
all General Fund personnel on Page 7-5 of the Details which is the Housing Division, you
know, your top seven employees?
MR. GINOZA: Those are ... I'm sorry?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Are these all General Fund paid employees or are some of these
positions in Housing Division being funded by Section 8 of the Federal program?
MR. GINOZA: Ifit's in the ordinance, it's funded by the General Fund.
CHAIR KANE: Staff is checking just to back . . . back that . . . research that question,
Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taguchi, question before I recognize Ms. Tavares.
MR. TAGUCHI: I believe that's correct because under the Grant Revenues there are 22 people
that are employed from Section 8 Housing Program.
CHAIR KANE: General Fund.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Excuse me, Chairman. I was ... two of the seven are funded by
Section 8?
MR. TAGUCHI: No. Under the Grant Revenues section in this budget there are 22 positions
funded by Section 8 Housing Program. I believe the Director is correct that any EP
counts that exist in the ... on Page 7-5 would be General Fund funded.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So the seven positions here are General Funds then?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So if they not doing Section 8, then would be good to know what
they doing first, Chairman, for me. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm just ...
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's just that I would look at supporting less than 12 months
if we should decide to put it in.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you for your comment. Mr. Pontanilla, additional
comment?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Maybe the Budget Director
can help me out on this here. The number of employees in the Housing Division seems
like one, two, three, four, five, six, seven, with the Administrator. Out of the Housing
Program Specialist V ... IV and V's, is there any vacancies in this area?
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chairman, I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair, I had included in my proposal a Clerk III to
support the Housing Specialist that are located in the Housing-CHAIR KANE: Division.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --Division. But I would like to know if there's any
vacant ... vacancies in that particular area first. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And I'm looking at a report that shows that the ... on Details 7-5,
the Assistant Housing Administrator is currently vacant. The 0018, not there, and 0071,
not there. Okay. So we're just showing according to this, Members, that I have with me
we're showing one vacancy and I'm not sure about the SR-221 position. But right now
we're showing that EM-3 position and that was the proposed expansion position for this
year - full year funding. You requested full year funding and it's vacant. You know, just
to answer your question, Mr. Pontanilla, one vacant ... it shows right now it looks like
one vacancy out of the seven.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: You wouldn't know how long

vacancy was there?

CHAIR KANE: This was an expansion position that was approved. Mr. Ginoza, that's correct
for this year? So our discussion last year approved the full 12-month funding and it is
currently vacant according to the report that I have in my hand.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: For me, Chair, I would rather see that this vacancy
position be filled. We can go ahead and budget with no funding the EP that has been
requested for the Clerk or the Housing Specialist V.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Any additional comments in this area? Members,
Chair's recommendation is that we leave the working number as is now and then we can
come back in this area and then we can ... Mr. Mateo, without objections, we can
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detennine whether or not we'll look at the Specialist V or the Clerk III in light of the
divisions' current status of their work.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, let's go ahead and move forward ... (cough) . ..
excuse me. We went through Grants and Disbursements for Affordable Rental Housing
Program of 400,000. We're moving on to Line Item 208. We have the Grants and
Disbursements for Affordable Housing/Supportive Living Housing. We have an add,
Members, here Consolidate Grants and Disbursements for planning, design, development
and/or construction of supportive living, mixed-use housing, and/or social/educational
facilities. I'll ask staff if they can provide comment on the revision. Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: The revision of $207,000 was to consolidate a line item that was for Grants
and Disbursements for planning, design, development and/or other construction of
supportive living, mixed-use housing. I believe the conversation in the Budget and
Finance Committee, the Director indicated that this grant could be combined into the
Grants and Disbursements for Affordable Housing/Supportive Living Housing. So a
portion of that disbursement was moved here to this grant. The other $75,000 of that
grant was moved to fund an environmental study I believe in ... for the Old Maui High
School Campus under grants and disbursements for . . . grants and disbursements for
Social Service Campus at the Old Maui High School site. So once again, 75,000 went to
this grant application and 207 went to the grant application you're currently looking at.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Taguchi. Members, you recall that's the 282,000 and then we
split it up, and so here's the 207 consolidation and then the 75 is explained by
Mr. Taguchi. Any additional questions in this area? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chainnan, was this where you intended to put the
$50,000 for Community Land Trust as a proviso? Is this the section?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members, as stated, the Hale Maui and because they're
not fonnally fonnulated yet, we would consider them . . . the grant would be titled
Community Land Trust Grant. The Chair's comments to you were to consider because
there's a total I think of six people who wanted this to be incorporated, the Chair would
ask you folks to consider incorporating that into this fund. Instead of adding an
additional 50,000 to the fund that it would incorporated into this fund because it seems
like it would fit right into what the parameters are set in this $432,000 area.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I could certainly support the proviso and give them the
opportunity to get their necessary paperwork for it but at the same time make sure that we
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have identified in the budget the 50,000 that is intended to go to Hale Maui or Lokahi
Pacific, whatever arrangement ends up being the fastest way to get this out to them. So I
would certainly support that as a proviso and not an additional 50,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
Mr. Pontanilla.

Additional comments? Mr.... and we'll work down, Members.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I can support the recommendation that our Council
Member from Up country stated, proviso the $50,000 for the Hale Program.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Additional comments, Members? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, maybe just so that the Committee can be very clear.
Certain grants have the language "grants and disbursements", others have the words only
"grants to". Can you ... do you have any comments whether or not it's one and the same
or it's to be administered differently when we say "grants and disbursements"?
CHAIR KANE: No. Thank you. Very good question and our staff is prepared to respond
because we did have a discussion among ourselves about that. So thank you for that
question. Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, in an appropriation under Grants and Disbursements, for example,
in this case, well, let's take grants and disbursements for Affordable Rental Housing
Program. The Administration has the option to either grant the money or go through an
RFP process to disburse the money. The option rests with the Administration to
determine which methods they're going to disburse the funds.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So let me just get this understood and we'll use your example,
Mr. Taguchi. So conceptually, none of the 400,000 could be given out in a grant if the
department chose to use it 100 percent for its own disbursement within itself?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taguchi, are you prepared to respond?
MR. TAGUCHI: Perhaps I can ask if the Budget Director would respond since
over the disbursement of the funds.

has oversight

MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: I would say that the disbursements would be restricted to affordable rental
housing-type expenditures and not be commingled with other program expenditures.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That part I understand, Mr. Ginoza. My question is even if we say
grants and disbursements, the department, if it chooses, can choose to keep all the money
for itself and use it under that specific parameter.
MR. GINOZA: I would say yes.
CHAIR KANE: So the distinction is if you want it to go to a particular place from this body,
you use the word "grant" ... "grant to". Yes. That would be the distinction.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And Chairman, I just ask that because certain departments, certain
divisions have made it clear they don't want to do the work. That's why they want grants
- grants - not grants and disbursements. So this is a two-edged sword when we agreed to
a grants and disbursements. So I just wanted to be clear in my understanding of that.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Anyother ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I can support your recommendation-CHAIR KANE: Oh, okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --for the 207.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, any additional comments in this area? The Chair's
recommendation is to proviso the total of ... but first, Members, I'm sorry, the revision
is to consolidate the 207 to the 225 to give us the total of 432, and then within that the
Chair's recommendation for your consideration is to proviso that 432,000 with 50,000 of
that would go to the Community Land Trust Grant. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would just ask that you consider making the 430 to making
it 450 because there are other programs for affordable housing and supportive living that
could possibly be able to utilize some ofthe money. And I think the purpose and intent is
to actually add to the programs and not take away from anything. That's my only
comment is that we consider doing instead of 432 just do 450.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you for your comments. Any additional comments in this area,
Members? Okay. So because we have an additional request, the Chair would, at this
point, recognize ... I'm gonna take a step back and say first, are there any objections to
the $207,000 consolidation?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. The second request now would be, Members, as a working number for
first pass, would the Members consider the 432,000 to be provisoed [sic] with the
$50,000 proviso?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Again, as the working number, and then Ms. Johnson, we will make
note to come back to this area to consider your request of 18,000 increase. Okay,
Members. Thank you, Ms. Johnson, for your consideration on that.
Okay, Members, moving on to the Hale Mahaolu Ownership Counseling Program of
100,000, there's been no revision in this area by your Chair. Moving to Human Concerns
Program at 3,871,890 - no revision in this area. Are there any questions or comments or
proposed revisions for consideration here? Okay. Seeing none. Members, we're gonna
go through the grants and I'm gonna move rather quickly, Members, in this area ... the
initial pass as working numbers.
Okay, Members, we have grant to Alu Like - Kahua Ola Hou - Molokai, 150,000; Big
Brothers-Big Sisters of Maui Grant, $100,000; Coalition for Drug Free Lanai Grant,
$50,000; Grants and Disbursements for Community Partnership Grants, we have a pot of
money. I think this is GRC, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So this is GRC money so Grants Review Committee Funds, $1,424,000.
Chair has made no revisions in this area. Line Item 239, grant to Community Work Day
Program, $150,000. No revision requested. Turning the page, Members, Page 6, grants
and disbursements for Culture and Arts Grants, 150,000, no revision. Grant to E Malama
INa Keiki 0 Lanai Preschool, there has been a request for an additional by your Chair's
proposal of $25,000 to $85,000, and the Chair would ask to yield the floor to
Mr. Hokama for some additional comment. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. Members, for those of you that were able to
join us on Lanai for the Budget meeting for this coming year's consideration, our
Preschool Administrator, Kris Kahihikolo, did mention that she had talked to me and I'm
trying to get my office to come up with the ... to make copies of her request. Currently,
Castle & Cooke does participate with 20 - $25,000 a year to assist the school maintain its
accreditation and ability to also provide preschool opportunities for some of their children
that are in the gap. They don't really qualify under the Federal standards for things like
Headstart, Chairman, and they not, you know, where the families don't have the income
to just take care of their own preschool needs on their own. So they're in this gray area,
if I can use that term, Chairman. And Ms. Kahihikolo mentioned that the Company did
not renew its agreement to be a annual funder to assist the preschool and she's asking this
Committee, you the Members, if you would consider supporting the school to be able to
just maintain what they have, maintain their accreditation, and for us on Lanai, this is the
one and only preschool program we have on the entire island and in the entire
community. So I would just ask for your consideration of this request, please. Thank
you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, your Chair has put forward that particular
request of 25,000 for a revised figure of $85,000. Members, are there any request for
adjustment to this for a first pass working number?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I can support your recommendation
of $25,000. I just wanted to find out if the Lanai ... the preschool I understand had gone
through the CPG. That we also look at the CPG side of the house so that I can support
the $25,000 there but provided that a grant is not awarded through the Community
Partnership Grants. So it doesn't become a double whammy.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Okay. Mr. Hokama, comments?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I think that is a very good question and I think this
Committee deserves an answer. I can assure the Members, Mr. Chairman, that the
preschool has not applied for any Community Partnership Grants. They understand that,
you know, as in the case from I guess the year before when we said no double dipping.
That they understood that clearly, and they made a determination to go through the line
item funding process, which we currently are, and I would just reassure the Members that
in no way do they have a CPG grant application. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I just want to say thank you for that information.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, any objections to the work ... oh,
Ms. Tavares. Go ahead.

sorry,

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I think as we've talk about the Grants Review
Committee and how their process is a little later this year than expected.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I believe that they are going to be making their decisions on
their recommendations by Thursday and if we could have some information sent to us by
the department at the same time that they're sending it to the Mayor, that would help us.
I think that in this case, this is a request for a program that shouldn't have to go through
competition because it is the only program on Lanai and for that reason it deserves to be a
line item in the budget and not forced to compete with all other childcare programs in the
GRC process. Thank you.

- 93 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 24, 2006

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares, and we'll make a note ... staff has noted that we will
follow-up for the results oftheir recommendations from Thursday's meetings.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we'll go ahead and move forward with the working number at
85,000 for E Malama I Na Keiko 0 Lanai Preschool. Okay. Thank you, Members.
Moving forward, grants and disbursements for Early Childhood Programs, $75,000, no
change; grants and disbursements for Hana Human Services, 20,000, no change; grants
and disbursements for Homeless Program, $520,000, no change; grant to Hui Malama
Learning Center, 200,000, no change; grants and disbursements for Lahaina Tutoring
Project, 6,000, no change; grant to Maui Adult Day Care Center, 205,000, no change.
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and I just wanted to find out because there was a request
by Maui Adult Day Care Center because they're trying to expand, and actually not
expand, but relocate their services to Hale Mahaolu, and it's 150,000 I believe that
Mr. Katsuda in cooperation with Maui Adult Day Care had requested. I don't know if
this is the appropriate place to put it in if it's to be under Hale Mahaolu because that's
where the work would be done but it really is for Maui Adult Day Care. So whichever it
is, I would ask Members to please consider that because right now the area or the location
which is right next to the tennis courts, that building is basically falling down. It is
unsafe. It is something that the seniors desperately need and inasmuch as we've moved
forward with a location here, in Central we have other programs. I really think that the
people of Lahaina would deserve that location and right now they're just shy $150,000.
So I would ask for the consideration to add that to this because this is really for their
operations budget for Maui Adult Day Care.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and Ms. Johnson, if your Chair may ask, I know you said operations so
this would be a recurring request as far as the 150 increase from the 205?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, no, no.
CHAIR KANE: Help me understand.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This ... this is 205,000 is their regular Maui Adult Day Care
operating budget which covers, you know, all their different programs.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would be adding in and I don't know if this is the
appropriate line or if it would be someplace else to add to Hale Mahaolu the 150,000 so
that Maui Adult Day Care can open up in the Hale Mahaolu location which has already
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been built. It's just a conversion and an addition actually of the whole center core of that
project to accommodate Maui Adult Day Care Center.
CHAIR KANE: And this 150,000 and forgive me, Member Johnson,just ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's CIP.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So it's a one time?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's one time. That's it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. If you'll allow staff to see where the most appropriate place would be
and for note, Members, there were four Members who noted this as an add and this is
without your Chair having anything on that part.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: So I didn't take note of it and I apologize but we'll take a look at it.
Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, if the grant is to be included I would suggest that we include it at
the end of the grant list in this division so it would be Grant Number, at this point, 38 I
believe, oh ... 39.
CHAIR KANE: So we'll make that adjustment at the end, Members. But thank you for bringing
it forward and then we'll come right back to it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any additional question on this area, Members? Seeing none.
Moving on to grant to Community Food Bank, this is Number 17 on Line 275, grant to
Maui Community Food Bank, 150,000, no change; Number 18, grant to Maui
Community College for Cooperative Education Program, $50,000, no change; grant to
Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. for Enlace Hispano Program, $110,000, no change.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. Question, Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. I have included in my proposal an increase
of $40,000 to the Enlace Hispano Program especially for West Maui. When they came
out and testified, one of the areas that they were lacking in was going to some of the
schools in West Maui in regards to providing some education through the ESL Program
out there. And one of the areas that they've been really concentrating on is the Drugs
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Program, as an example. So I have included $40,000 to that particular program for
Enlace Hispano. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
comments?

Ms. Tavares, I ... we see your request of 65.

Additional

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chair, just to build on that that I think that they
were talking about expanding their services so they could take care of West Maui which
has a number of, like Mr. Pontanilla had said, so I had put in the 65,000.
CHAIR KANE: I know there's one for 40, one for 65,000 in this area. Was there a figure that
Enlace came forward, and forgive me, the Chair doesn't recall the testimony exactly as to
the dollar amount. Did they ask ... provide for a specific question in dollar amounts?
You still have the floor, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Yeah. I had been trying to read through this but I saw that it
was on my written notes of the oral testimony but it wasn't in the written testimony. But
we could verify that with MEO.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any additional comments in this area? Members, we had
two people making request of different amounts and so I would ask, Members, that we
come back to this, but the working number continues to be the 110, but we will bring this
back for consideration at second pass. Okay, Members. Hearing no objections, we'll
move on. Thank you for bringing that forward and we have a note to consider that when
we come back around.
Next one is grant to Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc. for Headstart Afterschool
Program, $209,500, no change, Members. The final one on Page 6, grant to Maui
Economic Opportunity, Inc. for Headstart Summer Program, $85,000, no change.
Members, we're moving on ... oh, and before I ask, any objections to any of the requests
that we have on Page 6? Seeing no adjustments let's move on to Page 7, Members. And
if there is something,
looking down and reading so I might not see your hand waving
so please just speak into your microphone. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman, just a procedure question. I
guess what your process is basically if you don't get five Members submitting a revision,
then it will not make I guess your revision list here and at a later time we can propose the
addition or deletion for any particular grant?
CHAIR KANE: We try to ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Or can ...
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Is there consideration to doing it now because I know we
passed something and I apologize for the oversight.
CHAIR KANE: No. No problem.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I was looking at Number 239 on the Community Work Day.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Back on Page 5, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: On Page 5, yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Community Work Day.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. A 50,000 addition for Community Work Day and ...
CHAIR KANE: I show two people. You and Mr. Mateo have-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --provided for that request. We can bring that forward right now-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Can I?
CHAIR KANE: --if there is an additional count of Members that are willing to consider that
request now, then we can plug it in.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: But again, it just comes down to the will of the body. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sure. If I could just make a brief synopsis to this request?
CHAIR KANE: Please do.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I was approached by two of the individuals who work for
Community Work Day and they indicated an increase in operational costs. And as we
know, Community Work Day, they've been asked to do more and more on their "to do"
list dealing with white goods and also other forms of I guess unwanted items. So mainly
it's due to electricity and other operational costs. They put in a request for an additional
50,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Additional comment? I know, Mr. Mateo, you had your request in there
as well.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. Thank you very much, Chairman. The consideration
was based on the fact that the Work Day Program does a lot more than just picking up
rubbish on the side of the road. The impacts of that service greatly impacts the total
economics of this island. It impacts this island because of the work that this one
organization does. It helps to keep our community clean. It helps to keep focus on the
need of litter control and adequate planning and it was just a need for us to step up and
provide that additional support so they can continue their good work because without
them who else would take the lead. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a quick question for the Budget Director, please, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ginoza, this is a General Fund grant but in addition are they not
also being budgeted to receive another 170,000 from the Special Revenue Funds for the
Highway Beautification Program?
MR. GINOZA: That is correct for the abandoned vehicles and white goods.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: From ... from, yeah, from that account. You folks are proposing
the proviso of, and again, I just want to be clear. You folks have stated 170 and yet in the
Budget Ordinance it's 180 so which is the right number?
MR. GINOZA: It should be 170.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One-seven-zero. Okay. So Community potentially gets 320,000
from us.
MR. GINOZA: That is correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Just to follow-up on that question. That 170, Mr. Ginoza, is that specified for a
particular function of Community Work Day by receiving that funds from that Fund
itself?
MR. GINOZA: I believe it was just stated as 170 for Community Work Day
Beautification Revolving Fund.

III

the

CHAIR KANE: So it's not ... it's not restricted to just the assistance with white goods and
abandoned vehicle disposal or clean up?
MR. GINOZA: My recollection is the proviso wasn't that specific.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Okay, again, just to get additional infonnation on that. And I know ...
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. As far as Community Work Day,
whenever a private citizen have or have a problem in regards to abandoned vehicles in
the back of their yards or even white goods in the back of their yards, I understand that
Community Work Day, if you give them a call, that they would come out and remove the
vehicle, put it on the sidewalk or up the side of the road in front the house - not on Hana
Highway or Haleakala Highway. And they'll call the Public Works Department to have
the vehicle picked up or the white goods picked up. So this is one way that they help out
the private citizen, especially the elderly, getting rid of their white goods, as well as their
abandoned vehicles.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares, additional comments in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry. Okay. Mr. Molina, comment?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chainnan. Again, it was brought to my attention
it was based more for operational cost, not so much eannarked for a particular program.
But I'll go ahead and contact Community Work Day and have them give us a specific
breakdown for this additional 50,000 and I'll get it to your Committee tomorrow,
hopefully.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And we're in a position, Mr. Molina, that I will request Members to
consider the working number being increased to the proposal without objections.
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I would say that because we're also coming in to
hurricane season, we're coming in to where we could have bird flu outbreak, we could
have dengue again, I would rather give them the additional money because
we're
incurring additional expenses for all these other things, they are too. So I have no
problem with giving them an additional 50,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any additional comments? Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Hearing ... oh,
I'm sorry. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, if we're all weighing in, count me ... .(laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let's count Ms. Anderson in on that one. Okay, you're in
Ms. Anderson. Members, without objections the Chair will recommend that we increase
the Community Work Day Program amount on Line 240. The revision would reflect
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50,000. The net appropriation on Line 241 would now become 200,000.
objections?

Any

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. Mr. Molina, thank you for bringing that to our attention.
Okay. Members, again, on Page 6 are there any items that we may have passed by that
you wanted to make comment on? If not, we're moving forward to Page 7 and
continuing on Line Item 22 from-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: --Item 295 ... you want me to stop, Ms. Anderson? You have a ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, please.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because I have no idea where to put this.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just in case we're ...
CHAIR KANE: We could put it at the end. These are established ones and then if there's new
ones, we could add it at the end.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, great. That's fine.
CHAIR KANE: And so when we get to the end, then I'll ask for any other request and then
we'll provide that opportunity for inclusion.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Page 7, Members, Item Number 22 on Line 295. Grant to
Maui Economic Opportunity for the Molokai Summer Program, $13,000, no revision;
grant to Maui Economic Opportunity for Youth Bank, $185,000, no revision; grant to
Maui Family Support Services, $50,000, no revision; grant to Maui Economic
Opportunity, Inc. for Infant/Toddler Care Program, 75,500, there is no change; the grant
to the Nisei Veterans Memorial Center, $300,000, no change. This is a one-time capital
improvement I believe, Members, on this one. Okay. Next is grant to Ohana Makamae,
$90,000, no change. Members, on Line Number 319, grants and disbursements for
Planning, design, development and/or construction of supportive living, mixed-use
housing, and/or social/educational facilities, as you can see, this is where we broke it
down and then moved things. Okay, Members, so the consolidation was done on the
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previous page and the 75,000 which we're gonna minus out here is gonna be transferred
to the grants and disbursements for Social Services Campus at the Old Maui High School
Site for Environmental Investigation. Okay, moving on, Members. Grant to the
Salvation Army, 150,000, no change; grants and disbursements for Self-Sufficiency
Programs, $175,000, no change; grants and disbursements for Social Service at Maui,
excuse me, Campus at Old Maui High School Site, 200,000, with the transfer as
discussed previous of 75,000 revision for 275 consolidation. Members, any questions or
comments here? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Yes. Mr. Chairman, regarding the Maui High School Site, I
would like to see us change the name of the grant to the Friends of Old Maui High
School. Because we have not yet determined what the use is gonna be of that campus.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, there has been a recommendation for consideration. Any
questions or comments to the Chair or to Ms. Tavares? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. I can support Member Tavares'
recommendation and as an FYI I would like to disclose to the Committee that I am a
Board of Director for the Friends of Old Maui High School as well. So if there is any
potential conflict, I would be more than happy to recuse myself.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But at this point I haven't found any, but if any ... there are
any objections, I'll honor that consideration.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and thank you for letting the body know. And Members, it will be the
body's choice to see whether or not Mr. Molina needs to recuse himself. But that's not a
Chair determination, that's a body determination so I thank you for letting us know the
status of his affiliation with the group. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I would fully support changing this to Friends of
Old Maui High and
not a graduate
Old Maui
so I think I cancel out
Mr. Molina. . .. (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If that helps.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any additional comments in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Members, the Chair is without ... without objection will move forward and
make that change to the title-- 101 -
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MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane?
CHAIR KANE: --and we'll get some clarification, Ms. Tavares, if you can, please, from our
staff. Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Just to confirm
the Friends of Old--

the name of the grant would be grants and disbursements to

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Maui High School.
MR. TAGUCHI: --Maui High School.
disbursement to that organization?

Will that include for a certain site or it is just a

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Campus.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, just the grant to the organization.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Not grants and disbursements.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So we're removing the word disbursement,-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: We're gonna leave grant and it's gonna

to an

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. The Friends of Old Maui High School is a 501(c)(3).
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Ginoza, I see you reaching for that microphone. Go ahead, please.
MR. GlNOZA: I was gonna ask the body's consideration for me to ask Housing in terms of
what their intentions were to see if it is strictly a grant or they were . . . were they
planning to do County funds disbursements as well for this and it's just more for
clarification for the use of the funds.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, this is a first pass. The Chair will recommend moving
forward with Ms. Tavares' proposal and we can gather information and if we need to
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make any adjustments based on the information gathered, then we can take it up at our
next round. Members?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, Ms. Tavares, no problem?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No problem.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any objections to the movement, Members? Ms. Anderson, in this
area?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. I have no objection. I'm just ... I just ... I have a
question for clarification.
CHAIR KANE: Sure. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, I'm gonna ask the question 'cause I don't have
a clue actually. Aloha House was asking us for some additional funding.
CHAIR KANE: We have that on the next page, Ms. Anderson, so ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I'll wait.
CHAIR KANE: I just ... and just so everybody realizes, we'll go all the way until Line 366
which is an addition and you'll see in the little in the ... on Page 8, Members, you'll
notice under the A column, you'll see a reference point given, HHC 9-22,-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --but then you'll notice that there are three new ones, 356, 360, and 364. One
of 'em of which is the Aloha House request, Ms. Anderson. So that was one thing that
was incorporated and once we get there and we finish up to that point, then ifthere's any
additional request, then we'll take that up and then decide whether or not we can add at
this point on first pass. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's great, Mr. Chair, but what I wanted clarification on,
if any of the Members can help me out on this, I thought that their intent ... oh, never
mind... .(laughter) . .. I just figured it out.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Okay, Members, we're at the ... we just finished
with the Maui High School request of 275 and the title change and we'll remove
disbursements and just put it at grants to Old ... Friends of Old Maui High School.
Okay. That's where we're moving from. Next one, Members, is the grants and
disbursements for Substance Abuse Programs, 750,000, no change. Next is grant to the
- 103 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ofthe County ofMaui

April 24, 2006

Volunteer Center for Project Graduation Programs, 12,000, the Chair has made no
change and 1-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: --figured that there's a request here. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I was ... wanted to have the
Members consider an increase to this particular line item of $48,000 which would bring
the total up to 60,000. There are 12 high schools in Maui County and I think that when
we first put it in last year for Project Graduation we were sort oflike a pilot kind ofthing.
I've asked for a report on this but I haven't received it yet as to which organi ... which
school's actually applied for funding. But I think this is an important program that the
high schools are trying to put out and I see some of the costs that were associated with
registration fees and activity fees and all of that. And whatever we can do either if we
somehow talk to whoever is dealing or dishing it out or distributing the funds that we
have some parameters as to how this money can be used. It would amount to $5,000 per
high school and maybe a portion of that should be used to pay fees for those students who
may not be able to afford the fees for some of those. And I believe we had one response
about the fee ... no, it wasn't a response. It was in the newspaper, in The Maui News,
and I'm sorry I think I sent a memo to the Members earlier regarding it. But the other
alternative is to just leave it at $12,000 and only fund those high schools from which the
Members graduated.... (laughter) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I got one problem with that for Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I protest.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, I mean all kidding aside. I think this is something that
we can look at, and Members if you want, I can reproduce that memo that showed what
the fees were being charged because it was in the paper for each Project Graduation how
much it was costing, what they were doing, et cetera.
KANE: Members, the Chair will request that we use the 12,000 as a working number
first pass and then provide Ms. Tavares opportunity to bring back information that can
help us through the second pass. Ms. Anderson, followed by Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Does Member Anders ... Member
Tavares .. .(laughter) . .. past my bedtime. Do you remember who you asked that report
of? Was it Housing and Human Services?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think it was and it's the Volunteer Action Division I believe
is the one who handles that particular program.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Because 1 know some schools had applied and mostly
because 1 responded 'cause they always ask us to contribute to whatever it is so-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --I know that ... 1 don't know that all schools even knew
that this was available.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know, when we put this in last Budget Session
I'm actually the one that brought it forward and 1 spoke with the lady that heads that
Volunteer Center Program and she assured me that she would notify all of the high
schools and 1 don't know if that means private, too. 1 think the original intention was for
the public schools mostly. But, you know, because this is the first time we've done this,
Mr. Chair, and 1 know it's a limited amount and 1 would love to support increasing the
funding but 1 think we need to know what kind of ... how they're ... how they're
proceeding with this program and what kind of response they've had this year. So that,
you know, we know if we're giving them adequate funding or we may be giving them too
much. After all, we don't want them all going to graduation parties in limos.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 1 think part if not all schools were aware of it. 1 think part of
this problem is and 1 guess because 1 think we've been in ... some of us have been in
some of these high schools is that they change senior advisors sometimes. So they might
notify the schools like after the Budget's finished and then come September there's a new
senior class advisor who then may not become aware. So I'm not quite sure what
happens in that instance but 1 don't think every school applied. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. My question was in part discussed
already but 1 think it's good to first find out exactly how many schools did take advantage
of this offering because 1 do know for a fact that the Molokai High School did not or do
not take advantage of this particular program but that's just because what our community
is. Graduation night for our community is family luaus, which differs from the need to
have a Graduation Night because the program was designed specifically for that night
specifically, but not to be used on any other night, respectively. So it did provide
challenges for our community. Therefore, our Molokai High School is not able to take
advantage of, you know, this type of opportunity. So $1,000 for our school was not ...
was not used. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. That's good additional information. Anyadditional? Members,
the Chair's proposal is again to work with the 12,000 and come back. Mr. Pontanilla, I'm
sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair, it's not for this item here.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any additional question or comment in this area, Members? And
Ms. Tavares, you did send out one dated April ih __
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --to the Members. Thank you. And that one, Members, we're at, excuse me,
Project Graduation Programs. So before we tum the page, Mr. Pontanilla, anything on
Page 7 that we need to go back to discuss?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. On Line 315.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Grant to Ohana Makamae.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: If we could add a proviso to that - provided that a grant
is not awarded through Community Partnership Grants.
CHAIR KANE: Members, you've heard the request. Any questions or comments? Any ... oh,
excuse me, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Could you please repeat that?
KANE: The proviso, Mr. Carroll, on Ohana Makamae is that they cannot get monies
other words, double
from a different pot of money for the same ... for the same use.
dip, yeah. Okay. That's the intent, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yes, sir.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So we proviso that, Members? Okay. Hearing no objections to the
proviso we'll have staff ... staff, you clear on the request? Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: I believe the request was to have a proviso said that ... saying that provided
that a grant from the ... -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Community Partnership Grant.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: CPG - Community Partnership Grant.
MR. TAGUCHI: --from the Community Partnership Grant is not awarded. However, I will
check with the Housing Department because I believe that if a grant is awarded as a line
item grant, then their grant as a Community Partnership Grant would not be given. But
I'll check.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So we'll do follow-up on that. Okay. Members, any additional items to
bring back on Page 7 before we move on? Okay. Members, on Page 8, we're at grant to
Women Helping Women, $165,000, no change, Members. Grants and disbursements for
Youth Centers, $1.75 million, no revision. Grants and disbursements to Youth Programs,
$150,000, no change.
The grants, excuse me, grant to Maui Academy of Performing Arts (MAP A) provided
that there is a one-to-one match of funds raised by MAPA. Members, your Chair's
proposal is for 300,000. The Chair will note on all of your requests in this area and I'm
sorry, Members, let me take a moment here. That we had three requests for the full
request that they made of 500,000; one was for 250,000; and we had four blanks.
Members, so we did not have a consensus on a dollar amount. Your Chair moved
forward a compromise figure as a working number and the Chair is more than happy to
entertain some discussion in this area or if the Member feel comfortable with using that
as their working number and then coming back to this area to having the discussion on
where we go from here. Members, any objections to it being the working number for
first pass - $300,000?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, thank you. The next one is also a new item, Members. Grant
Number 37 on Line 360, the grant to Aloha House, $188,000, by your Chair's
recommendation is before you. Members, are there any objections to having this number
as a working item for Aloha House?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: I think the note here is that it is a one time ... Members, this is a one time fee .
. . .(change tape, start 6A). .. and although next year if they come back and ask for
something else, we have the decision at that time to consider the request next year. But
the intention here is it's a one time grant. Finally, Members, we have a grant to the
National Kidney Foundation of Hawaii. Members, there were only two requests in this
area. However, the Chair, as stated, if it's something that the Chair felt pretty strongly
about, I was willing to put it forward for your consideration. The request is for $50,000
as a working number. Members, is there any discussion in this area? Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. If you could help me refresh my
memory, I believe it was ... the testimony was given to us at the Kahului Community
Center.
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And was it for 50,000 and change or was it just for a specific
50,000.
CHAIR KANE: She made a technical . . . technically, she did request for the amount that
Ms. Tavares reflects, the $435 on top of the 50,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.
CHAIR KANE: I had a chance to talk to her and asked her if they could do with the 50,000 flat
and she indicated that they had no problem with working with that number.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: So that's why I just as an estimate for purposes of the budget we just submitted
a flat item number of 50,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And Chair, I think this is another instance where we need
that proviso because I believe they have also applied under the Community Partnership
Grants process.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. Thank you. Okay. So, staff, proviso on this one for the CPG that they
cannot ... is it Grants Review or is it Community Partnerships?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Community Partnership.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Question? Oh, okay, I see several. So I'll start

Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to find out because I couldn't remember. Are
programs or services also gonna be provided to Molokai and Lanai under this grant? Or
was it for something that was for Maui only?
CHAIR KANE: Good question. Don't have the answer.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
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CHAIR KANE: And you know what, we will follow up because I believe we have written
testimony and a contact number so we will find out for you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would really appreciate that because this is something that,
particularly on Molokai and Lanai, I know that, you know, kidney disease is really a
problem.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. Thank you. Mr. Hokama, followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, is it your understanding that this is a one time grant
request? Because that is the impression I got and I just wanted to ask if that is your
understanding, too, as our Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: I think it is not a one time request because I believe that she's requesting for
somebody to assist her in the office. So I think it's gonna be a annual request. And we
have I believe the written testimony so instead of taking the time to go and read through
that we're gonna be calling a recess shortly so we can do some additional investigation
into that. But my initial understanding, Mr. Hokama, it's not gonna be a one time. It's
gonna be operational.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I just bring it up, Chairman, because while I would agree this is
a worthy cause and in this County we all deal with the issue of kidney disease through the
request for dialysis service, transportation, and other needs, but this is one of the few
agencies, the National Kidney Foundation, that has large national corporate underwriters
like Cadillac of America that sponsors, even in our County, a major fundraising effort for
National Kidney Foundation. So I think it might be prudent to find out what are they
getting from these national sponsors and underwriters and why now do they need to come
to the County since it's one of the few with this national support, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Fair question.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Fair question and we will make that request of Ms. Sally ... I think it's Barron.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Barron.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Director of the Maui office. So we'll make that request, Members. Any
additional? Ms. Tavares, question?
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Yeah. Mr. Chair, the testimony that's or the written
testimony that she gave us dated April sth __
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER T AVARES: --refers to what they were applying for in the Community
Partnership Grant thing and it was two years at 50,435 each and I note that the program is
actually for the island of Maui. It's because it refers to the Maui program will be to
create public awareness and stopping and delaying progression of kidney disease, and I
think they wanted to do Maui island first and then expand to Molokai and Lanai. That's
my understanding of it but can double check with Ms. Barron.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any additional questions or comments, Members, in this
area? Members, would you like to consider a removal until we get that information or
are you comfortable with having it here until we get information and make an
adjustment?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Working number, Members? Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, without objections, this will be a working number at first pass
and we will make the necessary contact to get additional information for the Committee.
Members, I've agreed to solicit new areas in this part of our budget, and if you don't
mind, why don't we go ahead and call for our recess, our mid-evening recess, and then
we will come back. So, Members, is ten minutes okay with you?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let's take ten minutes. We'll reconvene at 8:40 and we will pick up
right here in the grants area. Okay, Members, we stand in recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

8:29 p.m.

RECONVENE:

8:45 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: " .(gavel) . .. Okay, Members, the Committee is reconvened. Thank you for
that recess. Members, for your information, we are on Page 8. We have gotten to the last
grant request and Members, before we get into Animal Management I will recognize
Ms. Anderson who has an item for consideration. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I do?
CHAIR KANE: I think this is the area where if you had something new, this would be the place
once we got through the list of what we had there already. So I don't know if you have
something.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. Actually, I was talking about Aloha House, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, okay, so that's handled.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I just want to add a grant for the
Members' consideration. This grant and disbursement is for Lihikai School Afterschool
Tutoring Program and my request is for $6,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, you've heard the request. And in concept, Mr. Pontanilla, is
this similar to what Member Johnson's West Side Tutoring Program?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yes, it is.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Great. Lihikai School, Members, Tutoring Program, any objections to
the addition?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, $6,000.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: We'll have that added in.
Mr. Hokama.

Are there any other requests, Members?

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chainnan, as the Members can see on the matrix you did of the
Members, I would like to ask the Members consideration for a grant to the Lanai
Women's Health Center Program. It's a fledgling program, Mr. Chainnan, that is just
getting its toddlers feet on the ground and I believe the Members are aware of the efforts
of Jackie Woolsey and Phyllis McOmber. We did have ... also have from the Hawaii
Community Foundation Program but the request I have and, and Mr. Chainnan, thank
you, I appreciate you listing it twice but it's only ... my error, it's only one request for
$75,000 to assist them with the purchase and installation of a mobile trailer building that
we are looking at to be situated by the current Lanai Community Hospital to be able to
provide some level of women's healthcare services. You know, as some of my
colleagues can appreciate, Lanai being a very plantation town yet even though we don't
have any pineapple industry there. We have always been lacking with female medical
services being a plantation town with a plantation doctor, a male doctor, and nonnally our
women were either uncomfortable, didn't go to the facility for medical services or they
would decide that they are willing to spend the extra transportation cost and go to Maui
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or Honolulu for consultation with a female physician. So I just ask the Members if they
would consider assisting our community with this grant request of 75,000 for the Lanai
... and a grant to, Mr. Chairman, the Lanai Women's Health Center. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, you've heard the request on the table for $75,000.
Comments, Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes. Thank you, Chair. I'd just like to ask, Mr. Hokama,
does this mean that this would provide them with a female physician?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Please.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Chairman, that was part of the concern that the
current hospital administration program has under the Hawaii Healthcare Services
Program. Because we did ... we believe there is not enough synergy, if I can use that
term, to have competing agencies with our limited popUlation to have a reasonable
economic basis, Mr. Chair, to have more than one service provider. So for the Lanai
Women's Health Center we are looking at nurses, a nursing program, or a physical [sic]
assistant program. We're not gonna compete with the current service provider that
provides the physicians because we would hate for them to consider walking away from
the community since there's more competition, and yet for the one provider, not even
sufficient amount of caseload to even break even. So this wouldn't be a competing ... I
would add ... share with the Members that we are looking at a complementary service
and this service is basically to help the women of our island to have better health care
options. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And I think the word we're looking for is critical mass.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm very supportive of this because I think it mirrors the
program that they have on Molokai and I think that the little trailer that is right near the
hospital there has really proven to kind of create this environment where the women do
provide many of their own educational services, and actually, it's very helpful.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional questions or comments in this area, Members, for the request of
$75,000 for the purchase of a portable unit? Members, any objections to having this
dollar amount put in as a working number for our first go around?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Hearing no objections. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chainnan. Members, thank you very much for this
consideration and I understand it is part of the first round's working number but my
appreciation. The second one you will see on the list, Members, is another request for the
Lanai Youth Center, but at this point, Mr. Chainnan, I'm working with the department
and Ms. Diane Irons of the Lanai Youth Center. I'm trying to find out whether the
funding for this Fiscal Year that you the Members have been very supportive of will be
utilized, and if it can be utilized and encumbered, Mr. Chainnan, I'm gonna be happy to
withdraw this request. But if for whatever reason it's gonna lapse, the amount is gonna
lapse and timing just doesn't work out for the Youth Center on Lanai, then I will ask ...
come back to you and the Members for another consideration, Mr. Chainnan. So thank
you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any additional request in this area before we move out of
the grants area for Housing, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I did have one item noted which was for Hale 0
Lanakila on my little sheet, but if you could just remove that, because I will be requesting
that in Transportation. So that was one of the items on my list.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Ke Ipu Kukui I had put
a request for 25,000 because I
believe that there may be some additional unexpended monies from the 2006 Budget so I
still have not been able to find out from the Human Services or actually I guess it was ...
there was other money and it was not in Human Services, it was actually in Economic
Development. So I have ... I have asked if I could have a little bit more time to figure
out if there's any money available underneath that, and then I would just ask the
Members to consider that. I have no problem with including the 50,000 but if we have
money in this year's budget, that would help.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we will ... and I'm sorry, I don't know if it's myself and
staff that gave a wrong ... I believe it is Ka Ipu Kukui. But if it's Ke Ipu, we'll figure
that one out. But I think it's Ka Ipu Kukui for that leadership program, yeah, that I think
Mr. Nunokawa, Mr. Buchanan, came and testified for the program. So we'll go ahead
and follow-up and at this point, Members, although we won't put it in as working number
yet, this is a number that we will consider on the second round, Members. Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I had it in OED and it's in Human Concerns and it
is Ka Ipu.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So would that ... does it make a difference whether where it
is?
CHAIR KANE: Db ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Because this is a leadership program.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It belongs there.
CHAIR KANE: Economic Development.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So I ask if we can consider moving it to OED.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair, and that's where I believe it belongs and
that's where I sent Mr. Okamoto to see, you know, our ...
KANE: Stanley Okamoto?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I sent him to see our ...

head of OED.

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Araki-Regan?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, Members, so we will bring it back for discussion not in this
area but we will consider it in the OED area under the Office of the Mayor. I believe this
was the area, Ms. Johnson, where you wanted to have a discussion on the West Maui
Adult Day Care Center of 150,000.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. That was, you know, because of the fact that I really
feel very strongly that our seniors have to have a safe place to be and because the whole
facility is falling down right now, if the tennites stop holding hands, I think they're in
serious trouble. The facility does need to be relocated and the sooner the better. So I
would respectfully ask the Members to consider the 150,000 which would be a one time
CIP grant.
CHAIR KANE: Members, you heard the proposal. There are three others besides Ms. Johnson
who has listed that as of interest at full funding. Any additional discussion in this area?
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I would support that. I think that I went on a tour
of this place when I was looking at Malu DIu Olele Park when I was first appointed Parks
Director and I couldn't believe what it was like then and I can imagine that what it is
now. And there's an opportunity for actually very little money to go ahead and provide a
facility for $150,000 rather than building a whole new day care center. So I would
support it and we could consider putting it in where we have the other grant to Hale
Mahaolu and just have two or somewhere wherever it happens to fall nicely.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We'll allow staff once we've made a final detennination as to this being
a working item. Again, Members, we have four Members who have asked for the full
funding request made by Member Johnson in this case. Any additional comments in this
area, Members? Ms. Anderson, comments?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. I just want to say that I do
support this also. You know, either now or later and later is gonna be more money so
why not do it now.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, your Chair's recommendation is to put it in as a working
number for the first round for the West Maui Adult Day Care Center for Hale Mahaolu I
believe. And if, Members, you would allow staff to place it in the appropriate area
whether it's to combine it with the other item or to keep it as a single item since it is a
different function-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --as far as CIP I believe in this case, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any additional comments, Members, in this area? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I had one which no one knows about except me. It's the
West Maui Healthcare Alliance and for those of you that have been reading about our
ongoing problems in West Maui with trying to establish after hours emergency care
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there's been a bill that's been submitted by our Representative Kam Tanaka. And at first
we thought it had died because of some language problems but now it is alive at the State
Legislature. Because this has been worked on for almost four years and at some point in
time I'm hoping we actually get a facility or at least some services for West Maui. Until
that time though we really have an urgent need so Ms. Maria Weber as well as other
members of the community have worked really hard and they have secured a 501(c)(3).
The arrangement that they have would be to use the existing facility, Maui Medical
Group, and to utilize after hours care. I would ask for the consideration on the basis that
this is an emergency-type of service. We do fund the helicopter. I think that that also has
provided additional security to West Maui citizens but it is not available in all
circumstances. So I would ask that this be put in with a proviso that it be matched by
State funds of an equal amount.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, you've heard the request. Is there any written documentation
to this request that the body can have for ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I will get that for you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: And just given ... given the size of the request I would ask that we not put this
in as a working number-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Fine.
CHAIR KANE: --but if you can please provide the Committee with a breakdown of the request,
how it's gonna be utilized and that way the body can be more informed in their decision
on this request.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much and I will provide that. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.
KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Members, any other request this area? Mr. Mateo.
See when you reach for that mike, Mr. Mateo, ... (laughter) . .. I spock 'em.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman ... Chairman, it would be in a reference to

275.

CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we're going back to Page Number 6 and this would be for the
grant to Maui Community Food Bank of$150,000. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. In the Members' submissions
I added $50,000 addition to the Maui Community Food Bank but I was four short of
support to get it on to the Chair's budget considerations. However, at this particular point
in time, Chairman, I just would make a plea to the Members, the Maui Community Food
Bank we've seen them over and over again for the last number of budget deliberations.
This particular organization's 150,000 has remained flat for the last number of fiscal
years and yet the demand on this particular organization continues to grow. So I just
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wanted the consideration of an increase in this ... to this particular organization because
their efforts is one that provides services to all of our County and I just felt it appropriate
at this time to do a request on behalf of helping to feed the people of this County.
CHAIR KANE: The dollar amount would be for?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Fifty thousand dollars increase.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. The proposal has been put forward to add 50,000 to the Maui
Community Food Bank proposal making it a total of $200,000. Any additional
comments in this area? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: TharJk you, Chair. I would be happy to support this. I'm
looking at our revised list on Page 3, Maui Community Food Bank Grant, and I see
nothing there. Was there an error? Was that supposed to be 50,000, Mr. Mateo,-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Page 3.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --under you?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Oh, yeah.
CHAIR KANE: On the revised.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It got dumped.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's the only one that's missing?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, there was another one missing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Did somebody else have 50,000 on that
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, I don't know.
CHAIR KANE: Well, we can ... we're there now so we can ask now. The question's on ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Raise your hand.... {laughter} . ..
CHAIR KANE: The question's on the table now. Any additional comments in this area? I'm
sorry. Ms. Anderson, any additional comments?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. Just that I fully support the request.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I support it and Lahaina is one ofthe centers of hunger also.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any additional comments in this area, Members? If you note this past
weekend I think their drive they were on the corners of Puunene and Kaahumanu and
Hobron, if I'm not mistaken, with their fishnets and they had the whole crew out there on
their fundraising drive. Members, the Chair has no problem with putting forward a
request for your consideration in light of the request from Mr. Mateo for an additional
50,000 to the Food Bank as a working number for the first round. Any objections to the
working number of200,000?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. We have that working number. Thank you, Mr. Mateo.
Okay, Members, seeing no further request for grant opportunities in the Housing and
Human Concerns Department.
We're finally at the Animal Management Program, Members, the Mayor's proposal of
$1.3 million. Your Chair has provided you with two additions and I'm just taking note of
the revision. Staff ... oh, wait ... staff, if you can provide just comment on the 371 not
being consistent in the Column C with the Column E on Line 371, please? Provided, that
37 shall be for Molokai Human Society for the spay and neuter program and office space
needs and then the number across in E is 22,000. And then the provided, that 14,920
shall be there for the Feline Foundation also has a line item figure. Comments,
Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: I believe that the ... can I have some time to check on this?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Revels, please. Yes?
MS. REVELS: Okay. There is an existing line item that says provided that 15,000 shall be for
the Molokai Humane Society for the spay and neuter program and we just added 22,000
to also include office space needs.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you for that clarification. Members, the 15,000 already
existed as a line item included in the Animal Management Program proposal from the
Mayor and so the addition would be for the spay/neuter program and office space needs
as was provided for in a written proposal. So we're just providing the difference of
22,000 for the total of 37,000. The second one is as we heard from testimony. Your
Chair is putting forward the request for the 14,920 for the Feline Foundation for a total
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adjustment of $36,920 to the Mayor's proposed $1.3 million, Members.
proposal. Any questions or comments? Ms. Tavares.

That is the

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chair, I wanted to put forward also for the Maui
Humane Society an additional $60,000 for their operations. I had put in 25,000 for
Molokai and 10,000 for the Feline Foundation but I can certainly live with your numbers
but I would like to point to the fact that the Humane Society's budget was flat from last
year to this year. And that they did send us a budget and their, you know, their variances
in their budget are what they are short of as far as increased cost over the year or what
they project for next year came to $123,500. But of that $60,000 was for two vehicles
which they would be purchasing out of the Revolving Fund and that left a balance of
about 63,524 so I would ask for the body's consideration to increase their budget by
$60,000 in addition to what's already been put forward by you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, without objections the Chair will bring forward the $60,000
but let's go through each one of 'em for ... see whether or not we have objections to any
of the three as a working number to the overall total number. First, on the 22,000 which
would again provide for the spay/neuter program and office space needs. Any additional
comment here from the Members? Any objections to it moving forward as the working
number?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Next, we have the Feline Foundation request of 14,920. I believe this is
to assist them with their efforts, Members. Question in this area? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, can you help refresh my memory, please?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm not too sure what was their request.
KANE: Thank you. We'll pull that up a..lld so we'll move forward.
item while we look into that and then we will move forward to Ms. Tavares' request of
additional $60,000. Members, we'll get back to the Feline Foundation. But for the
60,000 additional request, is it operations so-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --just right into the budget?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Members, 60,000 request to put into the working number. Any questions or
comments in this area? Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is Mr. Hokama asking if that was the request from the
Feline Foundation?
CHAIR KANE: No. He's asking the content or the substance of the request - what is it for. So
we're looking right now.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's the spay and neuter ...
CHAIR KANE: Right. The 850 spay/neuters.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have that.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Yeah. I have that. I pulled it faster than Lance did. The
Feline Foundation is asking for $9,720 for an additional 180 surgeries and $5,200 for ten
hours a week of administrative support for a total of 14,920.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If I recall right, Chairman, they would spay/neuter and re-release
back ... this is regarding feral cats, right?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I got a problem with this and my problem is I have a problem with
re-releasing, Chairman. . . .(change tape, start 7A) . .. We talk about our indigenous
plants and animals, well, my problem is native birds. So I prefer not to have those feral
cats re-released. I rather just have them euthanized.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. Additional comments in this area on the 14,920 request?
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know there's several schools of thought on that, but
eventually, if the feral cat population is controlled and it's worked in other areas because
I've read about the statistics, eventually you don't have a feral cat population because
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they're not re-populating. So, you know, one of the objectives and goals of the Humane
Society is to have a zero kill facility so that you're not euthanizing. And I'm the first one
to say I love the native birds and all of the wonderful things that we have, but you know
what, people are gonna do it anyways. So I would rather have them ... when they're ...
when other people are irresponsible and they let the animals out and they tum sometimes
wild, some escape, I would rather have at least them not be able to reproduce and have
additional kittens. I know that a lot of 'em end up being killed on the highways and what
not, but you know, this is just, just my personal belief and I have seen this program work
in other areas and it does take away a lot of the stigma, which is one of the big objections
of any humane society. No one wants to take in their animal to be spayed or neutered if
they know it's gonna be killed. So what they do is they leave them to roam around
anyway and re-populate. So for whatever it is, I do support the program because I think
we have to have a lot of different options and they're not always pleasing to everyone.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you for your comments. Any additional comments in this area,
~embers? ~s. Anderson.
COUNCIL~E~BER

ANDERSON: I see a proviso here prohibiting the use ... funds not to be
used for purchase of taser devices.

CHAIR KANE: That's an existing proviso that was in the current budget that is carrying
through for the Animal ~anagement Control Officers not being able to have tasers for
their ...
COUNCIL~E~BER

ANDERSON: And they were ... they did request that at one time?

CHAIR KANE: No. I believe that was something that was imposed on them I believe from this
body.
COUNCIL~E~BER

ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. ~embers, any further discussion on the Feline Foundation working
number? And I know that we have some opposition to this so what the Chair will do is,
without objection, we'll use this as a working number to move forward. However, this
will come back and we will take a final discussion on this matter specifically. Okay,
~embers, any objections to that?
COUNCIL ~E~BERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
Okay. Hearing none. The final request, ~embers, under the Animal
~anagement Program is ~ember Tavares' request for an additional $60,000 in operation
monies to be applied to the working number. Discussion? ~r. Hokama.

CHAIR KANE:

VICE-CHAIR HO~A:
Revolving Fund?

Was

~s.

Tavares' request from General Funds or from the
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It was from General Funds. They're using 60,000 from
Revolving Funds for the purchase of the vehicle the 60,000 for two ... two trucks I
believe it is.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you want to use the other fund ... the balances in the Revolving
Fund?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. We could take a look at that. I mean I was looking at
it at ... I'm not sure what the balance is currently and what monies might be available or
what it's used for throughout the year besides what's in their ... their operating budget.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Chairman, I would just ask to see if there's sufficient
balances in the fund, this one was created to help pay for the Management Program so
since they have dedicated funding I would rather see us utilize this Revolving Fund first
and minimize any from the General Fund. That's just my personal take, take on this,
Chairman. And if you look at the schedule of funds on Page 31, Members, in your
Ordinance book, it appears they're just short of $129,000 with the current year's
projected balance and the projected revenue coming in for '07, they're just 100
something dollars shy of 129, Chairman. So I would just ask the Members that this is
another way that has already been dedicated through the County Code to help pay for the
program. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. You've heard ... any further discussion in this area?
Member Tavares, any additional comment in this area as far as the preference for the
source of funds? I know we're in General Fund right now that's why so-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --there would need to be an adjustment as to where the money comes from.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chair,
not sure how much of that Revolving
Fund they've already figured in to their operating funds, you know, to date. So, you
know, I can check with the Director of the program.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: But if the funds are available, I have no problem using them.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any additional comments? Mr. Ginoza, as our Budget Director, do you
have any comments in this area just to provide the Members with information?
MR. GINOZA: No, I don't, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any additional comments on this, Members? The Chair's
recommendation, Members, for the first pass is to not include the 60,000 but provide
additional information, Ms. Tavares. Since we're coming back to this area on the Feline
question-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --I think we can have another opportunity to discuss the 60,000 request.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. So we'll move on with the working number right now of what
you see in Item, excuse me, Column F on Line 373, the 1,336,920 working number.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Members, we're moving in to the Department of
Liquor Control Liquor Fund. We have two dollar amounts that there have been no
request for revision. This is a self-sustaining fund, Members. What they collect from
fees and from their users of liquor pays entirely for this fund. So this is not General Fund
I believe, yeah? Okay. Members, any questions or adjustment requests? Seeing none.
Let's move out and into Department of Management. Members, under the Department of
Management, we have the Management Program dollar amount. There has been
adjustments that have been made or proposed for your consideration first. We have ... I
believe this was something that existed already - the provided, that disbursement for
salaries and premium pay limited to six equivalent personnel and one LTA equivalent
personnel. There has been a request or a proposal for your consideration to first delete
five EP for Call Center Expansion Positions; second one, delete miscellaneous costs for
the Call Center; and third, delete the equipment costs for the Call Center to provide us
with an adjusted dollar amount for your consideration of $655,806. Members, questions
or comments in this area? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My only question was and because I wasn't here for the
whole discussion, the Call Center I understood at least just from what I can recall that this
was to be utilized for I guess fielding complaints and then trying to find I guess some
appropriate way to have the . . . to basically the individuals who are calling gets some
type of assistance. Is this not what this is for?
CHAIR KANE: Yes. It is.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And up above I guess on Line 387, so are you eliminating-CHAIR KANE: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --or is there an inclusion-CHAIR KANE: That's nothing to do. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --of a limited term?
CHAIR KANE: That has nothing to do with this.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Alright.
CHAIR KANE: That was something that existed already-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --from the Mayor's proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I guess my question would be that being the case
because we continuously get complaints. All of our offices get at times inundated with
requests for service. Is there any way ... since it's only three individuals that requested
that this be deleted, is there any kind of compromise that we might work on to do this on
a test basis to see if it is workable or even if there were some type of a pilot project that
the Members could consider moving forward with? I have no problem but I can
understand why you're not sure if it's going to work. So rather than just go into it
headlong even to try to find some way that we could either do LTA's or just, you know,
come up with a pilot and a scaled down operation. That's just my suggestion.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for your comments.
Mr. Molina.

Any additional comments in this area?

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for clarification. We're talking
specifically about the deletions for the Call Center and the EPs.
CHAIR KANE: That is correct, Lines 388 through 390, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I know I made this request for deletion because for me it just
leaves too much questions right now as to how effective this would be. I think I've
reiterated it at a meeting recently where I said that half the complaints we get in our
office is because of people not getting responded to by the personnel on the ninth floor or
because they've just got tired of waiting and I don't know if this spending over $600,000
to respond to the public, I don't know if this is something that is of a high priority. So it
leaves that question for me. And ultimately, it comes down to the response from our
Department Heads. Without naming certain departments, I get complaints about that
department's not responding to concerns expressed by the communities which relate to
our various facilities or other matters. So I see the problem as being more internal at this
point. Maybe there could be a communication breakdown but I don't see how a proposal
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like this could be a good fit at this time for Maui County. Now I know that it was
mentioned to us that in various metropolises across the country they have these Call
Centers but you talking about millions of people or hundreds of thousands of people.
We're talking about a County of maybe what - 130,000 plus people so I don't know if
something like this is a good fit at this particular point in Maui County's history. So
those are my comments and my reasons for this ... for my rationale for suggesting a
deletion for this program, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I'd just like to add my comments. I
was one of the supporters for this Call Centers ... Center for Maui County, and basically,
you know, coming from an industry where you had Call Centers, if you can fix the
problem up front, then, you know, you make your customers happy. And I think that
what Member Johnson had mentioned it could be a really, really good tool for the County
in the sense that if you work it properly, you can solve problems upfront. That's my two
cents. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chairman, I think it's ... this is premature for us
to consider a Call Center. I think the first time we heard it was during the presentation
for expansion positions. I also question why we have this when we have spent hundreds
of thousands of dollars with the RFS system which is a Request for Service. There is an
Office of Information located on the ninth floor and I'm really not convinced yet that this
is something that we . .. we should spend this kind of money on at this time. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Additional comments? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know, theoretically, this could
be a good thing, but until the foundation within the County that would support this is up
and running as it should, I can't see putting more money out there to just frustrate people
and make it longer for them to get an answer. You know, our public servants should be
responsive to the public and that means taking their phone calls and returning them. And
people in the Call Center are only going to have to call the people in the department to
get the answers. So I don't see how this is going to be any great help. It's just gonna be,
you know, another layer of government that separates the public from the people who
have the answers and, and have the knowledge so that, you know, one question always
leads to another. So I can just see this being, you know,just a series of phone calls trying
to get information.
And you know, our Request for Service Program should be operating 100 percent before
we take anything like this on and our KIVA system should be operating 100 percent and
neither one of them are. So I can't see that this program would help us.
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And you know, they, they talked about hundreds of frequently asked questions that this
Call Center would be able to give answers to, but you know, if you've already developed
hundreds of frequently asked questions and you have the answers to them, well, get 'em
on our website. And, and whoever's answering the phone in any of the departments
should have that list of frequently asked questions and answers and be able to provide the
information just as well as anybody sitting in the Call Center should. So I agree with the
other Members. I think it's premature for a County of this size to ... you know, I
appreciate the intent and the desire to be, you know, to make an attempt to better serve
the public but I think we can better serve the public by just, you know, getting ourselves
up to par with the services we already have.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any additional comments in this area, Members?
The Chair will just share two brief comments additional and since your Chair is the one
who moved forward this recommendation, I think it's appropriate that I respond. First to
. . . as we were having the discussion on formulating the proposal, Members, the first
thing that came to mind was all the request for the Clerks and the justification for the
Clerks and how it seemed like it wasn't coordinated with this Call Center as far as you
heard the request for the Clerks and why they were being asked for. It seemed like they
were the ones who were going to be picking up phones and dealing with the public and so
there didn't seem to be a level of coordination that would justify the request. And then
second, and I thank Ms. Johnson for bringing forward the discussion of a pilot. That was
also something that was brought forward, but if you look at the equipment where the vast
cost of this program is, even with a pilot it seems that this $566,000 program would still
be required just for the pilot program and so it may create some issues there as far as cost
versus what we're going to get out of it or a full impact of the effectiveness of the
program. So your Chair felt that it ... like some of the Members have stated, it seemed
to be premature to bring this forward at this time until we had I guess a further
explanation on how it will be coordinated and be effective within the County
government. So that's the reason why it was put forward. Members, the Chair's
recommendation is to use this as a working number and that we will have an opportunity
to express our thoughts on this on the next go around. Any objections to moving
forward, Members, with this working number?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Members, we're on Page 9. We're moving
through the Energy Program of 93, excuse me, $95,315. There is no recommended
revisions. Under the Management Information Systems Program, starting with Line 400,
we have delete computer for Fire and Public Safety Battalion Chiefs, delete computer for
Planning Personnel Specialist, and delete computer for expansion positions in
Department of Planning. Members, I will ask for your consideration to allow further
discussion when we get to those respective areas to justify your Chair's proposal because
this ties into another area since Management ... MIS is responsible for the oversight of
equipment, et cetera. Okay, Members, any objections to these numbers and moving on?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Any request for adjustments in this area? Okay. We'll corne back to that again,
Members, just for again justification purposes. Under the GIS or Geographic Information
Systems Program of$312,011, oh, $111, no revisions, Members. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chair, thank you. This is one ofthe areas that we
actually didn't talk with the head of this division and I note in our Budget Details that this
department is like totally flat. Not one cent more than this year. I think it's the only
place where I saw a totally flat budget.
CHAIR KANE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: But I am concerned because every other place where we
have these high level computers, we've had requests from MIS, from Planning, to
upgrade software or something. So, Mr. Chair, I'm a little concerned that GIS ... this
GIS Division isn't going to have the funds to upgrade or to do anything else with their
equipment. And I know we haven't heard them but either, you know, we ask or someone
can talk with the GIS Coordinator, but I would like to see us revisit this and perhaps put
some money in for some hardware and software upgrades because I think our GIS system
is extremely important for the entire County of Maui.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Ginoza, any comments in this area as the Budget
Director who provided us with the proposed document?
MR. GINOZA: I would have to defer to the department.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, we'll ask staff to contact the GIS Division
through the Managing Director's Office, Acting Mayor Regan, to provide some ... some
time maybe, Members, tomorrow to corne forward and we'll focus specifically on this
area for questions. And Ms. Tavares, we'll give you the floor since you've initiated that
request.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So we'll make contact with the department and ask for their presence
tomorrow morning. Thank you. Ms. Anderson, followed by Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. In regards to this, you know, they have
contracted with Blue Line I believe is the name of ... no?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's Planning.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Pardon me?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's Planning.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Planning Department.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, no. Planning is using Community ... they're ...
that's the point is that Planning is no longer using this. They're using their own system
and Blue Line . . . this was brought out in the report that we got on the Planning
Department. The Planning Department doesn't want to use what GIS is using so they're
using their own system. And I . . . unfortunately, we've been so inundated with
information since Friday I haven't had a chance to read the response but I did ask, you
know, what we've received from Blue Line, how much money we've put towards it, what
product we've received from it. And Blue Line is the system that GIS is using and I
know that they, you know, they have been amending their contract, $75,000, recently.
So, you know, I'm happy to have Ms. Tavares' inquiry pursued but it's my understanding
that, that they have the money they need. I would think that they would come and ask us
if they needed any upgrades. The system that the Planning Department is using
Community-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Community Viz.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: --Viz. Yeah, Viz. Viz, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Community vision.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Thank you.

Yeah.

So that's my recollection of the matter, Chair.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Mr. Hokama, any additional comments in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just one quick one, Chairman, please, for the Budget Director. Did
you in the departments' budgets put the software that may ... could have been part of
Department of Management's GIS Program area? Did, did you approach it that way, or
you know, because Public Works, Planning, they all carne
with their
hardware/software requirements.
MR. GINOZA: My recollection is the various departments for their expansion and equipment
request and software request were funneled through the MIS Program. But within the
Management Office I believe it was within that office but I can confirm that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And Mr. Chairman, I just ask that because, again, take Planning
Department for the example. This year they're asking us for another $300,000-plus to
take care for Molokai, Lanai, culture overlays, things that I thought would have been part
of the GIS side regarding the mapping and the inventorying of the specific things they
needed for the General Plan Update. Well, that's what Long Range is saying that they
need for the update for Molokai/Lanai's General Plan. So we're spending $300,000-plus
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on consultant work there. I'm just wondering if ... that's, that's okay, Chainnan. You
know what, I think I'm gonna take my bone on this one and kick the dog at the right
place .... (chuckles) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any further questions or comments, Members, in this
area of MIS? Again, we will be inviting or making attempts to invite the Department of
Management to discuss the GIS request, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any ... Members, we'll move forward at this point. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let's move into the Office of the Mayor, Administration Program.
Members, your Chair has not provided any revision. Any questions/comments? Yes,
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. As part of my proposal, I'd just like
to share with the rest of the Members is that the Baldwin Beach House, I had removed it
from the Public Works Environment Management area to the Office of the Mayor, as
well as the Maui County Environmental Resource Center, $50,000, to the Office of the
Mayor also. I understand that the person that is in charge of the Environmental
Management reports to the Mayor so it should go to the Mayor's Office as part of his
expenses. And I had also included in the Administration Program a decrease of the
lounge furniture by 150,000. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. The lounge furniture ... was that the sound
system?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.
KANE: The furniture, yeah?

sorry.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, the furnitures [sic] ... sofas, the chairs, tables.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any . . . Members, under Administration Program,
Mr. Pontanilla, are you proposing ... I'm sorry, Mr. Pontanilla, are you proposing an
adjustment to the fund? A specific dollar amount, please.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. Reducing the lounge furniture by $150,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. The request is on the table. Mr. Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chainnan, I too, cut the same area with the same amount. But
at this particular point, I have a question that perhaps I don't know who can answer
because it was actually listed as furniture and there was additional reference made to
Akaku equipment and I don't know what the he ... what it might be ... .(laughter) . ..
So perhaps if somebody can clarify it so I can get a better understanding as to is it
furniture, is it Akaku's sound equipment, or what.
MR. GINOZA: If! may, Mr. Chainnan?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: I don't have my Details here but it's for the renovation of the Mayor's Lounge
which would include the broadcast equipment for . . . to broadcast Akaku for public
meetings and also for just renovating the lounge itself with ceilings and there's also some
consideration for the dividing walls. So it wasn't basic ... it wasn't only furniture but it
was just a general renovation of the lounge.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And just for clarification purposes, if I may. Then general
renovation of the lounge then, was it specific in describing to us that it was both furniture
requests, as well as ability to be able to utilize Akaku services?
MR. GINOZA: I don't remember what is ... what was the details but I can look at that. But
basically, that was the purpose of the request.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chainnan. I'll go look through
it myself.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
Ms. Anderson.

Thank you.

Additional questions or comments

III

this area?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair, what line are you folks referencing?
CHAIR KANE: Right now we're talking about the Office of the Mayor, Administration
Program, on Line 411 through 414, and Member Pontanilla is making a request to adjust
the figure down by $150,000 on the furniture request and which ties to what's on your
Page 10-5 of your Details, which describes in the Mayor's Office C Account various
furniture and fixtures. There's a total of $200,000 and the notes are Mayor's Lounge
improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Members, additional comments? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I believe that because we've made some modifications to our
aging facilities, I think it's only appropriate that we try and provide something because
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every time I go in there ... even if it was some furnishings, the furnishings that are in
there are inappropriate. And it is so difficult for some of the elderly people to get down
low enough to even sit in some of those chairs. They are ancient and I just think, you
know, what's good for the goose is good for the gander so put it in there and let them do
the renovations.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Additional comments in this area, Members? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I gotta thank the Budget Director for
clarifying, you know, what is needed in the Mayor's Lounge. When you read this line
item here and it says various furnitures [sic] and fixtures .. .(change tape, start 7B) . ..
then you look up on the ceiling and you see lights, then when you see around the room,
all you see is furnitures [sic], you know, $200,000 just to do that is quite a bit of money.
But I'm glad he indicated that some of the partitions need to be repaired or added which
this one particular line item here doesn't say that. So thank you. Thank you.
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: I do apologize. I looked at the description and it really is not a description that
is representative of what is requested and I was hoping that, you know, in the
presentation of the Budget that, you know, the representative from the Mayor's Office
would be able to, you know, at least describe what was gonna be done, and I apologize.
CHAIR KANE: No apologies needed, Mr. Ginoza. I mean we as a body decided, you know,
that we were ready to move on, but sometimes we have additional questions and that's
okay. So we're here now. Members, any additional questions? Mr. Pontanilla, is there a
reconsideration on your part to delete your request for reduction?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yes. I could at this time.
CHAIR KANE: Okay_
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you for that clarification, Budget Director.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. We do not have any request to delete at this time so your
Chair's recommendation is to move forward with the working number under the Office
of the Mayor, Administration Program, of$I,504,815. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. That's our working number, Members. Moving into the Economic
Development, --
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: --oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I just take note that the Budget Director in his preparation asked for
replacement and that's what my understanding your request is for us to accept the
funding request for replacement. So what's not there, don't add on. We talking about
replacement, not expansion. I just want that clearly understood.
CHAIR KANE: Regarding the furniture?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's what the request is - replacement.
CHAIR KANE: Additional comments, Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: Maybe I don't understand Mr. Hokama's remarks.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My remarks is I thought I heard request from this replacement
proposal to include new things besides replacement. You guys talking about new
equipment that don't exist.
MR. GINOZA: Did I mention replacement and in did, I ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's what's on the page.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You are asking for a replacement consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's under the column that says replacement.
MR. GINOZA: Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: We're providing the Details page, Mr. Hokama, to the Director. Members,
you'll note on Page 10-5 of Details, it says replacement and $200,000 amount. Hang on
one second, Mr. Molina. Mr. Hokama, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, Chair, I just want it clear that that is my understanding of
what we're moving on with the first round working number. That's all, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just to clarify matters,
should we consider maybe a proviso then to ensure that it is just specifically for
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replacement and not to include whatever additional expansion that might be ... being
considered by the Administration?
CHAIR KANE: What we can do, Mr. Molina, and thank you, you know, I think that's a fair
request given what's being represented in the documents as far as replacement and
comparing the description of what's gonna be done, which seems to be improvements,
and you know, expansion, if you will, perhaps. That we can get some level of response
from the Office of the Mayor specific to this request either in writing or we can get
something as a comment from the department, you know, through testimony or we have
an opportunity to ask a question right here on this Chamber floor. So if without
objections to follow-up with your question, Mr. Molina, and the point Mr. Hokama made
to get clarification, we can make a request from the Office of the Mayor to provide some
clarity to this request.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any objections to that?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. We'll go ahead and do that, Members.
Mr. Hokama, anything on ... anything else in this area before we move on?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, Members. Moving on ... I don't see anybody stopping me.
Okay, moving on, we're Economic Development Program, 509,599. There has been a
request or recommendation from your Chair to delete the expansion position of the Clerk
Typist III in this area of $28,017 for an adjusted amount of $481,000. Members, if you
recall, there is a request for four expansion positions in this area. Your Chair has
recommended that we delete one of the four and that is to reduce the Clerk Typist III or
delete the Clerk Typist III, but they still have three expansion positions being requested
for your consideration this year. Members, any questions or comments? We're on Page
10-6 of the Details for our reference point.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Mr. Ginoza, do we have any vacancies pending in the
department?
MR. GINOZA: Sorry, but I don't know.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair, if we could find out if we do have vacancies in
the department?
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We'll make a follow-up to Ms. Araki-Regan.
Members. So we'll make ... we'll make the request to the division.

This is her area,

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Question, Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, not a question, a comment-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
--regarding the expansion pOSItIons.
The Economic
Development Specialist II and the Clerk Typist II, these were positions that were being
looked at for the Kuhao Business Center on Molokai. So I'm hoping that with the
elimination of the Clerk Typist III that somehow that CT position does not really remain
here and go to where it was originally intended and that's my only comment, Chairman.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Arly additional questions or comments in this area,
Members?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Question, please, quickly, Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Please proceed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ginoza, these are civil service positions except for the Economic
Development Coordinator?
MR. GINOZA: You know, I really need to defer to the departments, and you know, I don't
know.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I just ask that, Chairman, that it may come a point 'cause I
don't have a problem for Office of Council Services either where maybe we should start
requiring EPs. ArId, and the old mentality of what's good for Council is good for the
Mayor's Office and so to be fair, Council has nothing to hide with who we hire, how we
hire, and the amount of staff we have. I think people should know. So I don't have a
problem either for Mayor's Office. ArId that's just my consideration that maybe the
Committee would want to consider putting in EP requirements 'cause that's how I feel
for the E-Tech Program, Chairman. I would like them to have EP numbers.
CHAIR KANE: Additional comments, Mr. Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chainnan.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, just a reference to Mr. Hokama's comments,
Section 5, there's an exemption from infonning the public of the EP count or the
expansion positions or the count of employees within the area and there's agreement that
was made some time ago, back in the 90's I believe, Members, where the Office of the
Mayor and the Office of Council Services made an agreement that they wouldn't have to
report their EP counts for various reasons. They made that agreement and that agreement
carries through to today. So, Mr. Hokama, your comments relate to that particular ...
that exemption of showing the EP counts for those departments, correct? Yes. Thank
you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's in Section 5.
CHAIR KANE: It's Section 5 I believe of our ordinance, Members,-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Budget ordinance.
CHAIR KANE: --if I'm not mistaken. In your ordinance, it's Section 5. So you can reference
that to have a better or clearer understanding of that. Mr. Hokama, is that something that
you wanted to maybe at some point as a policy issue bring that back for a discussion and

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That was gonna be my proposal when we did reach E-Tech because
supposedly, you know, they asking for a waiver from Section 5 or, or what is the
language, that Section 5 would not be applicable. Comes a point where I think we need
to know what they're doing, how they're doing it, because I am not happy with the
progress from the last Administration to this Administration with this areas.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you for your remarks.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chainnan.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any additional remarks
this area? The Chair's request for your
again there were
consideration of deletion of the expansion position, Clerk Typist
four expansions requested in this area. Your Chair is requesting that one of the four be
deleted from the expansion list. Any questions or comments or objections from moving
forward with this as a working number?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. We're moving forward. We're now in to the Grants and
Disbursements areas, Members. So without objections we'll do the same thing we did
with the Human Services area. We'll walk though this so everybody knows where we're
at. First, we have the grants and disbursements for Ag Promotion, $135,900, no revision;
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grants and disbursements for Aloha Festivals for Maui, Molokai, Lanai, and Hana,
equally, no adjustments in this area, Members - $40,000; on Line 429, grants and
disbursements for AquaculturelMarine Resources Development, $60,000, no
adjustments; grants and disbursements for Business Research Library, $135,000, no
adjustments; and Line Number, excuse me, Line Number 437, grants and disbursements
for East Maui Cultural/Economic Development, $75,000, no adjustments. Members, any
questions in these areas before we move on? Seeing none.
Members, Page 10, grants and disbursements for Environmental Protection, $600,000, no
adjustments; grants and disbursements for Film Industry Promotion, $85,000, no
adjustments; grant to University of Hawaii College of Tropical Ag and Human Resources
for Extension and Research Projects in Maui County, $98,500, no adjustments; grants
and disbursements for the Islands of the World's Conference IX, $35,000, no
adjustments; grant to Lokahi Pacific for Blue Hawaii Building Project, $300,000, no
adjustments; grants to Maui Arts and Cultural Center, 450,000, no adjustments.
Members, a note on that. I believe that's a combination of partial for their final phase of
capital improvement, as well as their operations account, split up into 250,000 and
200,000. The 250 for operations, 200 for the CIP.
The grant to the Maui Community College Four-Year Degree Program. Members, after
taking your responses to the request for proposals, Members, and the Chair will take a
moment to get to that page, it's on 3 of 9 of the revised copy of the budget proposals,
Members. Your Chair will note that there were three requests for one million deduct, one
request for a 1.5 deduct, one request for a 1.629 deduct, one request for a two million
deduct. So we have six out of the eight Members, not including your Chair, that had
requested for deletions of at least $1 million. Members, your Chair's proposal is to
recognize the $1 million deduct as a working number for our discussion which, Members,
I'd like to move to a later point, but as a working number, I'll take comments at this time.
Ms. Tavares, any comments here?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Chair, we can discuss it later about putting

the

prOVISO.

CHAIR KANE: Yes. Thank you. Okay. So the request here is for the working number,
Members, yeah? One million dollars is a working number and then we'll have ... we
can assure ourselves of a discussion in this area. Okay. So one million - without
objections we're moving forward.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. The next one is the grant to Maui County Farm Bureau, $200,000,
no revision. Next item, grant to Maui Economic Development Board, MEDB, $325,000,
no adjustment. The grant to the Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc ....
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ML Chair?
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CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
wanted to add--

You want us to stop at ... as we're going along places we

CHAIR KANE: Yes, please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --on existing line items.
CHAIR KANE: Please stop me. I'm looking down and reading-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --so please stop me.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think according to the handout you had three people that
had included the 20,000 for the Focus Maui Nui Benchmark Project. In my revised one I
actually went overboard and I went 45,000 which was the total of their request. But I
think this project is worthy of us supporting at least partially.
CHAIR KANE: So the $20,000 request, Members. Is that correct, Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think three Members asked for 20,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. The Chair will put it on the table for some comment here.
The request is to include in the $325,000 to MEDB to include an additional $20,000 to
make the working number a $345,000 working number. Are there any objections to this
request,-COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: --Members? Okay. Hearing no objections we'll adjust that number-MR. TAGUCHI: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: --to 345.
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr....
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MR. TAGUCHI: Just a question on the wording the grant, no ... reads right now, grant to Maui
Economic ... oh, I'm sorry. I'm on the wrong line. Excuse me.
CHAIR KANE: We're on Line Item 473, the Grant to Maui Economic Development Board and
a request to add an additional $20,000. Without objections, Members, it's been moved
for 345. Members, I don't know if you folks want a proviso and that's we can move, you
know, we'll talk about that later but we can proviso it so that specifically that 20,000 is
applied towards that-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --program that was introduced to this body.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Benchmark.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. So we'll take care of that on the revision. Thank you.
Moving forward on the Microenterprise Program, grant to MEO, Inc., $190,000, no
change; grant to Maui Long Term Care Partnership Caregiver Pilot Project of $20,000,
no change; grant to Maui Nui Botanical Gardens, $125,000. The request is no change.
Any comments/questions? Moving forward, the MRA request, Maui Redevelopment
Agency, $295,000, no revision. Are there any request to go back to any item on Page 10?
Hearing none.
Page 11, Members, grants and disbursements for Maui SoillWater Conservation District,
$38,870, no change. The grant to the Maui Visitors Bureau, Members, is 3,850,000. The
Chair is aware of the request for considerations. Members, let me tum to that page,
please. On Page 4 of 9 under MVB, the Chair notes that there are four requests for
reductions. The Chair move forward with the full amount, recognizing that five
Members felt comfortable with moving forward with that number and that includes your
Chair, and Members, we will make a note here to definitely have a discussion. Okay,
Members. So we'll move forward with this as a working number, but we'll have that
discussion so we'll come back. Okay. Hearing no objections, we're moving.
Members, we're on Line Item Number 501, grants and disbursements for Maui Electric
Company's Photovatac ... Photovoltaic Systems Program, $150,000, no adjustments;
grants and disbursements Molokai Economic Development and Cultural Program,
70,000, no adjustments; Small Business Promotion grants and disbursements, $100,000,
no adjustments; grants and disbursements SoillWater Conservation Districts - Molokai
and Lanai, $10,000, no adjustments; grants and disbursements for Sports Tourism
Development, your Chair is moving forward a request to delete this to zero. Members,
it's on the table for any discussion or an adjustment to this request. Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I believe the position at one time,
maybe Fiscal Year 2005, was moved to the Parks Department and it's still there vacant.
CHAIR KANE: Okay_ Thank you, Members. Any objections to the request for deletion?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson, question, please.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My only question was this was one that we never got to. Is
that correct?
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry. We never got to ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: We didn't get to the discussion of this particular item.
CHAIR KANE: The Sports Tourism Development item?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I was trying to recall because I know we kind of cut off
Parks and I stayed but I don't ever ... and they didn't come back the following day. So,
oh, this isn't in Parks, I'm sorry, but .. .
CHAIR KANE:
It wasn't in Aquatics or Parks Maintenance, if I'm not mistaken.
Mr. Pontanilla, you had a ... just for clarification, Ms. Johnson, if you don't mind.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. When you look at Page 11-3,-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Budget Details.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --Budget Details, that one. We do have a position that's
Special Events Specialist-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --that's vacant.
CHAIR KANE: Special Events Grants Coordinator?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: It just says Special Events Specialist.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, so is this then a position?
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CHAIR KANE: This was a grant and disbursements item and your Chair's recommending
deletion of that grants and disbursements program.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and I, I will ask for some clarification and if
Mr. Ginoza does not know, I will try and find out on my own.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any objections to this being a working number, Members, of zero?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. And this is again a first pass, Ms. Johnson, so please bring
us back when we pass this again. If you can-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --provide us with updated comments.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Grant to United States Geological Survey, the USGS, for Na Wai Eha Stream
Studies, Members, 75,000, no change; grants and disbursements for Watershed
Protection, $200,000, no change; E-Tech Program on Line 529 and 530, 531 - $459,742.
Members, Chair's recommendation no change. Discussion in this area? Mr. Hokama,
additional comments in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I just ask the Members to consider deleting Line 530.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. Any discussion on the request before your Chair ask for ...
makes a recommendation? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Mr. Chair, this is another area that I thought we
should bring the E-Tech people in to find out what's going on. I know Mr. Hokama has
voiced opinions before about the dissatisfaction with the programs in there and I also
would like to know what their expanded budget is for. I mean, to me, anyplace should
be flat, that's E-Tech because they have monies in there.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, without objections, along with the request for Department of
Management on the GIS question, we'll bring in the Mayor's Office specifically for the
E-Tech to provide some comment in that area.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I'm sorry. I guess I dozed off when we got to Line 521,
the USGS Survey for Na Wai Eha.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, ma' am.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: If we could move that grant to the Water Department since
they already have a grant with USGS for the other stream studies or consider it .
consideration of that?
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, without objections, making a movement out of OED to the
Department of Water. Ms. Johnson, comments on the request.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I have no problem with that. I just could not recall if the
stream flow project had included Kauaula.
CHAIR KANE: No. This is Na Wai Eha Stream Study. So the four streams here in Wailuku,
it's Waikapu, Wailuku (which is lao), Waihee, and Waiehu streams.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So there's nothing for West Maui at all?
CHAIR KANE: That has not been ... I noticed that that's one of your request for consideration,
but we have not arrived there. What we're talking about are existing ones. I think you're
asking for a new one.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: So we can take that up as soon as we get to the end which is in about right now
after E-Tech. So before we get to that, Members, any objections to movement of the
USGS Na Wai Eha Stream Studies, $75,000, to the Department of Water?
MR. TAGUCHI: ChairKane?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Taguchi.
MR. TAGUCHI: Staff would have to check about the funding source because under the Water
... if we move it to the Department ofWater,-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's restricted.
MR. TAGUCHI: --it has funds that are restricted because of the use of the fees for Water. So
we'd have to kind of check in to see if it is an allowable I guess funding source.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Tavares, any comments there?
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COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Yeah. No problem with checking on that. The other thing is
that I believe this is year two of a two-year project.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, and this is also a Council initiated-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --project.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. From last year-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --we put in 75,000 to be ...
CHAIR KANE: Three-year proj ... -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --three-year program.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Three years. Right. Exactly. So I don't know if the
preceding contracts were all done through OED, and if they were, then maybe we should
leave it here. But if Mr. Taguchi could find out for us I would hate to break it up in
mid-stream, so to speak.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. No pun intended, right? .. . (laughter). .. Thank you. Mr. Ginoza,
comments?
MR. GINOZA: I just had a comment in terms ofI'm just trying to see how we can move this to
Water and still have it funded by General Funds. So that may be a possibility. So that it
could be funded by General Fund but administered by Water.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So we'll look into that. I think we have a couple of questions for
Ms. Araki-Regan, Members. So I think this is another area where we can ask for a status
on the first phase of the contract, if there is one in fact, and get some information there
since this was Council initiated last year for this current year. We'll see where they're at
with the USGS partnership on this study. Okay. Thank you, Members.
And the E-Tech one, we'll take a look at the I guess the discussion with the Mayor's
Office for this E-Tech Program and the ... that information, general information as well
as we'll make a determination either tomorrow's discussion or later on in our discussion
as ... for the removal of the restrict ... the restriction of Section 5. Okay. Members, in
this area ... Ms. Anderson, is there something you wanted in this area to add, I'm sorry,
or was it Ms. Johnson, I'm sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Kauaula for ...
CHAIR KANE: Kauaula. Thank you very much for the reminder. Members, on your Page 4 of
9, under Department of Planning, I think you have that flow study, Ms. Johnson. Did you
want it to be considered there instead of here?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Wherever it most closely fits. If the one grand is going to be
moved over to Water, I mean it seems kind of silly to have them go on two different
paths. So I would like at least $25,000 to just begin that one. I think that was a
recommendation by one of the testifiers also that they look at Kauaula.
CHAIR KANE: Was this a USGS project, Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I believe that would be the lead agency so it would be a grant
because they're probably gonna have to be the ones to initiate it.
CHAIR KANE: Can the Chair ask or request that you provide us some level of written doc ...
again, written documentation on the request and some scope, if you will, of the project?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, because I'm just mirroring what initially was put in for
I think the original grant when we did the in-stream flow study I think it was for ...
CHAIR KANE: For Kauaula?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Ifwe just mirror that first year, because I didn't ask anybody
about it. This was ... I guess what I could do is I could check with Ms. Lucienne deNaie
and find out, but I was trying to mirror what was done in ...
CHAIR KANE: For Na Wai Eha?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. I'm sorry. I didn't get where you were going.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So there is no other, you know, it's just an initial funding
request. It may result in just the initiation of some kind of study. I don't know if
Mr. Taguchi has anything for how the original one was put through. I guess I'll have to
speak with US Geological Survey. But I don't have to specify that, right? Or is that the
way the initial one was specified?
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CHAIR KANE: Yeah. In this speci ... in this the one that we moved forward with USGS on
the $75,000 grant agreement between County of Maui and ... we have a response to that
on the status of that which was earlier but there was some feedback. It's an April 11th
response letter that you should have, Members, signed by Mr. Ginoza regarding some
questions - State contribution, Maui Community College Conference Coordination,
status of the grant. We have that information so we can make sure ... if you can take a
look at that just to help you to coordinate your ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I can try, Mr. Chair, but you know, right now I'm personally
not .. .(change tape, start 8A) . .. I don't know how the other grant was actually put
together but I felt that because of the testimony that this would be seed money to at least
allow that to move forward by I guess it would ... I don't know if it was initiated by the
Water Department, if it was done by individuals on the Council, if it was initiated by
OHA, and I guess I could probably visit with the people from Earthjustice. But at this
point in time, if you don't want to fund it, that's fine.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, no, no. Please don't get the impression that we don't want to fund it.
We're just trying to get information since you're trying to mirror that. Keep in mind that
last year there was a coordinated effort by USGS who provided testimony, OHA came in
and supported it, and came back and provided I believe some matching funds to support it
for the Na Wai Eha effort. So, please, I'm just trying to get information so we can justify
the request. That's all we're trying to do, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. And at this point, it would only be perhaps ... I
would have to say if for lack of nothing else, a challenge grant that if we put money in,
hopefully, other individuals would come forward to at least take that project in a similar
fashion as was done with the others. I will visit with Ms. deNaie and see if there is any
possibility where someone in private sector could take this on, because my plate is
overflowing.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And so Member Johnson, just so you know, the Chair has no problem
and I ask the body without objections that we can revisit this issue for Kauaula ... the
Kauaula Stream Flow Study one more time before we make a final decision.
Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, we're at the end of this area. Before we get into
Parks and Recreation, are there any other requests in this area for consideration?
Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I would like to throw out an
item for consideration and that would be for the Molokai Live Stock Cooperative. For
the last 14 years, this Council has been instrumental in helping our community actually
build and construct the Molokai slaughterhouse which is what this is. After 14 years of
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our support, which was partnered with State and Federal monies as well, recently this
slaughterhouse facility has been certified and recently this facility has initiated markets
on Molokai to sell its beef. The tuberculosis outbreak on Molokai a couple of years ago
that eradicated our herds on the island has been having difficulty in growing back or
corning back to its full potential. One of the reasons is because we had no slaughterhouse
facilities available. This particular facility is open and in operation at this particular point
in time. And I would like to ask the body's consideration for their continued support of
the facility and ask that $50,000 be added or be appropriated for the Molokai Live Stock
Cooperative or the Molokai Slaughterhouse.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Mateo, before we put the request out, is it specifically for a CIP
request or is it an operations request?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, it's for operations.
CHAIR KANE: Operations, okay. Members, the request has been made regarding the Molokai
slaughterhouse for $50,000. Discussion in this area to consider a working number.
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. When we went to Molokai, the
manager for the slaughterhouse indicated that he required some operational funding to
operate this slaughterhouse. You know, like Member Mateo, had mentioned it, you
know, we spent a lot of time and energy in trying to provide some economic development
for Molokai. And his request was for $50,000 for one year to get this thing started and
with that I can support the request from, you know, as indicated by Member Mateo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Additional comments, Members? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just one quick question, if Mr. Mateo will consider the
question, please. My question is are there any remaining Enterprise Community Funds, I
believe that's what Molokai was able to get from the Federal government, that could be
considered to assist this request or are there no available funds left from that Enterprise
Grant that the island was able to receive?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Mateo, comments, if you're prepared to do so.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman. I don't know the specific dollar amount.
However, the Enterprise Community has supported or is still supporting this particular
project with funds that they made available to help in the hiring of additional individuals
needed to operate the facility. So they have been partners in terms of supporting the
additional personnel needed to run the facility.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I think that ... that helps me, Chairman. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any additional comments or questions for clarification on the request?
Hearing none. Members, the Chair's recommendation for a working number is $50,000
to be put forward for a grant to the Molokai Slaughterhouse for operations, Members.
And this is start-up so I believe there was a request for one year, Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes. That was the request, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any additional comments, Members? Any objections to a working
number being applied?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. Hearing no objections, we'll move forward with that as a
working number. Ms. Johnson, I believe you had a request.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I had two requests. I'll take the smaller one first.
That's the Historic Lahaina Businesses Improvement District. I received request which I
will forward to the, you know, to the Committee. I'll try and make copies for tomorrow.
But basically, the Business Improvement District has been one of the options that has
been considered for a long time in downtown Lahaina and much like the redevelopment
monies, if they want improvements in the area, I believe this would be one way that
would empower them to be able to make those improvements and then actually pay those
monies back through this Improvement District Fund. So that it would make the kind of
improvements that are going to be appropriate for the business community and they
would also be able to pay those back. So in other words, it would be a sustainable grant.
But I will give you the budget that I was presented for the proposal.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Member Johnson, can we look at that at the second round when that
document is available.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No problem. I
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Great.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's why I'm not going to ask you for that now.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But I just wanted to tell you that it will be forthcoming.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And Friends of Mokuula was the other one and this was an
Army Corps of Engineers project and because this was one ofthe most important projects
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that was identified years ago underneath Economic Development. I know that they have
been struggling but this really is important to do this Wetlands Restoration Project to
move forward in the next phase and there will be other monies that will be coming as a
result of this money. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: That's the $118,000, Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, I see in this area a 120,000 from you. Is there any additional
comments, Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. I was just rounding it off to 120,000 but 118 is what
they actually requested and it's a ... I think it's, not I think, it's a match to some Federal
funds to do the assessment of the Wetlands Restoration and that's a big important first
step in the restoration of Mokuula.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's a long, long project that was started way back when
Howard Kihune was on the Council. That's how long this project has been tossed
around.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. We have the proposal on the table. Mr. Hokama, questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a question. So this would be in addition to the 318,750 that they
currently have then, Chairman? And I just going over the CIP report. They have this 318
encumbered but they haven't expended it yet according to the most current, outdated
report we got.
CHAIR KANE: Comments from Mr. Ginoza. Any comments in this area, Mr. Ginoza? There's
an existing fund that Mr. Hokama has identified in CIP.
MR. GINOZA: I would have to look at that.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, I'm just wondering what's going to happen to this 318.
CHAIR KANE: Reference point, Mr. Hokama? I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm just looking at Page 23 of the CIP, Finance Director's Quarterly
Report, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Page, I'm sorry, one more time, sir.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 23, under CIP by districts. It's toward the end, Mr. Chairnlan.
CHAIR KANE: Page 23 in your CIP in your Program Budget or in your ... oh, I'm sorry.
Thank you. Thank you. Mr. Hokama, any additional ... I'm sorry, you're waiting for a
response?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, please, from the Budget Director. If he can maybe share some
comments? This is an Economic Development grant - of$318,750. He stated that at the
end of December '05 the whole amount was encumbered. So I'm just wondering if part
of the scope of that encumbrance may have taken cared part of Ms. Johnson's concerns
and requests or not. Because if it's outside of what this is supposed to take care of, then
I'm happy to consider her request. But I'm not sure what this 318,000 contract is
supposed to do, Mr. Director.
MR. GINOZA: As I mentioned, I don't know and I need to check.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: We'll do follow-up on that, Members. Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: And so once we'll get that follow-up we'll make a note that we'll revisit that
and I think Members show some interest in further discussion here.
Members, I think this is the area where you folks wanted to consider the ... putting in Ka
Ipu Kukui's $50,000 request. Members, without objections ... any objections, Members,
to incorporating that request into this as a line item grant I believe?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
it in to
KANE: So we just need to make sure if ... okay. Okay, Members. We'll
this area and I just wanted to make sure on ... if there needs to be a particular status for
their 501(c)(3) status, et cetera, but we'll go ... we'll do the follow-up on Ka Ipu Kukui $50,000. Members, we have reached the Department of Parks and Recreation and so
now the Chair will pose the question. Time now is 10:25. The Chair is aware of people's
driving distance to their homes for rest and nourishment. Members, what is the pleasure
at this point in time? Mr. Hokama, comments.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just going through your, your proposal worksheets, I
would ask the Members if they would consider at least going through Parks and
Personnel Services under your recommendation, Chairman. With your proposal, there
currently is no adjustments or revisions.
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CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I would just say the more we can do, and I understand and I
sympathize and understand the need of some Members driving very far, but the more we
are able to do since we got some momentum going, it will release the stress and pressure
as the days keep clicking away, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Members, Mr. Hokama does recognize that there had been no request for any
adjustments in any of the areas as working numbers for the Department of Parks and
Recreation, as well as the Department of Personnel Services. So keeping it in the context
of this as being the first pass as working numbers, the Chair does recognize as an
example in the Parks Department, there are some request for considerations that were put
forward by the Members whether it's Aquatics from Member Tavares. We have some
cemetery requests, very minor small things. The Skate Park is a small request. And
R&M for Kula Community Center I think is the largest request. Members, as far as the
working numbers, any objections to the working numbers or walking through Parks and
looking at it in that context? Any objections, Members? We're almost there.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you for hanging in there. Administration Program on Line 534,
there are no adjustments to the $845,960 Administrative proposal from the Mayor, no
change. And Members, I'll be looking down and reading so stop me if you need to catch
my attention. The grant to the Lahaina Restoration Foundation of $120,000. We're
moving on to Page 12, Members. The grant to the Maui Coastal Land Trust, $86,000.
The grant to the Maui Community Correctional Center for the Workline Program,
$130,000. I think we're informed, Members, that it got reduced from three to two lines,
if I'm not mistaken or something like that. There was a reduction there so this reflects
that reduction. We're moving to 551, grants and disbursements for the Skate Park
Management. We have $112,000 there and I believe there was a request for Molokai
Skate Park, Mr. Mateo. I don't know if this is the area where you wanted to ask for a
consideration of an adjustment. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I would. Initially, when the
department came out with the $112,000 figure, there were three parks that they were
looking at that included Molokai. During the budgeting process Molokai was eliminated
because they had not completed their review of the Molokai site. So the 112 took into
consideration the two parks, skate parks, on Maui island. In the ... when this body went
to Molokai and had the ... held the Budget hearing, the Deputy did inspect the Skate
Park and did indicate the need for the department's support of the repairs needed to the
park. Also, in testimony during that evening, a number of our Molokai youth did come
out and ask for considerations as well. I would like to ask considerations of increasing
the 112,000 by $20,000 so that the park could be taken cared of and I don't know if it
would be appropriate to still leave in that word "Management" in terms of the Molokai
Skate Park.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. There's a request for the $20,000 consideration for the
Molokai Skate Park. Mr. Mateo, just as a follow-up question. Would it be to re ... gosh,
I wanted to say refurbish, but to restore the property ... the current property to a usable
condition, is that what the request is basically?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: So, Members, it may not fall under the Skate Park Management Program area.
So if anything, we may need to consider it in another area. Mr. Mateo, why don't we go
ahead and bring it back and I'll ask staff to help us find a more appropriate area for this
consideration of 20,000 for Molokai Skate Park.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. Without objections, we'll take a look at that at a ... in a
different area.
Aquatics Program, we have $4,943,220 and we do have a request from Member Tavares
on the aquatics increase. Ms. Tavares, would you like to make comments now or would
you like to save that for later as far as the specific request and discussion, but please
make your comments now ... the general comments.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, I'd like to have consideration to add four pool guards
at eight months for 120,000 and to increase their operations budget by 100,000. I think
we've all seen everyday almost in the newspaper there's a pool closed somewhere in
Maui County. We've also gone through a very arduous process trying to get funds for
maintenance of pools and pumps and filters and I think this is due in large part to the fact
that this division or this program does not ... has not had sufficient funding to take care
of this within their operational budget.
KANE: Members, the request is on the floor. Is there consideration for the $220,000
increase to the Aquatics Program and proviso ... and that we apply it specifically to four
pool guards and operations aquatics for pools.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any objections to the request?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Ms. Anderson, question.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. No objections. I'm just wanting some
clarification. Will these pool guards rotate, rather not necessarily rotate, but they
wouldn't be assigned to just one pool, is that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: My understanding is that the schedules are set up and there
are, you know, some adjustments made depending on who's on vacation and things like
that. But normally, a pool guard is assigned to a specific pool but they could be moved
around which I think is happening right now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But in other words, these guards that you're requesting are
not for one particular pool.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's just to pump up the staff?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Members, the Chair will ask and I'm sorry, Ms. Tavares, are we aware of the
vacancy in the pool guard under the Aquatics Pool Division?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'd have to check, Mr. Chair, on that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I know that there are some pool guards that are out on
medical leave or things like that or maybe Mr. Taguchi has that information handy.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, the Chair in the interest of time and since I did call for
an objection or no objection will incorporate the working number with the additional
$220,000, and Ms. Tavares if you can provide some assistance with your staff and
resources to ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Address the vacancy question?
CHAIR KANE: No, not necessarily the vacancy question but just the ... because it's an A
account request the four guards as an expansion position.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Just to get the pool guard dollar amounts for the A account specifically, not the
operations part, but the A account. If we ... if that number is accurate, then fine, but if
it's not, if we can just make the adjustments for the accuracy and then ...
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Because we have to figure out fringe and everything else from that request.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So staff ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That was figured on eight months so I have the breakdown.
CHAIR KANE: Great. Ms. Tavares will work with you folks, yeah, staff, on that. Okay,
Members. So the working number will be with that numbers and we'll make whatever
adjustments are necessary.
Park Maintenance Program, Members, we have $2,778,719, Members, working number.
Okay, moving forward. Maintenance of street trees, 300,000, no change. Planning and
Development Program, Members, $394,882, no change. Recreation and Support
Services Program, Members, no change for the $12,367,000, excuse me, $12,367,385, no
change.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Under Recreation Support Services.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Kula Community Center, Repair and Maintenance, I had
$150,000 and this is a philosophical question or policy question as to where we're gonna
put these bigger R&M projects. I think when we heard from the Upcountry people about
the condition of that Kula Community Association ... Kula Community Center, which is
used by the Association and many, many others. So maybe later we can have a
discussion about whether it should go here or in CIP.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
Ms. Tavares,--

That will be fine.

Members, so we'll come back to that request.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --we'll charge you with us being reminded of this request. Thank you.
Members, under PALS, we have the request which includes some adjustments in your fee
program, if you recall. There was a request there. PALS is $1,473,905, no change. The
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Waiehu Golf Course - Golf Fund, Members, this is the area that we did not make any
change and I don't know ifthis is the impacted area. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. This is the area that if we include the
equipment that was requested by the Superintendent for the Waiehu Golf Course,
$115,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. I believe there was an issue ... a couple of issues there. We still have
not received the written response from the Superintendent. Is that correct, staff? Have
we received it?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, we are not aware of receiving any of that information.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and then the second thing is that I know Mr. Hokama had some
comments in this area. So Mr. Pontanilla, without objections, Members, if we can bring
this back on the second round and we'll just use the working number now and then come
back to talk about the equipment and how we can get that applied.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, Contributions to ERSIFICA,
165,225, no change; contributions to General Fund Health Fund, 119,672, no change;
Debt Service, no change on the 169,982; and finally, Administrative Overhead Charge,
no change to the 194,332 number. Any additional questions or comments in Parks on the
first go around, Members? With that, our final for the evening is the Department ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm sorry. My apologies, Chair. I just wanted to let the Members
know that my very large request for Veteran's Cemetery on Lanai, just so happens
Veteran's cemeteries in our County comes under Public Works, Chairman, so when we
do reach Public Works, I'll be then bringing up the consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: The 250 and $750?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson. Oh, you were holding up the cover of your bottle of water and I
thought you were raising your hand. I'm sorry. Members, Department of Personnel
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Services on Line Number 606, we have the 1,550,486 request and your Chair has not
recommended any change in this area. Questions/comments? Yes, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a comment in regards to the premium
pay. For my proposal, I had requested a reduction of the premium pay by $50,000. If
you look at the trend as far as the premium pay, it had increased quite a bit from previous
years. And the request for additional personnel in the department should be, you know,
that additional personnel should reduce the premium pay.
CHAIR KANE: The requested amount Mr. ...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Fifty thousand.
CHAIR KANE: Fifty thousand reduction,-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Reduction.
CHAIR KANE: --Members. The request is premium pay currently for the proposal is $86,453.
Mr. Pontanilla's requesting a $50,000 reduction from this pay. The request is on the
table. Is there consideration for this? Questions/comments? Ms. Johnson, followed by
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and if I recall, Personnel Services is one of the areas
where they had a physical problem with expanding staff because they didn't have enough
room. That could be one reason for premium pay. And the other I think is because
they've been under such tremendous pressure with all of the requests that they get to get
them out. So I don't know if this is what the area that Mr. Pontanilla is talking about, but
right now I would like to give them the maximum amount of flexibility so that we can
take care of some of the backlog. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Hokama, questions.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My question was that the reduction in
pay is contingent
upon the approval of the expansion request. That is my understanding, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members. The request is on the table to consider it as a working
number, a reduction of $50,000, Members.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Agree.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Is there objections to that, Members? Member Johnson, objection?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I object.
CHAIR KANE: Any other objections? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You're asking for us to accept this on the first pass?
CHAIR KANE: I'm asking if there's any objections to, to ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Including it right now?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. To minus it out and we have one objection. And so in honor of that
objection, the Chair would ask that we use the original figure as a working number and
then we come back and have that discussion for a final decision on this matter.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much, Members. Members, we have reached our stop
point for this evening. I'll make a note, Members, that we will not generate a new
spreadsheet until we complete because there's some items that are connected to what
we've already discussed. So, Members, if you can make sure that your spreadsheet
doesn't get lost or misplaced, because we're gonna start up tomorrow morning. We meet
tomorrow morning in this Chamber at 9:00. We can anticipate some testimony,
Members, and then the effort will be to also, as best we can, contact the Department of
the Management, as well as the Office of the Mayor, including Ms. Araki-Regan in
Economic Development to respond to some specific questions. Okay, and once we
complete that, Members, the Chair's intent is to continue and we will start up with the
Department of Planning.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, time is 10:44 ... (change tape, start 8E) . .. this meeting is
adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

10:44 p.m.
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